Sandra Whitehead Paul Baca

Mayor Commissioner
Amanda Forrister Randall Aragon
Mayor Pro-Tem Comumissioner
Frances Luna Bruce Swingle
Commissioner City Manager

505 Sims St.
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
P: 575-894-6673 ¢ F: 575-894-7767
www.torcnm.org

REGULAR MEETING

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TRUTH OR
CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO, TO BE HELD IN THE COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RP
ST., ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2021; TO START AT 9:00 A.M.

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL
Hon. Sandra Whitehead, Mayor
Hon. Amanda Forrister, Mayor Pro-Tem
Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner
Hon. Randall Aragon, Commissioner
Hon. Frances Luna, Commissioner

2. SILENT MEDITATION
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

C. PRESENTATIONS (10 Minutes):
1. Certificate of Appreciation to Linda DeMarino for serving MainStreet since 2009.
Sandra Whitehead, Mayor

D. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Rule Applies)
E. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. City Commission Regular Minutes, September 8, 2021
2. Accounts Payable, August 2021



F. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING
1. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 22 21/22 Budget Adjustment Resolution. Carol

Kirkpatrick, Finance Director

2. Discussion/Action: Repeal Resolution 40 18/19 Establishing Fees for Fuel Charges

at the Airport. Traci Alvarez, Assistant City Manager

3. Discussion/Action: Approval of Ordinance #719 Personnel Policy for the City of

Truth or Consequences, NM. Bruce Swingle, City Manager

4. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 23 21/22 Approval of Procurement Policy.

Bruce Swingle, City Manager

5. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 24 21/22 Approval of Risk Control Program.

Bruce Swingle, City Manager

G. NEW BUSINESS

1.

Discussion/Action: Award recommendation of Proposal (RFP) #20-21-012 for the
North Transformer Replacement. Recommendation of Award is to American Electrical
Testing. Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance Director

Discussion/Action: Approval of Contract with American Electrical Testing as a
result of RFP #20-21-012 for the North Transformer Replacement. Carol
Kirkpatrick, Finance Director

Discussion/Action: Award recommendation of Proposal (RFP) #21-22-002 for Annual
Legal Services. Recommendation of Award is to Jaime F. Rubin, LLC Attorney at Law.
Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance Director

Discussion/Action: Approval of Contract with Jaime F. Rubin, LLC Attorney at Law
as a result of RFP#21-22-002 for Annual Legal Services. Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance
Director

Discussion/Action: Approval of Contract with Coppler Law Firm for Miscellaneous
Legal Services. Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance Director

Discussion/Action: Approval of Contract Extension with Tech 45 Services, LLC for
Airport management services. Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance Director
Discussion/Action: Approval of Contract Extension with Integrated Technologies
Group for Information Technologies services. Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance Director
Discussion/Action: Authorizing Code Enforcement Officer Jamie Sweeney as
designated representative to act on behalf of the city Manager and Designated
Zoning Official for the enforcement of Municipal Code Property and Building
Violations. Traci Alvarez, Assistant City Manager

Discussion/Action: MainStreet Truth or Consequences Foch Street Renovation
Project Grant Application. Linda DeMarino/Rooster Blackspur

H. REPORTS

1. City Manager
2. City Attorney
3. City Commission

. EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. The Purchase Acquisition or Disposal of Real Property pursuant to 10-15-1(H)(8)

J. ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED DURING EXECUTIVE SESSION, if any.

K. ADJOURNMENT



The meeting will be broadcast live through KCHS on 101.9 FM.

If you do not wish to attend the meeting, but would like to give public input, please
submit your comments to torcpubliccomment@torcnm.org, by fax at (575) 894-6690,
or a hard copy can be dropped off at the City Clerk’s Office, 505 Sims Street, Truth or
Consequences, NM. Please submit your comments no later than Monday, September 20,
2021.

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign
language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the
hearing or meeting please contact the City Clerk’s Office, at 505 Sims Street, Truth or
Consequences, New Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6673 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting
or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in
various accessible formats. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office if a summary or other type of
accessible format is needed.

NEXT REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING OCTOBER 13, 2021.



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: (.1

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021

SUBJECT: Certificate of Appreciation to Linda DeMarino
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: September 12, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Bruce Swingle, City Manager

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Sandra Whitehead, Mayor

Summary/Background:

For diligently serving MainStreet since 2009. Linda was the Founding President and served for eight and a half
years as MainStreet’s Executive Director.

Recommendation:

Attachments:

Certificate

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

$0.00

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

None.

Approved For Submittal By: [ 1 Department Director
Reviewed by: X City Clerk [JFinance [ Legal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: X City Manager

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. -  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

] Approved L] Denied Cother: -
File Name: CC Agenda 9-22-2021




Certificate of Appreciation

Presented to

WY 9,

PN ITI {1

| The City of Truth or Consequences recognizes Linda DeMarino for diligently serving MainStreet : ;
since 2009. Linda was the Founding President and served for eight and a half years as
MainStreet’s Executive Director.

We commend you and wish you every success in your future endeavors.

Dated this 22t day of September, 2021.

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor Bruce Swingle, City Manager




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: ‘E. 1

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021

SUBJECT: City Commission Regular Minutes, September 8, 2021
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: September 10, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Angela A. Torres, Clerk-Treasurer

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: City Clerk Torres

Summary/Background:

Minutes approval.

Recommendation:

Approve the minutes.

Attachments:

e CC Minutes

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

$0.00

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

None.

Approved For Submittal By: [] Department Director
Reviewed by: [X City Clerk [JFinance [Legal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: City Manager

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No.-  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

J Approved [J Denied CIOther: -
File Name: CC Agenda 9-22-2021




CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RP gt.
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2021

A. CALL TO ORDER:

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Sandra Whitehead at 9:00 a.m., who presided
and Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer, acted as Secretary of the meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION:
1. ROLL CALL:

Upon calling the roll, the following Commissioners were reported present.
Hon. Sandra Whitehead, Mayor
Hon. Amanda Forrister, Mayor Pro-Tem
Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner

Hon. Randall Aragon, Commissioner
Hon. Frances Luna, Commissioner

Also Present: Bruce Swingle, City Manager
Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer

There being a quorum present, the Commission proceeded with the business at hand.
2. SILENT MEDITATION:

Mayor Whitehead called for fifteen seconds of silent meditation.
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Mayor Whitehead called for Commissioner Aragon to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister moved to approve the agenda as submitted.

Commissioner Baca seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-
Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

C. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Rule Applies):

Rick Dumiak addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) He feels that the Commission needs to appeal Resolution No. 05 21/22.
(2) He asked about a rumor he heard of a portion of Rotary Park being purchased.
(3) He asked that the Commission respond to public comment so that the public knows
that they have been recognized.

Ron Pacourek addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) Weeds he has seen throughout the community that he feels may be a fire hazard.

Audon Trujillo addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) How he is proposed of the new Personnel Policy being adopted.
(2) He feels that the public needs to have more time during public comment.
(3) He reported on Commissioner Luna'’s frequent absence.
(4) The time frame for appropriating funds for the Golf Course.

Sophia Peron addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) The letter that was sent out to the customers who have utilities regarding the
electricity outage on October 11" and October 22"

Ron Fenn addressed the Commission with various comments related to:
(1) The advertisement that went out in regards to the meetings pertaining to the AMI
meters.

Steve Bauers addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) Recommendations on how we can help our electric system.
(2) He feels that we all should work together because the whole us and them attitude
is not going to get us anywhere.

Ariel Dougherty addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) Her concern of a billboard located next to the thrift shop that has misinformation
about the Election.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR:
1. City Commission Regular Minutes, August 25, 2021:
Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.

Commissioner Baca seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-
Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

Page 2 of 13



Good morning Madame Mayor, commissioners, Mr. Swindle I stand before my
representative with a concern about all the weeds or over growth of vegetation in our
community. I would think that our code enforcement officer would be working overtime to
keep up with all the violations in our city limits. I have a real concern with the area across
from Rotary Park, River Bend Spa, Ralph Edwards Park, and all along the River both sides.
Please take a drive on East Riverside Dr and look across the river. Someone should be
responsible for all that over grown of vegetation and to control it. We have had some real
lighting/rain storms in the near pass and if that area get struck by lightning (god bless our
fire department) but I not sure they could handle a fire like that over across the river.
There is no water source over there, the river is down and the wind usually comes from the
south/southwest. I 'm hoping our city would be proactive rather than being reactive to this
situation.

I have not forgotten about a No Wake ordinance on the Rio Grande in the city limits of
TorC I'm waiting for some action.

FYII received a letter from UNMH HOSPITAL that they have been hacked and some of
my medical record have been compromised .

Thanks Ron Pacourek



Appellant Dougherty Comments during Appeal — Before TorC Commission — September 08, 2021

AT THE START: If any of you feel you can not be impartial in considering my appeal, I urge you to
recuse yourself. Further, you must deliberate the substantive issues I raise. Otherwise you violate my
due process rights under the Fourteenth Amendment.

I raise eleven points in my written appeal submitted August 2nd with four Exhibits. You only
yesterday received my 5 page Supplement. Regretably the public has been deprived this material. The
Supplement includes City Minutes and references to various laws, census data and a recent judicial
decision. You must consider both submissions and key points I now discuss.

ONE: In City Code Sec 14-45 what does “providing the availability of service” that carries a
customer charge of $8 actually mean? (Supplement, pg 4, Nol.) What specifically does it cover in
terms of the tasks the City charges to customers? Combined the City collects over $30,000 a month
and more than $365,000 a year under “availablity of service”. As citizens we have a right to know
what our fees provide and how these funds are allocated.

In over 250 billing cycles my water and electric meters were read by two different individuals.
Never did a bill have any line item charge for meter readers so THEIR FEES MUST have been
incorporated into this $8 “availability of service” charge. Two questions I seek answered: One, why do
you still charge the entire customer base the same amount since meter reading is now theoretically
automated? And Two, since you have not dropped or altered this $8 fee for me why do you think you
can charge me TWICE for the same service?

TWO: NM is a leader in equity and environmental justice in crafting state energy policies. Resolution
5 21/22 now makes T or C the highest charging public body in the country for opt out fees for smart
meters. Close to 30% of our population live in poverty. 37.4% of the population are seniors. Many of
us live on fixed incomes. And 41.7% of adults in poverty also have disabilities. (chart, page 5,
Supplement). The $50 fee is egregious and capricious. It is why 250 citizens readily signed petition you
rejected. Most seriously Resolution 5 21/22 defies state law, NM Stat § 62-8-1. Please answer, why you
think this Commission especially given our community economic composition is exempt from adhering
to this state statute?

THREE: December 18, 2020 I appealed under Sec 13-30(e) the installation of a smart meter. At the
time and when my appeal was heard before this Commission (and de facto approved) this past January,
there existed no penalty in the City Code for the exemption under which I appealed. It is long

Dougherty Comments in Appeal page 1 09/08/21



established practice in making laws desiring to post facto collect fees on prior actions that language be
written in the law that specifically addresses a retroactive fee process. No such language exists in
Resolution 5 21/22. My Public Comments before you on October 9, 2019 (attached) warned of some
public opposition to smart meters. I lamented then you were “proceeding with no official public input”
— ie Public Hearings that officiate public views. Some 275 people signed a petition that Fall. Your
primary obligation is to protect the public welfare. Exactly how is Resolution 5 21/22 fair to me and

protects my welfare?

RELIF SOUGHT: Resolution 5 21/22 has caused an undue, unjust and harmful cost to me. For these
reasons I seck the following relief: the removal from my utility bill of the 2" “EL TOTAL CHARGE”
of $50 since July 2021 and going forward on all future utility bills. In approving my appeal you have
the opportunity to show your commitment to the public's welfare.

Dougherty Comments in Appeal page 2 09/08/21



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action: Final Adoption of Ordinance No.
719 relating to Administration adopting a Personnel Policy setting forth
Personnel Rules and Regulations, and establishing consistent basic
policies, practices, professionalism, and expectations concerning
relations between the City of Truth or Consequences and its
employees:

City Manager Swingle explained that there were two copies provided in the packet. One
is the redline version, and the other is the final version. This policy is a new document. It
is not a revision of the existing policy. Senior staff has reviewed the policy, and has
made a number of changes to the document over the last two months. It has also been
reviewed by our City Attorney. We have made some changes to the nepotism section,
which is 9.6. It was changed to the 4t" and 5% level of relationship to be more consistent
with what nepotism policies have which is typically the 3 degree of relationship. There
were also changes to the leave portion. Initially, he had put the employees that are
employed the day that this document is adopted would stay grandfathered in at their
existing rate, and new employees would start at the new accrual rate. The change was
how they were listed. The Commission has been very generous with the benefits that
they have given the employees, and we don't want to take away benefits from the
employees that were already given. Therefore, we will grandfather those employees
with their current rate.

Mayor Whitehead opened the Public Hearing.
Proponents:

Audon Trujillo gave his recommendations of some additions/amendments he feels the
policy needs before being adopted. (Complete copy attached hereto, and made a part
hereof).

Ariel Dougherty stated that she wanted to follow up after Mr. Trujillo because he has a
tremendous amount of involvement, investment, and ideas to contribute. He has also
followed this issue with the Commission, and the City for a long time. He sent everyone
a notice this morning saying that that we should continue the hearing today, but the
action should be postponed until some of the ideas that he has presented could be
incorporated into it. She would also like to see a citizens committee who can review it,
and polish off the procedures. She commented on the two versions of the policy that
were provided in the packet. She would have liked for them to be specifically labeled,
because she only looked at the first version. Guiding the public how to view 300-400
pages of material might be helpful in the future. She supports what Mr. Truijillo is trying
to do and hopes when citizens have valuable contributions to make to the Commission
that there is a way in which you will collaborate with us.

Page 3 0of 13



OBSERVATIONS ON DRAFT T OR C PERSONNEL POLICY - Audon Trujitlo, IJr. September 6, 2021

The City is about to make a decision on what personne! policies will govern the administration of City
decision making with regards to personnel. The draft personnel policies before the City Commission via
Ordinance No. 719 should not, in my opinion, be accepted in its’ current form. While the majority of
language in the draft document can be seen as an improvement to the City’s current Personnel Policies
(i.e., City’s 2011 Edition), there are sections which rewording would benefit the city.

The City is to be applauded for updating its Personnel Policies which are in need of updating. The City at
this junction needs to determine whether it is satisfied with things as they are or whether they indeed
seek to select the best candidate for positions, provide their employees with fair work objectives and
annual evaluations that will be fair, reasonable and resonate with those intent on seeking excellence in
our workforce.

While | have not thoroughly reviewed the complete draft Personne! Policies among the key contents of
the draft personnel policies that should be questioned by the City Commission prior to approval of this
document are:

DEFINITION: TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE: Currently the time for a temporary employee is six {(6) months,
There should be very few instances that the City cannot complete competition and fill a vacant
employee within three (3) months of a position becoming vacant. This is especially try of positions who
are electing to retire. Mareover, but for the rarest of circumstances employees should provide the city
with two (2) weeks of their vacating their position should they seek employment outside the city.

1.41 TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE: Language in the Personnel Policy needs to clarify that an individual (City
employee or outside applicant) hired to fill a temporary position will have all the required knowledge,
skills, education and abilities required for the "temporary vacancy” or of a new position. Moreover,
such temporary positions should be announced for a minimum of two weeks on the bulletin boards of
all City Departments. Should there be a need to go outside the City to fill a new position language in the
City will advertise the position for a minimum of two (2) weeks.

1.43 UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE: What state regulation allows the City to terminate any employee
without being entitled to grievance procedures? If there is a state regulation state the regulation and

insert the specific regulation.
Crursersy s elimindded
SECTION ll: EMPLOYMENT STATUS

2.1 Posltion Specifications: Language need to specify that all required knowledge, skills, education and
abilities required of the position to be filled by outside applicants shall also apply to any employee
transferred to a vacancy or new position.

F. Unclassified Employee: What state regulation allows the City to terminate any employee without
being entitled to grievance procedures? If there is a state regulation state the regulation and insert the
specific regulation.

SECTION Il GENERAL PROVISIONS



3.3. Amendment of Rules and Regulations ... Add the following language ...

“A copy shall e given to the employee and the original shail be maintained by HR in the employees
personnel file.”

ADD THE FOLLOWING LANGUAGE:

3.6.1 Administration by the City’s Department Chief of Human Resources: The Department Chief of
Human Resources shall be responsible for ensuring that selection boards are educated about and follow
all Equal Opportunity Rules & Regulations to ensure that there is no discrimination related to race, age,
religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, marital status, physical or mental handicap, medical
conditions, sexual orientation or gender identity. The Chief of Human Resources shall not be a voting
member of any selection panel except for those positions in Human Resources. The Chief of Human
Resources (or her/his HR designee) shall be present at all selection panel meetings with applicants to
ensure that no violations occur and to ensure that each selection panel member is scoring applicants
during the individual applicant interview. At the conclusion of each individual interview the Human
Resource Chief shall collect the individual scoring sheets of applicants.

The Chief of Human Resources shall ensure that weighted selection criteria are developed prior to the
advertisement of each vacant position. The Chief of Human Resources shall enlist subject matter
experts to develop selection criteria and determine the selection criteria’s respective weight.
Importantly, election criteria and their weights shall be publicized in the position announcement in all
advertisements for the position. [Doing this ensure that the City obtains qualified individuals to apply as
it will encourage those fitting the sought qualifications to apply and discourage those who do not have
the qualifications to not apply.]

4.2 Recruitment of Applicants: Language needs to describe the role of the Chief Financial Officer as
being responsible for ensuring that adequate funds for the position are in place (i.e., available) from a
funding line item that is in keeping with the position.

4.3. Temporarlly Filling Vacant Positions: Suggest changing language from six (6) months to three (3)
months. Add that individuals filling a vacant position must meet the requirements established for the
vacant position.

4.4. Best Qualified & Best-Suited Applicant Determination: [NOTE: The longuage as currently written seems
to indicate that irrespective of the scoring of applicants that the Department Head and Human Resource Manager
can select whoever they wish to employ regardless of the qualifications of the applicants.]

Suggest eliminating the following language
“The best qualified and best suited applicant is determined by the department director, in conjunction
with the Huan Resources Manager” and instead insert

“A selection panel of 3 to 5 members shall rate each candidate interviewed for the position. The Head of
the Department of the position being filled shall be a member of the selection panel. A majority of the
selection panel should be subject matter experts in the field of the position being filled. The selection
panel will determine the best qualified and best suited applicant. This will be done by the selection
panel’s comparative scoring on a) selection criteria, b) response to interview questions and c) any tests
that may be required of candidates. Test may be given as a pass fail and/or can be part of the selection
criteria scoring of candidates The only way the selection panel’s determination can be invalidated is for



the background check to reveal strong negative factors (e.g., past felonies, reference checks revealing
unacceptable past poor performance, pre-employment drug and alcohol screening, medical test). “

SECTION V: CHANGES IN EMPLOYMENT STATUS
5.1 Promotion: Add:

“The City will base employee promotions on individual merit aligned with annual evaluations
recommendations and availability of funding.”

5.2 Evaluation Period: Add:

The standard evaluation period shall be a 12 month period beginning for all City employees on {INSERT
DATE] and ending on (INSERT DATE]. Employees beginning after the start date of their rating period
shall be their employment start date and {INSERT DATE]. Department Heads shall be responsible for
establishing measurable work objectives for the employees evaluation period. Care shall be taken to
ensure that the work objectives are in line with the position, are measurable and are attainable. The
draft written objectives shall be shared with the employee within two weeks of the start of the
evaluation period. The employee shall have one week to provide suggested changes to the Department
Head and these shall be discussed within two work days after providing the suggested changes. The
final work objectives will completed one month after the start of the rating period and shall be signed by
both the employee and Department Head. A copy of these shall be provided to the Human Resource
Manager and the employee. The Department Head shall be responsible for maintaining the original
copy of the work objectives.

5.4 Transfers: Add the following language for subsection A, B and C:

“Employees transferred from one position to another shall meet all the requirements of the position that
they are being transferred. *

5.5 Resignation: Suggest adding language to read:

“ One week after receiving a resignation letter the Department Director and Human Resources Manager
shall provide the employee with a written acceptance or rejection of the resignation. Failure to provide
the employee with such a letter shall allow the employee to curtail his/her employment on the date
his/her resignation specified or allow him/her to continue employment with no break in employment.
This decision will be solely at the employee’s discretion.”

SECTION VI; CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
6.2 Temporary Employee Hired to a Regular Position: Suggest adding the following language:

Temporary Employees shall not be hired to a Regular Position without advertising the position. [The City
needs to ensure that it does not “sole source” filling Regular Positions by hiring Temporary Employees as
Temporary Employees were not fully competed. ]

6.4 through 6.5. Correct Capitalization at start of subsections to coincide with the rest of the draft
document.



9.9 Fringe Benefits & 15.5 City Vehicles:
VEHICLE LOGS:

These draft Personnel Policies do not mention anything regarding the use of vehicles or any
responsibilities employees have for logging vehicle use, or the process for checking out a City vehicle for
occasional use. Recommend having a statement added regarding establishing a Vehicle Log, the
employees responsibility to fill in a Vehicle Log each time they use a Vehicle, Responsibility of
Department Heads to ensure Vehicle Logs are in each vehicle and checking the logs on a weekly basis to
ensure vehicles are utilized for official business.

There is no statement as to under what circumstances a vehicle can be kept at home. Many City
employees seem to be granted the privilege of taking a City owned vehicle home. Is there a City policy
on employees reimbursing the City for milage on office to home & home to office use? Is there a
master log of Vehicles and which employee has been assigned the vehicle and is allowed to take the
vehicle to his residence on a regular basis? Is the specific residential address of the employee noted?

No language on how often a City owned vehicle is to be serviced.
OTHER OBSERVATIONS:
PURCHASES:

There is no mention in the Personnel Policies on what practices are to be followed by employees (i.e.,
including Department Heads) when they require materials/goods or services. If such policies/processes
exist, at the very least the existing policy/process for requesting these should be referred to {(e.g., T or C
City Policy & Process for requesting services, materials/goods).

The State of New Mexico has specific requirements regarding the procurement of goods and services. In
some instances the State has ongoing contracts that the City is required to utilize in order to obtain
specific goods and services.

Similarly there is no mention of any required “in-house” training on procurement practices that are
violations of the State Procurement Policy and which must be avoided (e.g., committing the City to pay
for goods or services after the employee has already procured them and submitting receipts for
reimbursement).

END OF DOCUMENT



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Ron Fenn stated that he is generally pleased with the fact that the city is looking at
doing something that has been necessary for a long time. It will certainly not cure things
in the short term. That may take generations before all of this comes into fruition. His
one suggestion would be to add something that established the relationship of City
employees and the public, because the only place that references the public is under
the code of ethics. The reference in the proposed policy states that “they shall use the
powers, and resources of public office to advocate the public interest, and it is related to
the ethical conduct of City Employees and Officials.” City Government cannot function
efficiently without the confidence of the public. Our contact with citizens, and
performance results in often the basis for which Government is judged. This doesn’t
really address the fact that the people are the city. They are not just residents. Without
the people, there is no City so that needs to be a little more emphasized. The paradigm
right now is that we work for the City, not recognizing that the people are the City, and
what's best for the people is maybe not the same thing that is best for employees.
There has been very little accountability for work that is done in the city. There has been
very little responsibility in the past, and he thinks that this document may help forge
some future betterment. He thinks that there needs to be something in the preamble or
in the beginning of it that really punches home the fact that all of you are here for our
benefit, not the other way around. That is one of the problems with what has been going
on in the city for so long, and why our population under our last census shows about a
20% loss of population.

Mayor Pro-Tem asked Mr. Fenn if he has a suggestion of what the policy should say to
make it better.

Ron Fenn responded if they bring this back up, he will write something for the
Commission. He always proposes solutions to problems. He doesn’t just complain
without solutions. He believes in this community, and he will die here, but as long as he
is here, he will fight for the benefit of the people of this community.

Opponents:
None.
Comments from the Commission:

Commissioner Aragon stated that he likes how the performance evaluation section
reads because you need to have goals when you set the performance evaluations. That
is important, and he noticed that we didn’t have that. Sometimes you might have to hurt
people’s feelings so there needs to be something in there of you need to tell it like it is
or you are not really developing the person. That is really important to develop our
people to do things right the first time. He agrees with a review committee, but there
needs to be experts on it because this is not something you just want to let someone
who has no knowledge on personnel matters be on.

Page 4 of 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister feels like we are moving in the right direction to try and change
this personnel policy, and she feels like we should take some of these valuable
solutions into consideration.

Commissioner Baca agreed that we should take the public’s input into consideration.

Commissioner Luna asked by tabling this item when it comes up for approval, what
does that do to our publication process, and how does that affect the changes for
approval.

City Attorney Rubin stated if we make changes to what we have here, we may have to
start the publication process again. He complimented City Manager Swingle for doing a
wonderful job by putting this together. He was very honored to be able to go through it,
and make some suggested changes. Nevertheless, it is always important to get input
from the public, and he is in favor of looking at the suggestions we received today.

Commissioner Aragon stated that Mr. Fenn made the comment about feelings between
the employees and the citizens. He thinks that is a good idea. He feels that the
employees should serve as an ambassador for the city.

Mayor Whitehead closed the public hearing.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister made a motion to table Ordinance No. 719 so they can
look at the suggestions given by the public. Commissioner Baca seconded the
motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

F. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING:
1. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 20 21/22 Declaring Surplus Property
for an online Auction through J.J. Kane Associates, Inc. dba J.J. Kane
Auctioneers to be held on October 5, 2021:

City Clerk Torres explained that the Streets Department has various vehicles, a flatbed
trailer, and a John Deer Loader that they want to sell in an online auction. Included in the
packet is the Resolution, and a list of the surplus property which includes the current value
of each item. The auction is through J.J. Kane Auctioneers, and it is scheduled for October
5, 2021.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister moved to approve Resolution No. 20 21/22 Declaring
Surplus Property for an online Auction through J.J. Kane Associates, Inc. dba J.J.
Kane Auctioneers to be held on October 5, 2021. Commissioner Baca seconded the
motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

Page 5 0of 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

2. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 21 21/22 Budget Adjustment
Resolution:

Assistant City Manager Alvarez reviewed the budget adjustments submitted in the
agenda packet.

Commissioner Baca moved to approve Resolution No. 21 21/22 Budget Adjustment
Resolution. Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by
the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 22 21/22 Authorizing and Approving
Submission of a Completed Application for Financial Assistance and
Project Approval to the New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA):

City Manager Swingle explained that we have submitted a shell of an application to the
New Mexico Finance Authority for a loan to purchase a Transformer for the Substation.
The loan is a little over $1 million dollars. It is the complete cost of the Transformer, as
well as the gross receipts tax, and other costs that are associated with this new
equipment. The city is in dire need of this Transformer, and fortunately the Electric
Department is one of the utilities that does not have a lot of debt. They have one other
outstanding loan right now, but it is a fairly small loan comparatively speaking so they are
in good financial shape to cover the cost of loan payments. Should the Commission
approve the Resolution, we would ask that the Mayor sign off on the formal application,
and then we would start submitting all of the documents that NMFA needs to execute the
loan process.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister moved to approve Resolution No. 22 21/22 Authorizing
and Approving Submission of a Completed Application for Financial Assistance
and Project Approval to the New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA). Commissioner
Baca seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion
carried unanimously.

G. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Discussion/Action: Ariel Dougherty Public Appeal in regards to
Resolution No. 05 21/22 imposing a $50 monthly trip fee to customers
desiring to retain their digital meters:

City Attorney Rubin explained that he was asked the question whether or not we need to
have this hearing. He knows that we have had Public Appeals before from Mr. Fenn, and
Ms. Dougherty regarding the issue of the AMI Meters. However, that issue was delt with
the question of whether or not they would be required to have an AMI Meter, and this is
a different issue that talks about the $50 trip fee which was imposed during the January

Page 6 of 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

27" meeting, and Resolution was drafted later on. Therefore, his advice was that they
would have the right to have an appeal.

Ariel Dougherty, Appellant explained that she sent additional information to the City Clerk
on August 18", but it was not sent to the Commission until September 7, 2021.

City Manager Swingle asked the Commission if they have all had a chance to review the
information that was sent to them that the Clerk provided to them yesterday.

The Commissioners responded yes.

City Attorney Rubin asked Ms. Dougherty how the document that was submitted to the
City Clerk pertains to Resolution No. 05 21/22. (Complete copy attached hereto, and
made a part hereof).

Ariel Dougherty, Appellant stated if you hear her presentation, it will clarify things. 51:51

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister explained that she is confused as to why they did not receive
what was just read instead of the minutes that were submitted on August 18t,

Ariel Dougherty, Appellant stated that the minutes are an accumulation of history that
address concerns about the smart meters that affect city workers. There is no comment
what so ever in them about the public welfare.

Mayor Whitehead stated that they are not talking about the meters.

Ariel Dougherty, Appellant stated that she asked a question of how the Commission
addresses public welfare in this Resolution.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister stated that this appeal is for the $50 trip fee, not about anything
else.

Ariel Dougherty, Appellant stated that the Commission needs to address the $8 fee,
because that has never been addressed in all of these discussions. She contends that
you have been paying the Electric Meter readers out of the budget that he $8 goes into.
She feels that she is being charged twice for meter reading.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister asked where Ms. Dougherty got the $8 charge from.

Ariel Dougherty, Appellant stated that it is listed in the code.

Mayor Whitehead stated that the appeals before them today are based on the $50 trip
fee. We are not appealing the $8 fee today.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister stated that she is reading that the $8 fee is for abiding the
availability of service. It has nothing to do with the trip charge.

Page 7 0of 13



Attachment to Dougherty
Appeal presentation

. . .. Sep 08, 2021
Public Comment - City of Truth Or Consquences Commission

Ariel Dougherty, October 9, 2019
Greetings Commissioners,

I am vehemently opposed to the smart metering that the Commission is proposing.
You appear to be proceeding with no offical public input. My reasons are three:

1) It is far too expensive — with an ongoing unknown expense down the road.
Especially as present meters are not broken — like the water mains, or downtown
drainage — what problems that might exist can be addressed in other ways.

2) Itis a health hazard of gigantic proportions waiting to happen. Think Tobacco
Industry.

3) Such a large expense locks us further into the death spiral of fossil fuels. We all have
a collective moral obligation to reach zero emissions. Let's address this instead.

You must provide evidence that smart metering is safe. Your action to proceed makes us
all guinea pigs. It violates your obligation to protect the public welfare. For many of us this
increase of radio frequency levels will be only feet away from where we spend large
proportions of our time. There is ample evidence about the effects of elevated radio frequency
hampering people's health. It is a possible class B2 carcinogan.

Legal cases against smart metering have already been settled on behalf of plantiffs in
Maine, California and Hawaii. One lead plantiff stated: “We understand that the horse is out
of the barn in terms of the meters being in, but they should’ve vetted these smart meters for
safety before they were deployed instead of waiting until they’re deployed to see that there’s
well-known biological effects.”

Here the horse is not yet out of the barn. You have a civic and legal obligation to ensure
our safety, the public welfare. I deplore you to Whoa; not proceed.

Under the Americans for Disability Act Title IT even municipal utilities must comply.
For those of us who qualifiy with a disability the City can not smart meter our homes upon
request. Many of our citizens have ADA concerns and can submit requests to keep their analog
meters. The 26% of our citizens who live in poverty especially cannot afford this gross,
unhealthy action of yours. In the future you may be obligated to pay for the health
consequences.

If you do not want to err on the side of public welfare and safety — and keep our expenses
down and recognize the climate disaster we are all face — legal actions may be the only remedy.

Please seriously consider the issues I bring to your attention before you make any more
movements on this matter. Thank you.



Supplement - Ariel Dougherty Appeal — Resolution 5-21/22  August 18, 2021 pgl

Supplement A — City Minutes of August 27, 2019 -- Item F2: Award RFP for Advanced
Meter Infrastructure (AMI) Project (3 pages)

CITY COMMISSION AUGUST 27. 2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

S anf 13 ances Schoois D y r introduced Dr
Re"ee (58!0!8 and S‘epha' v 0 Proviie audibonal miormation

Or. Renee Garcia explained the main benefit of the JJAC Agreement is the collaboration
that takes place. They usually have a Joint JJAC meeting with the Office of Subistance
Abuse Prevention and it brings together stakeholders in the community. Their goal in
cotaboration with THE CLUB 15 to make sure that our students are safe, are in schoo!
cannol share a ! of s¢

'ins 50 having it within the schools will enable them to
address those iss: = in 2 very timely manner so they can triage and find the support
that the students need

Stepha: ownfield adried they have been working on ‘ i
% 8 possibie ! 4
work with the students, One of varkimg on at the High School is
WOl n...,, with -.s(uuw its who have missed days of school  If they start counseling

early, then they can possibly prevent it fr 10ing to a 10-day lruancy o where the
students are out on tha street and doing things they maybe shouldn't be doing Ms

Pendlator am where st 3 Se8sioNns, a
Menlon rogram and at assment Program
Jud fors has qone to their meetinnsg ar 1oy had a table with all of the Princiy a1g
, Pendlet ekt mealing W y will
3 Hat Do, ‘

Stakeholders thal will @ssist us in helping our sludems because
Wi t them to succeed

or P n Cla nfirmed th ta pass-through of t ¥

2 i} 34 ¥y pe '} s fenam §
fied by both parties and | 1 workoaith City Attormey Rubin to clarify that
‘»mauage. and they will make sure they agree on ot with Superintendent Piper. At that
Yy o Ty exatule e dQlt‘tﬂﬁ\en‘

r Pro-Tem Clar t of Sub f‘nntructor
AGrean frug -ONBGHUERC Mumctpal brhnoi District for the
O Ju tice Advisory Co {1JA) throuah Children, Yo

5 Diviskc YFD) o ity and th ols and aul iy manager

f to make. # sary changes to tho contract, Commissioner Baca and

nigsioner bztge seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Discussion/Action: Award RFP No. 18-19-007 for Advanced Meter
infrastructure (AMI) Project to LNG City Manager Madrid:

ic Department Director Easley showed the presentation that was previously given
regarding the need for this project. The presentation included:

Page 4 of 7



Supplement - Ariel Dougherty Appeal - Resolution 5-21/22  August 18, 2021 pg 2

CITY COMMISSION AUGUST 27, 2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

» Obstacles encountered while reading meters include dogs; fences; vegetation
and locked gates.

220 meters are read a day on average.

Holiday Seasons require more meters read a day to stay on schedule.

It causes extra work if a meter reader is on vacation or sick.

Meter readers average 6 walking miles a day, which adds up to 108 miles a
month.

e Meter readers are exposed to injuries while reading.

Benefits of the system:

¢ The ability to read meters in a much quicker time.

e The ability to read the meters accurately.

» The system is compatible with the Cities billing software and it logs data on the
customer’s usage on a points basis.

¢ The installation would take approximately 6 months.
Every Meter will fit into residential meters. The only issues they will have will be
with a few commercial meters and those meters will be read manually. There will
be only 40-50 meters at the most that will have to be read manually.

o The City will take the appropriate steps to make the meters compatible with the
AMI System. Customers will not need to re-wire their buildings by any means.

e The meters will have a theft device on them and if the meter is tampered with it
will send a red flag back to the Utility Office.

City Manager Madrid explained the RFP process to the Commission stating that they
worked with experts to develop the proposals and they were published and sent out.
They had a pre-proposal conference for questions from the providers and then the
proposals were submitted and evaluated by a committee on a point's basis. The
committee met to review the results of the evaluations and those evaluations were done
individually and privately, then the committee met as a group to decide on the 3 final
candidates. The 3 final candidates were then called in for interviews and presentations
before the committee. After that the committee met a final time to determine the
recommendation to select a provider. At the last meeting the Commission approved a
negotiation with an appropriate provider and those negotiations have taken place.
During the negotiation the provider agreed to reduce the price by 8 % % which is the
amount we would have had to pay in Gross Receipts Tax and that brought the price
under the budgeted amount of $1 million dollars.

City manager Madrid then listed a few highlights of the system which included:
o The system will provide a visual map of where the meters are located.
It will also pinpoint the location when service is out so power outages will be
addressed much quicker.
The readings will be digital, more accurate, and are real time.
We will also have the capability to activate and deactivate service without
sending anyone out into the field.

Page 5§ of 7




Supplement - Ariel Dougherty Appeal — Resolution 5-21/22  August 18, 2021 pg3

CITY COMMISSION AUGUST 27, 2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

it will also give us the ability to provide customers with better information. For
example, if there is a dispute with the consumption, we can pinpoint the exact
time of consumption.

There will be a cost savings that will be generated by not having the meter
readers out in the field all of the time because meter readers don't just cost their
salary, they cost in benefits, retirement, and insurance that we have to match.
These savings are permanent so the system will more than pay for itself over a
period of time.

This is also something that our providers will soon be moving to, so had we
chosen to delay this, the Sierra Electric Cooperative may have mandated this in
a few years anyway.

The last criteria we set in the selection of the provider, was the future capability
to incorporate the same concept for water meters and the reading of those
meters.

Commissioner Szigeti moved to approve the Award RFP No. 18-19-007 for
Advanced Meter Infrastructure (AMI) Project to LNG. Mayor Pro-Tem Clark
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

IEPORTS:

City Manager Madrid reported the following:

Our new phone systems were set ug week and the conversion was
nrorece nf adant nag $1¢ \AZ l|

{ S € . or

notb bie to leave a mail for another couple of days, but f most
part hone calls are 2xactly to where they togo
We Jgh‘ K at the possible use of the infiatable

t the Swim 'nms ool and tnere were some concerns with the r'a':empnt
of the electrical outlets and the safe’y of the use of that

The enqineer didn W { nsale
to use. With that Bo | ley co ted the Eiectrical Inspector from the
Construction Industries Divis

lorwunately, we didn't g ie review from him either so it do ok

like we will be able i use thal dome. However, we are g into alternative
igns and we can use some of the iunds from the New Mexico Finance

Authority that has already | i few desians from
roominantac that have dane Hhic in f.\,. . o Tne

Qf T 23 MAS nred r -"-_' '-'\.JW Du’ t h
something we should pian for in the future. Those designs will he 1 N

hitect and from there we will develop cost estimates on a few different ideas to
enclose the
He invited everyone to meet with him tonight at 6:00 p.m. here in the Chambers
as part of our Public Input Process
bin ref 1 the following:

P

None.

Page 6 of 7



Supplement — Ariel Dougherty Appeal — Resolution 5-21/22  August 18, 2021 pg4

Supplement B — City Ordinances, State Law, the US Constitution, Census Data, and

Litigation Compelling the FCC to revisit Radiofrequency Radiation Guidelines in
Consideration of this Appeal

1) From the City's Municipal Code
Sec. 14-45. - Electrical rates.

Customer charge means a flat charge for providing the availability of service.
( d) Residential

(2) New rate per month or part thereof for each service location.

Customer charge, per month: ..... $8.00

2) From New Mexico State Statue

Chapter 62 - Electric, Gas and Water Utilities
Article 8 - Duties and Restrictions Imposed Upon Public Utilities
Section 62-8-1 - Rates.

Every rate made, demanded or received by any public utility shall be just and reasonable.
3) From Preamble of the US Constitution:

"We the People of the United States, in Order to form a more perfect Union, establish
Justice, insure domestic Tranquility, provide for the common defense, promote the general
Welfare, and secure the Blessings of Liberty to ourselves and our Posterity, do ordain and
establish this Constitution for the United States of America."

As well as Constitutional Amendments 8, 9 and 10 Under the Bill of Rights.
4 ) Due Process

A. 635 (1940) requirements of procedual due process in administrative proceedings:
1) The right to a hearing and to submit evidence
2) Tribunal must consider the evidence presented
3) The tribunal must be impartial

B. Due process under the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments can be broken down into two
categories: procedural due process and substantive due process.

5) Sierra County Ranks 4" in New Mexico Poverty Rate Adults (18+ Years) with
Disabilities by County as of 2019

The following chart is on page 63 of the fuller document, “U.S. and N.M. Data
Maps, Section Two”, available here: https://www.hsd.state.nm.us/wp-content/uploads/2021-



Supplement - Ariel Dougherty Appeal — Resolution 5-21/22  August 18, 2021 pgs

New Mexico Poverty Rate Adults (18+ Years) with Disabilities by County as of 2019

Poverty Rate Adults with Disabilities
: e 45 514

- m
——
o
oo NN + «
—
woveo RN % *
—_—
.
oxero (T
"
-
secero (IR » ©
"

e

I—Ncw Mexico Poverty Rate Adults

ir

with Disabilities: 30.6

60 10 6 e
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2019 American Community Survey 5-Yeor Estimates, dato.census.gov
Note: The U.S. map on the previous poge uses ACS 1-yeor estimates and this map uses ACS 5-yeor estimotes.

2021 Data Book New Mexico Human Services Department

Section 2 | Demographic Data U.S. & New Mexico

6) 08/13/21 BIG TECH)» NEWS
‘Historic Win’: CHD Wins Case Against FCC on Safety Guidelines for 5G and

Wireless

The U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit court ruled the Federal Communications
Commission failed to provide a reasoned explanation for its determination that its current

guidelines adequately protect against harmful effects of exposure to radiofrequency
radiation.

This historic case was filed by CHD on Feb. 2, 2020. The case
challenged the agency’s decision not to review its 25-year-old radio-
frequency emissions (RF) guidelines which regulate the radiation

emitted by wireless technology devices (such as cell bhones and
iPads) and infrastructure (cell towers, Wi-Fi anc smart-meters), ..nd to

promulgate biologically and evidence-based guigeiines tnat
adequately protect public health.

Read whole article:

guidelines-5g-wireless/

63



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Ariel Dougherty, Appellant stated that she contends that part of the budget that the $8 fee
goes into goes to paying the meter readers.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister stated that it is her understanding that the $8 charge is for having
a meter... period.

Commissioner Luna stated that the $50 fee was established for those who wanted a
special meter because it was a special process. There is a fee when you want to do
something different than everybody else so regardless of what the normal fee or $8 fee
is, the fee being appealed is the $50 trip fee. She simply cannot excuse the fact that Ms.
Dougherty wants a special meter. Therefore, she needs to pay for that, as does anybody
else who wants that service.

Commissioner Luna made a motion to deny Ariel Dougherty’s appeal of Resolution
No. 05 21/22 and keep the $50 monthly trip fee. Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister seconded
the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Discussion/Action: Ron Fenn Public Appeal in regards to Resolution
No. 05 21/22 imposing a $50 monthly trip fee to customers desiring to
retain their digital meters:

Ron Fenn, Appellant stated that his appeal is in the packet along with the Commission’s
signed oath of office to uphold the constitution and the laws of the State of New Mexico.
(Complete copy of appeal attached hereto, and made a part hereof).

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister made a motion to deny Ron Fenn’s appeal of Resolution
No. 05 21/22 and keep the $50 monthly trip fee. Commissioner Baca seconded the
motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Discussion/Action: Approval of NM Workforce Connection Building
Lease:

City Manager Swingle explained that this is a lease with NM Workforce Connections.
Their current lease has expired, and we have negotiated a new lease with them. The
lease that they have been operating under for the last couple of years gave them the
ability to sub-lease the space to whomever they chose to and collect the revenue, and
keep it for themselves. The leasable space is about 5900 square feet. We have taken
that mechanism out. The city will lease that space and will retain rent for that. This
agreement is for the NM Workforce Connection to have 1560 square feet of the building,
and the lease is a 60-month lease. The fee for rear one is $1,000. We currently charge
$900 per month. The lease will increase $100 per year after that.

Page 8 of 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Commissioner Baca moved to approve the NM Workforce Connection Building
Lease. Commissioner Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister seconded the motion. Roll call
was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

4. Discussion/Action: Agreement to Provide GIS Addressing Services
between the County of Sierra and the City of Truth or Consequences:

City Manager Swingle explained the City of Truth or Consequences, the City of Elephant
Butte, and the Village of Williamsburg does not have GIS capabilities or staff that provide
that service. Sierra County has an individual who is doing GIS. It is not financially feasible
for all entities to hire their own individuals and pay them to provide the service so the
County stepped up to the plate, and offered to extend the GIS services to all of the
governmental entities for that service. The fee is $50 per hour, which is the individual's
salary and benefits. We need a lot of improvement with our plating and mapping, and the
only way to get that done is to hire someone to do that full time or hire a company to come
in and do it for us. The most feasible solution for us is to partner with the County, and
utilize their services.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister moved to approve the agreement to Provide GIS
Addressing Services between the County of Sierra and the City of Truth or
Consequences. Commissioner Aragon seconded the motion. Roll call was taken
by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

5. Discussion/Action: Review and approval of the 2021 Holiday Schedule
for the employees of the City of Truth or Consequences:

City Manager Swingle explained that he realizes that this is coming to the Commission
late in the year. However, it was just brought to his attention that the Holiday Schedules
for the employees of the City of Truth or Consequences have been approved by the City
Manager and not the Commission. The City Commission should approve the holiday’s
whether they are federal holidays or important to the community. In December, you will
see the entire Holiday schedule for 2022.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister moved to approve the 2021 employee Holiday Schedule

for the remainder of 2021. Commissioner Baca seconded the motion. Roll call was
taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

Page 9 0f 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

H. REPORTS:

City Manager Swingle reported the following:

We recently had a meeting with the Sierra County Animal Rescue Society and
they have volunteered to cover 100% of the spade and neutering of all cats in the
facilities if there is an intent to release them out or have them adopted. They also
agreed to authorize spade and neutering of 1 dog per month. They are also
looking into other options including fundraising to see if they can increase that for
the dogs as well. We really appreciate them for stepping up to the plate.

He gave kudos to the Water Department. The Water employees were out all last
weekend to make sure that the lift station was operating properly.

He gave kudos to Ruby Otero in the Finance Department for assisting some
ladies who were lost in the community. She went above and beyond to help
them, and that is exactly what we want our employees to do.

There will be a special Hospital Board meeting tomorrow at 1:30 p.m. and the
regular meeting is on September 21, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.

We have an auditor entrance meeting today at 1:30 p.m. to start the process of
our audit.

Every employee is attending the professionalism training which is a 3-hour block
of training and education. Our last class is scheduled for tomorrow. However, we
will have an additional class for those who were not able to attend the other
classes. Supervision and leadership trainings will be held after the
professionalism trainings are completed.

The water rates are set to increase based on the ordinance that was approved by
the Commission. The ordinance states that the increases will be done in July.
However, we have to do the annual CIP rate, and they are based on whatever
the overall CIP rate is. The rates will be shown on the bills in September.

City Attorney Rubin had no report.

City Commission Reports:

Commissioner Luna reported the following:

Today we heard comments about this Commission’s education and intelligence,
and that we are here for them. She couldn’t disagree more because we are here
to represent all of the people. That doesn’t mean that we represent the vocal
minority. We represent everyone. Those who are afraid to come to these
meetings and speak up, but they call us privately. Our neighbors, and our
constituents who send them text messages, and emails, and visit with them
regularly. Those who don't get to be heard during these meetings because they
count on the Commission to represent them so, please do not think we are here
to represent you alone. We are here to represent all of our constituents, their
families, business owners, tourists to our community, and those who have not
moved here yet. We are here to weigh out the facts, hear those sides, and not
represent one person or one side. She realizes that doesn't play to the favor of

Page 10 of 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

those who attend these meetings regularly, but it is our job to look to the future of
our community, watch our budget, and pay attention to the growth. She thinks it
was clear today during the public hearing that when ideas are brought to the
table without attacks, we are eager to consider them. However, making these
attacks on this Commission, our staff, and our leadership is no way to work
together, and if we truly want to see progress within our community, she asks
that we all do just that. Let's work together in a positive way with positive ideas.
Let's move past the attacks and the negativity, and lets finally help our
community to grow.

Commissioner Baca reported the following:

He agreed with Commissioner Luna. That was well said.

The petition of Resolution No. 05 21/22 was brought up again today, and yes 200
plus people signed it, but he thinks that a lot of them were mis-informed. The $50
fee is only for the people who opted-out.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister reported the following:

She feels like Commissioner Luna summed it up really well. She also
appreciated Mr. Bauer's comment. We do want to encourage those valuable
solutions. We are here to listen to the solutions, but the attacks on them, and the
city employees does not get anybody anywhere.

The 911 memorial unveiling event will be held at the village of Williamsburg.

Mayor Whitehead reported the following:

She concurs with her fellow Commissioners. We seem to be attacked all of the
time in one way or another. It's not only towards the Commission, but it's also
towards the employees and department heads, and even sometimes towards the
City Manager. We need to all work together, and City Manager Swingle is more
than willing to sit down and discuss things with the public. A lot of things that are
coming before them in public comment can easily be talked to through
administration. That is what the City Manager is here for, and if he cannot address
something, he brings it to the Commission.

She knows that Commissioner Luna has not been present for a few meetings, but
she has participated telephonically. There are times that we have lost her due to
the connection, but today she has been on the phone throughout the who meeting,
and she has been participating.

Commissioner Aragon reported the following:

He asked City Manager Swingle to look into the matter of Rotary Park being
purchased that was brought up by Mr. Dumiak.

He asked City Manager Swingle to look into the billboard that was mentioned by
Ms. Dougherty.

He asked about the overgrowth of vegetation that was mentioned by Ron
Pacourek.

Page 11 0f 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Rotary Park response:
City Manager Swingle stated that he will absolutely look into it. However, it is not

unusual for property to be bought and sold all of the time. He doesn’t understand what
the significance of land out there is to anyone other than the land owner. We are not
selling our land, and the only other land that he knows of in that area belongs to the
Bureau of Reclamation. If it is a private resident selling land, he doesn’t understand the
issue.

Billboard response:

City Manager Swingle stated that the billboard mentioned in public comment is not our
billboard. He will however, look into getting the Election Information accessible to the
public.

Overgrowth of vegetation:

City Manager Swingle stated that Code Enforcement has been out, and has been citing
and working with a lot of property owners. However, he will be more than happy to have
Code Enforcement take a look at it to see what the situation is.

. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
1. Threatened & Pending Litigation (Clover Leaf Water Rights Case)
pursuant to 10-15-1(H.7):

Commissioner Baca made a motion to go into executive session at 10:55 a.m. to
discuss Threatened & Pending Litigation (Clover Leaf Water Rights Case) pursuant
to 10-15-1(H.7). Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister seconded the motion. Roll call vote was
taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Whitehead reconvened the meeting in open session at 11:13 a.m.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister certified that only matters pertaining to Threatened &
Pending Litigation (Clover Leaf Water Rights Case) pursuant to 10-15-1(H.7) was
discussed in Executive Session and no action was taken.

J. ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Baca moved to adjourn at 11:14 a.m. Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

Passed and Approved this 22" day of September, 2021.

Page 12 0f 13



CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela A. Torres, CMC, City Clerk

Page 13 of 13



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: E2
MEETING DATE: September 22,2021

SUBJECT: Accounts Payable — August 2021
DEPARTMENT: Finance

DATE SUBMITTED: September 10, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Ruby Otero, Accounts Payable

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: City Manager- Bruce Swingle

Summary/Background:

According to Sec. 2-28 of the Municipal Code related to Publication of expenditures:

Each month there may be published a summary of expenditures made during the preceding calendar month,
which shall include a list of the total expenditures during the month, the amount spent in connection with
each budgetary item, and a summary of all receipts; provided, however, that the publication mentioned in
this section shall be made only at the discretion of the Commission if it shall deem such publication
necessary in the public interest.

Recommendation:

Approve the Accounts Payable summary for August 2021

Attachments:

e End of Month Accounts Payable Report by Fund

Fiscal Impact (Finance): Yes

All Funds Summary is a total of $ 737,769.43

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A
N/A

Approved For Submittal By: [ ] Department Director
Reviewed by: City Clerk X Finance [ Legal Other: Ruby Otero-Vallejos, Account Payable

Final Approval: [1 City Manager

—— —

=

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. N/A  Ordinance No. N/A

Continued To: - Referred To: -

[J Approved [J Denied [JOther: Click here to enter text.
File Name: CC Agenda 9-22-2021




Accounts Payable Transfer Sheet - 20-21 FY
Post Date Ending: 8/6/21,8/13/21,8/20/21,8/25/21,8/27/21

Fund

101
201
209
211
214
216
217
292
293
294
295
296
298
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
320
360
403
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
600
700

Fund
Description

General

Local Government Corrections
State Fire

Law Enforcement Protection
Lodger's Tax

Street Renovation

Municipal Recreation

Federal Seizure Share
Veterans Wall Perpetual

State Library

Municipal Pool

PD-GRT Fund

PD-Donations

Electrical Construction
Veterans Memorial

SJOA - Grants

Capital Improvement General
Captial Improvement Joint Utility
Golf Course Improvements
USDA -Sweeper
USDA-Wastewater
R&R-Emergency

R&R-Sewer

R&R-Airport

R&R-Water

CDBG - Grant

Cl Reserve- Non Capital Equipment
Emergency Reserve

USDA Water System Improvements
NMFA PROJECTS

Pledge State Tax

Cemetery

Utility Office

Electric Dept

Water Dept

Solid Waste

WasteWater

Solid Waste Landfill/Collection
Golf Course

Municipal Airport

Internal Service Fund

PD Bond

Grand Total-Accounts Payable

Fund Totals

Fund

GRAND TOTAL Numbers

8/6/2021 8/13/2021 8/20/2021 8/25/2021 8/27/2021 8/27/2021 TRANSFERS
[T $66,375.78 $8,315.33 | $17,197.89 $150.00 $11,736.16 $6,669.06] $110,444.22
$144.00 $3,325.00 $3,469.00
$3,082.53 $483.22 $725.73 $4,291.48

— $7,938.20 $416.66 $878.42 $9,233.28
$1,429.88 $360.26 | $10,316.04 $9,436.95 $21,543.13
$23.75 $274.59 $298.34

$2,331.48 $543.64 $1,682.49 $4,557.61
$295.36 $295.36

$643.20 $643.20

— $0.00

$143.73 $143.73

$29,388.56 $29,388.56

$18,834.93 — $18,834.93
$472.25 $472.25 |

$3,255.08 $1,310.46 $3,445.02 $8,010.56

[ $43,787.06 | $276,659.84 | $90,329.75 $7,187.75 $417,964.40
~$16,605.37 |  $7,079.02| $1,702.60 $1,787.81 $27,174.80
$6,930.15 $7,228.65 | $37,962.78 $1,960.18 $54,081.76
$9,229.28 $4,989.41 | $1,442.00 $830.70 $16,491.48
$1,052.92 $1,507.84 $2,666.58 $5,227.34 |
$42.00 $1,708.94 $109.34 $588.53 $2,448.81
$2,491.51 $143.20 $120.48 $2,756.19 |
$183,530.17 | $305,192.37 | $168,590.46 $30,526.32 $43,261.05 $6,669.06 | $737,769.43

101
201
209
211
214
216
217
292
293
294
295
296
298
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
31
312
313
314
315
316
320
360
403
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
600
700



Truth or Consequences

| hereby approve the issuance of these payments.

FINANCE DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE

Vendor Name

Fund: 101 - General
CITY UTILITIES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G...

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
GRAINGER, INC.

XEROX CORP.

XEROX CORP.

XEROX CORP.

XEROX CORP.

TURTLEBACK PEST CONTROL, I...

SIERRA COUNTY CLERK
MANANA

SIERRA COUNTY SENTINEL
SIERRA COUNTY SENTINEL
SIERRA COUNTY SENTINEL
SIERRA COUNTY SENTINEL
SIERRA COUNTY SENTINEL
SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

DATE:

Payable Number

07/21/21
1F66-7DJF-FL36
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
239085
7215
816854
816854
816854
816854
816854
9971782827
013889889
014027014
014027015,014027013
014027016
07082021
08042021
107-21
107571
107682
107690
107703

107746,107712,107701,107573
159266/6,159535/6,159517/6

159286/6
159286/6
159502/6
159502/6
159502/6
159502/6
159502/6
159502/6
159502/6
159502/6

Post Date

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021

Expense Approval Report

PAYABLE APPROVAL

Description {Item)

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...
30 FT. INFLATABLE PROJECTOR...
NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

NM RETIREE HEALTH

IT SERVICES JULY 1, 2021 - SEPT...
MAINTENANCE - JULY
MAINTENANCE - JULY
MAINTENANCE - JULY
MAINTENANCE - JULY
MAINTENANCE - JULY

DIAL HAND SOAP REFILL CATRI...
XEROX CHARGE/METER USAGE
BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE-...
BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE - ...
BASE CHARGE - METER USAGE ...
OPEN PO FOR PEST CONTROLS...
OPEN PO FOR FY 21/22 - RECO...
OPEN PO-LANDSCAPING SERVI...
HELP WANTED ADS FY21-22 - O...
HELP WANTED ADS FY21-22 - O...
HELP WANTED ADS FY21-22 - O...
HELP WANTED ADS FY21-22 - O...
OPEN PO FOR FY 21/22 PUBLIC...
SUN VALLEY OPEN P.O. JULY 20...
PLAIN SINGLE SIDED KEY
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT

MULTIPLIER TOOL

22-14AWG BOX CONNECTOR
14X14X1 FBG FURNANCE FILTER
WEED EATER SPOOL AUTO CUT...
16X20X2 PREPLEAT FILTER

90Z HD CONSTRUCTION ADHES...
WEED EATER HEAD AUTO CUT ...

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

By Fund

Payable Dates 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

101-1018-43780
101-1014-44613
101-1001-41226
101-1002-41226
101-1003-41226
101-1004-41226
101-1006-41226
101-1007-41226
101-1008-41226
101-1009-41226
101-1009-41226
101-1010-41226
101-1011-41226
101-1012-41226
101-1014-41226
101-1016-41226
101-1018-48598
101-1007-43316
101-1007-47420
101-1008-47420
101-1009-47420
101-1014-47420
101-1014-44607
101-1040-43465
101-1001-43465
101-1004-43465
101-1007-43465
101-1014-43403
101-1001-43740
101-1009-47415
101-1004-43740
101-1004-43740
101-1004-43740
101-1004-43740
101-1001-43740
101-1009-44607
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44607

Amount

7,094.56
629.99
151.20

43.87
260.54
236.57
106.80
733.57
116.28
136.73

77.30

64.80
280.34
112.80
162.00
180.73
984.84

45.00

91.50

20.00
114.00

57.25
669.20
103.84
354.78
562.11
267.66
728.04
100.00
900.00
238.23

10.25

97.01

14.75
484.67
126.53

4.77
-0.24
-26.37

34.99

16.98

71.76

23.98
203.76

77.88

25.99

Page 1 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

SUN VALLEY, INC.

O'REILLY AUTO PARTS, INC.
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SILVERSKY, INC.

TRANS UNION RISK & ALTERNAT..
JAIME F. RUBIN, LLC

QUEST DIAGNOSTICS, INC.
VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

LASTING PAWS PET MEMORIAL ...
MELLOY CJDR

TOS

TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
COPPLER LAW FIRM, P.C.
SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL / SIERR...
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
KING'S LOCKSMITH

SIERRA VETERINARY SERVICES,L...
WEX BANK

WEX BANK

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

WEX BANK

TURTLEBACK PEST CONTROL, I...
WEX BANK

LASTING PAWS PET MEMORIAL ...
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
THE LINE, LLC

WINDSTREAM CORPORATION
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

Payable Number

159502/6
2162-459615
286270
286270
286274
286710
286710
286711
286897
286897
286899
286899
287241
287241
287241
436013-SI
485949-202107-1
80121
9194117974
9884905705
9884905705
9884905705
LC10391-1-0016
R20147
002157
178833
300342
330849
341128
341128
341128
341128
530766
582302
627273
674724
737361
737361
737361
737361
737361
783215
788516
802548
850945
917675
15062
179851
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484
235484

Post Date

08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Description (Item)

TRIMMER LINE
BALL MOUNT
OIL FILTER

AIR FILTER
REMANUFACTURED STARTER
AIR FILTER

OIL FILTER LD
BATTERY SILVER
OIL FILTER

CABIN AIR FILTER
OILFILTER LD
AIR FILTER

BATTERY CHARGER FOR DUMP ...

BATTERY FOR DUMP TRAILER
FORD F-150 FILTER MAINTENA...

EMAIL SERVICE OPEN PO FY21/...
MONTHLY CHARGE FOR TLO SO...
OPEN PO FOR LEGAL SERVICES ...
SCREENING & MRO FEE FY21-22..

PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
ANIMAL CREMATION

2020 DODGE RAM 3500 CREW ...
INTERNET SERVICE/PD OPEN PO..
OPEN PO FY21/22 FUEL PURCH...
OPEN PO FOR LEGAL SERVICES ...
COLLECTION FEE FY21-22 OPEN...

BATTERY TERMINAL

BATTERY CABLE L;,UG
BATTERY CABLE LUG
BATTERY CABLE LUG

KEYS AND OTHER LOCKSMITH I...

VETERNINARY SERVICES
OPEN PO FOR FUEL FY 21/22

FUEL FOR ANIMAL CONTROL/C...

PHONE MESSAGE BOOKS
COPY PAPER 5 REAMS/CARTON

NAMEPLATE FOR BRUCE'S OFFt...
BUSINESS CARDS FOR TRACI 25...
BUSINESS CARDS FOR DAVE 250...
FUEL FOR ANIMAL CONTROL/C...
OPEN PO FOR PEST CONTROL S...

UNLEADED FUEL WEX CARD
ANIMAL CREMATION

TESTOS FUEL/OIL OPEN P.O. FY ...

MECHANICS WEAR GLOVES
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

101-1014-44607
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1009-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1009-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1009-44607
101-1009-44607
101-1009-47420
101-1018-43815
101-1007-43815
101-1000-43597
101-1004-48599
101-1003-43775
101-1007-43775
101-1008-43775
101-1006-48599
101-1014-80810
101-1007-43775
101-1013-43316
101-1000-43597
101-1004-48599
101-1009-47420
101-1009-47420
101-1009-47420
101-1009-47420
101-1014-43403
101-1006-48598
101-1003-43316
101-1008-43316
101-1003-44606
101-1003-44606
101-1003-44606
101-1010-44606
101-1014-44607
101-1008-43316
101-1014-43403
101-1014-43316
101-1006-48599
101-1009-43316
101-1007-42620
101-1003-43775
101-1001-41226
101-1002-41226
101-1003-41226
101-1004-41226
101-1006-41226
101-1007-41226
101-1008-41226
101-1009-41226
101-1009-41226
101-1010-41226
101-1011-41226
101-1012-41226

Amount

71.98
54.99
4.03
7.99
129.79
10.21
4.03
123.82
4.23
1031
8.06
15.98
59.99
89.19
8.26
183.76
113.00
4,413.71
272.00
41.29
247.74
82.58
425.60
43,202.00
149.00
67.32
645.63
200.00
2.63
2.37
1.72
3.52
53.79
65.10
93.01
3,415.35
15.56
167.34
8.54
15.29
15.29
757.92
728.04
464.61
486.10
957.20
163.60
117.10
150.98
43.87
221.66
202.37
86.64
733.57
155.88
136.73
77.30
64.80
280.34
112.80

Page 2 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
REED'S TIRE CENTER
REED'S TIRE CENTER
ALARM CONTROL TECHNOLOGI...
MPG SERVICES, LLC
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC
BRADY INDUSTRIES, LLC
CITY UTILITIES

XEROX CORP.

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
CITY UTILITIES

SIERRA COUNTY FLOOD COMISS..
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
NU-WAY LAUNDRY & CLEANERS
OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE DEPOT

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
NM ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF..
XEROX CORP.

XEROX CORP.

LAS CRUCES LA CROSSE
BANK OF AMERICA
MICHAEL LANFORD
BEATRICE SANDERS
ARENAS VALLEY ANIMAL CLINIC,..
ARCHIVESOCIAL INC.
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION

Payable Number

235484
235484
262388
262388
339283
390103
416558
416558
416558
423897
423897
513069
513154
51885
54124
599883
60741
60741
60741
659784
659784
671497
708205
708205
708205
708205
708205
708205
708205
708205
708205
708205
708205
902075
902075
902075
995734
08092021

014128739/014128738

014128743
016440
05660
08/27/21
08/27/21
10002605
16493
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832
18376832

Post Date

08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/25/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

Description (Item)

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
285 70 R17 IRONMAN TIRES

245 55 R18 BF GOODRICH TIRES
FIRE ALARM MONITORING

REPAIR A/C UNIT AT P.D. PARTS...

HUB ASSEMBLY

BRAKE PADS

BRAKE PADS

FUEL CHARGE

TRASH LINER 30X36 WHITE

CITY LANDFILL BILLS/OPEN PO F...

METER USAGE OPEN PO 21/22
CAMSHAFT POSITION SENSOR

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..

ANNUAL FLOODPLAIN MANAG...
BUSINESS CARDS FOR TARA M...
BUSINESS CARDS FOR RYAN LA...
BUSINESS CARDS FOR PAT O'H...
AIR FILTER

OIL FILTER

CARPET CLEANING SERVICE
SHARPIE GEL PENS BLACK 12 C...

DRY-ERASE WHITEBOARD 36'X ...

FILE FOLDERS 100 COUNT
HP 63XL BLACK INK
COPY PAPER 500 SHEETS A RE...

SHARPIE GEL PENS RED 12 COU...
USB 2.0 FLASH DRIVE 16GB PAC...

CLASP ENVELOPES 100 COUNT
HP 63XL TRICOLOR INK

EXPO LOW ORDER DRY ERASE ...
SHARPIE GEL PENS BLUE 12 CO...
WINDSHIELD WIPERS
WINDSHIELD WIPERS
WINDSHIELD WIPERS

HD RUBBER MAT BLACK 4PC
NEW MEMBER REGISTRATION-...
XEROX CHARGE/METER USAGE

BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE F...
REISSUE OF DEPOSIT REFUND F...

DRINKS, SNACKS, & FRUIT

SETTLEMENT FOR RELEASE AGR...

NMML JUDGES CONFERENCE
GETTING ANIMALS FIXED

ANNUAL ARCHIVE FEE FOR SOC...

PILOT G2 BLUE PENS

SMALL BINDER CLIPS3
DURACELL AA BATTERIES
BLACK BIC PENS

16G8 USB (5PK)

SHEET PROTECTORS

FOIL CERTIFICATE PAPER
PARCHMENT PAPER

RED INK REFILL

3" X 3" POST-IT NOTES

PILOT G2 BLACK PENS

SILVER CERTIFICATE PAPER 15PK
13/8" X 17/8" POST-IT NOTES
8.5" X 11" QUILL COPY PAPER

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

101-1014-41226
101-1016-41226
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1014-47410
101-1014-43403
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1014-43316
101-1014-44607
101-1018-43780
101-1003-43465
101-1007-47420
101-1018-43780
101-1010-48598
101-1006-44606
101-1009-44606
101-1016-44606
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1014-44607
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-44606
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-47420
101-1007-43770
101-1040-43465
101-1009-43465
101-1099-34348
101-1000-44606
101-1000-45607
101-1002-42720
101-1006-48598
101-1001-43770
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606
101-1001-44606

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Amount

162.00
180.73
720.00
700.00
53.94
533.71
169.73
45.15
49.18
4.00
350.30
155.72
357.30
31.13
5,153.04
5,000.00
15.29
15.29
15.29
7.99
4.03
157.77
24.20
42.39
3234
101.73
174.95
12.10
45.69
14.00
213.66
23.64
24.20
8.99
8.99
17.98
23.80
150.00
246.47
227.28
50.00
57.09
6,669.06
217.88
377.26
2,388.00
7.19
5.10
53.98
6.56
24.95
29.32
37.30
43.19
5.84
22.13
5.84
14.03
13.76
289.90

Page 3 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

SIERRA COUNTY TREASURER
DONA ANA BRANCH COMMUNI...
BANK OF AMERICA

BANK OF AMERICA

BANK OF AMERICA

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
SIERRA VETERINARY SERVICES,L...
JCG TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
REED'S TIRE CENTER

REED'S TIRE CENTER

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS
INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION ...
BANK OF AMERICA

Fund: 201 - Corrections
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF

NM JUDICIAL EDUCATION CENT...
SIERRA COUNTY TREASURER

Fund: 209 - Fire

CITY UTILITIES

FIRE PROGRAMS SOFTWARE
LYNN'S LANDSCAPE
WINDSTREAM CORPORATION
CITY UTILITIES

XEROX CORP.

TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 214 - Lodgers Tax

SUNNY 505

SUNNY 505

LINDMARK OUTDOOR MEDIA
GERONIMO TRAIL SCENIC BYW...
RUANNA WALDRUM

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Payable Number

18376832
18376832
18376832
2018
2021-0003
299517
299517
299517
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530
3482329530

61967,61993,61619

8142

9688

9688
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
9886311871
LI880358

$1158CW43170490

073121
073121
838540

07/21/21
206661
9216
179851
54124
014027034
3656
9886311871

16461
16461

INV15843/INV15842

872743
0001061

Post Date

08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/20/2021

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/13/2021
08/25/2021

Description {Item)

MINI BINDER CLIPS

MEDIUM BINDER CLIPS
MANUSCRIPT REPORT COVERS
PROPERTY TAXES OWED

CDL TRAINING

TAX

DISCOUNT

DOG FOOD

TRU RED REINFORCED FILE POC...
POST-IT SIGN HERE MESSAGE F...
BROTHER TZ-£141 LABEL MAKE...
TRU RED FILE POCKETS 5.25 EX...
COPY PAPER LEGAL SIZE 20L8S ...
2'X2' POST-IT NOTE CUBES 400...
WRITE-ON TAB DIVIDER 8 TAB ...
UNI-BALL 207 RETRACTABLE GE...
TRU RED ONE-TOUCH DX-4 DES...
POST-IT FLAGES 1'X1.7' BLUE 1...
VETERNINARY SERVICES

JCG RECORDING SUPPORT SERV...

265 70R 17 IRONMAN

245 55R 18 BF GOODRICH
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

NEW MEMBER CLASS REGISTRA...

MIDEA 18-CU FT TOP-FREEZER ...

PAY DWI & COURT AUTO FEES ...
PAY JUDICIAL FEES FY 21/22 OP...
PRISONER CARE OPEN PO FY JU...

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...
ANNUAL ACCESS/SUPPORT/UP...

MONTHLY CLEAN UP AT NORTH...

PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..
BASE CHARGE/METER USAGE O...

FUEL ALL TRUCK - OPEN PO FY ...
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

GRANT MANAGEMENT
ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT

CITY ADVERTISING-OPEN PO-FY...
OPEN PO FOR LODGERS TAX SE...
WEBSITE AND MULTI-MEDIA U...

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number Amount
101-1001-44606 4.83
101-1001-44606 7.80
101-1001-44606 21.59
101-1010-48555 290.25
101-1009-42720 200.00
101-1006-44607 75.03
101-1006-44607 -220.80
101-1006-44607 1,103.52
101-1004-44606 36.98
101-1004-44606 10.80
101-1004-44606 26.38
101-1004-44606 21.90
101-1004-44606 48.85
101-1004-44606 5.29
101-1004-44606 9.96
101-1004-44606 9.28
101-1004-44606 7.56
101-1004-44606 4.68
101-1006-48598 328.49
101-1001-47410 450.00
101-1007-47420 720.00
101-1007-47420 700.00
101-1001-43775 279.24
101-1002-43775 172.92
101-1003-43775 274.04
101-1004-43775 251.60
101-1006-43775 110.12
101-1007-43775 1,004.81
101-1008-43775 137.87
101-1009-43775 146.06
101-1010-43775 93.88
101-1011-43775 142.80
101-1012-43775 86.46
101-1014-43775 115.42
101-1008-42720 395.00
101-1003-44613 540.48
Fund 101 - General Total: 110,444.22
201-1903-44805 96.00
201-1903-44805 48.00
201-1903-48710 3,325.00
Fund 201 - Corrections Total: 3,469.00
209-1603-43780 189.50
209-1603-43815 2,497.00
209-1603-47415 396.03
209-1603-43775 119.64
209-1603-43780 363.58
209-1603-43465 344.85
209-1603-43316 192.02
209-1603-43775 188.86
Fund 209 - Fire Total: 4,291.48
214-2503-47597 6,557.72
214-2503-48599 539.38
214-2503-47597 841.10
214-2503-48599 416.66
214-2503-60596 878.42
Fund 214 - Lodgers Tax Total: 9,233.28

Page 4 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

Fund: 216 - Muni Street
FOXWORTH-GALBRAITH
FOXWORTH-GALBRAITH
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS, INC.
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
BARTOO SAND & GRAVEL, INC.
B & HOILCO.

PETE'S EQUIPMENT, INC.
HOLLY ASPHALT COMPANY

Fund: 294 - State Library
XEROX CORP.

DS

VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 295 - Muni Pool
CITY UTILITIES

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
JERIMAH MILLIGAN
XEROX CORP.

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
QUILL CORPORATION
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
LIFEGUARD STORE INC
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION

Payable Number

285901
285901
816854
2162-457170
286358
286898
286898
286898
286898
287246
287247
287327
287327
802436
379063
568560
0031449
201146095

324211
08012021
9886311871

07/21/21
239085
530239
014027023
235484
60741
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504
626504

001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...
001105729/001108823/00110...

17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354

Post Date

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/13/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

Description (Item)

LINE TRIMMER
LOPPER BYPASS 28"
MAINTENANCE - JULY
ALTERNATOR

CABIN AIR FILTER
HYDRAULIC FITTING
HYDRAULIC HOSE
HYDRAULIC FITTING
HYDRAULIC CRIMPS
BATTERY SILVER

12 VOLT COMMERCIAL BATTERY

UPPER RADIATOR HOSE
WATER PUMP

GAS/DIESEL FUEL PURCHASES- ...

HOTMIX

RED DIESEL
SIDEBROOM
CSS-1P (FOG SEAL)

METER USAGE - OPEN PO FY 20...
INTERNET SERVICE LIBRARY OP...
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...

NM RETIREE HEALTH

POOL DEPOSIT - JERMIAH MILLI...
BASE CHARGE /METER USAGE
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
BUSINESS CARDS FOR KYLE BLA...
RISE GUARD FEMALE SHORTS
GUARD PULLOVER JACKET

RISE GUARD FLEX BOARD SHO...
DOLFIN GUARD WATER SHORTS
RISE LIFEGUARD ONE PIECE BA...

RISE GUARD TOP

RISE GUARD SWIMMING TOPS

TYR GUARD HAT

TYR GUARD WOMENS TOP
RISE FEMALE FLEX SHORTS

RISE GUARD VISOR

GUARD SUNGLASSES
LIFEGUARD T-SHIRTS
AQUATIC DIVE BRICK

LIFEGUARD STQAND CHAIR
UMEBRELLAS FOR TABLES AND ...
POCKET MASKS FOR AADULT/I...
100FT OF 3/4IN DEEP END ROPE

DEEP END ROPE FLOATS
PERFORM CPR SIGNS

BAG VALVE MASK, ADULT, CHIL...
OSHA AQUATICS FIRST AID KIT

SHIPPING

3/4IN DEEP END ROPE HOOKS

12 PACK OF RED PENS
12 PACK OF BLUE PENS

200 PACK OF JUMBO PAPER CLI...

1-1/2" BINDER

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

216-4503-44607
216-4503-44607
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-47420
216-4503-43316
216-4503-43550
216-4503-43316
216-4503-47420
216-4503-43550

Fund 216 - Muni Street Total:

294-5003-43465
294-5003-60834
294-5003-43775

Fund 294 - State Library Total:

295-4803-43780
295-4803-41226
295-4803-34355
295-4803-43465
295-4803-41226
295-4803-44606
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42620
295-4803-44615
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42720
295-4803-44613
295-4803-44613
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44615
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Amount

47.97
32.99
359.10
223.96
11.43
19.09
28.80
17.33
12.00
247.64
258.22
9.32
162.03
360.26
8,246.00
2,070.04
35.78
9,401.17
21,543.13

23.75
105.95
168.64
298.34

2,206.01
40.10
50.00
35.37
40.10
15.29
44.00

105.00
42.00
32.00
32.00
28.00
28.00
27.00
25.00
20.50

8.75
96.00

178.50
34.50

160.00

364.00
42.50
43.00
95.40
97.00

100.50

129.00

171.49
30.00

2.69
15.29
6.56
7.19

Page 5 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
QUILL CORPORATION
CATHERINE BOONE

VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 296 - PD GRT
BANK OF AMERICA

Fund: 298 - PD Donations
BANK OF AMERICA

Fund: 303 - Vet Wall
WINDSTREAM CORPORATION

Fund: 312 - R&R Airport
ARMSTRONG CONSULTANTS, I...
RCI POWER & LIGHTING, INC.

Fund: 403 - Pledge State

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHOR..
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHOR..
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHOR..

Fund: 501 - Cemetary
CITY UTILITIES

Fund: 502 - Util Office - Pool
CITY UTILITIES

SILKE M. KAPELA

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
INSTA-COPY IMAGING

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST

SILKE M. KAPELA

XEROX CORP.

Payable Number

17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
17987505/17963598/17959354
307436

9886311871

94232

836727595773992677688

179851

21-196541-02
PAY APP 2

080121
080121
080121

54124

07/21/21
087048
239085
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
3477860374
556624
235484
406276
406276
406276
68582
68582
68582
87048

014027019/014145391/01402...

Post Date

08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/27/2021

08/27/2021

08/20/2021

08/25/2021
08/25/2021

08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021

08/20/2021

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021

Description (item)

2" BINDER

6 PACK OF COLLEGE RULE NOT...
FILE FOLDERS

15" WALL CLOCK FOR POOL DE...
3 HARDBOARD CLIPBOARDS

3" BINDER

9" WALL CLOCK FOR OFFICE
MEMO NOTEPADS

12 PACK OF BLACK PENS

POOL RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND...
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

PELICAN STORM CASE WITH FO...

MISCELLANEOUS SCHOOL SUPP...

PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

AIRPORT ENGINEER SERVICES F...
AIRPORT ELEC VAULT CONSTRU...

NMFA LOAN PYMT TORC 18
NMFA LOAN PYMT TORC 19
NMFA LOAN PYMT PPRF-4967

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...
SILKE KAPELA

NM RETIREE HEALTH

BIC PENS

MANILLA FOLDER

TRU RED ACCORDION FILE
STORANGE CLIPBOARD

COPY PAPER

GEL PENS

SANITIZING WIPES

BLANK DOOR HANGERS

POST IT NOTES

FACIAL TISSUE

SMALL BINDER CLIPS

10,000 #9 RETURN & 10,000 #1...
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
14 GA ROUND PT SHOVEL

1 PT PIPE THREAD SEALANT

12 OZ BLUE SPRAY PAINT FOR ...
AIR FILTER

BRAKE PADS

BRAKE PADS

REIMB FOR DISABILITY CHECK F...
OPEN PO XEROX CORP FISCAL 2...

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44606
295-4803-34355
295-4803-43775
Fund 295 - Muni Pool Total:

296-2403-44615
Fund 296 - PD GRT Total:

298-2103-45607
Fund 298 - PD Donations Total:

303-4703-43775
Fund 303 - Vet Wall Total:

312-7006-80805
312-7006-80805
Fund 312 - R&R Airport Total:

403-1203-12918
403-1203-12919
403-1203-12967

Fund 403 - Pledge State Total:

501-1803-43780
Fund 501 - Cemetary Total:

502-3601-43780
502-3601-37380
502-3601-41226
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-43740
502-3601-41226
502-3601-44607
502-3601-44607
502-3601-44607
502-3601-47420
502-3601-47420
502-3601-47420
502-3601-37380
502-3601-43465

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Amount

8.09
8.54
9.26
34.99
9.69
10.34
16.99
13.76
14.39
50.00
28.82
4,557.61

295.36
295.36

643.20
643.20

143.73
143.73

5,026.06

24,362.50

29,388.56

690.58
7,598.76
10,545.59
18,834.93

472.25
472.25

392.83
785.76
252.43
7.40
10.05
14.34
15.00
217.45
29.10
40.00
58.48
3.28
21.45
3.26
1,404.25
252.43
101.11
43.12
19.09
10.21
45.43
53.31
785.76
683.02

Page 6 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

NEW MEXICO ONE CALL, INC.
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS, INC.
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS, INC.
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME...
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
PITNEY BOWES INC.

VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 503 - Electric

CITY UTILITIES

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G...
XEROX CORP.

TRIPLE H SOLAR, LLC

ZIA ELECTRICAL PRODUCTS

ZIA ELECTRICAL PRODUCTS
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST

SSA SOLAR OF NM 4, LLC
SILVERSKY, INC.

LANDIS+GYR TECHNOLOGY, INC
REED'S TIRE CENTER

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
VERIZON WIRELESS

TRAFFIC SIGNAL CONTROLS, INC
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
SIERRA ELECTRIC CO-OP, INC.
SIERRA ELECTRIC CO-OP, INC.
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMIN
IRBY SUPPLY CO.

IRBY SUPPLY CO.

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
WESTERN FIX, LLC

WESTERN FIX, LLC

TRI-STATE GENERATION & TRA...
CITY UTILITIES

CITY UTILITIES

ZIA ELECTRICAL PRODUCTS
XEROX CORP.

VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBURG
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
TWIN PALMS EMBROIDERY, LLC
TWIN PALMS EMBROIDERY, LLC
TWIN PALMS EMBROIDERY, LLC

MERCHANT JOB TRAINING & SA...

VERIZON WIRELESS
IRBY SUPPLY CO.
IRBY SUPPLY CO.

Fund: 504 - Water
CITY UTILITIES

Payable Number

153008570
2162-460478
2162-460478
3484245032
3484245032
3484245032
3484245032
3484245032
3484245032
3639
8000909009514238
9886311871

07/21/21
239085

7215
014027033
0268
18078,17976,18146
18078,17976,18146
286193

287397

287397

287397

287397

402093
436013-S|
90342624

9602

543915

543915

211837

229986

453514

533184

533184

137984

208311

208311

235484

31762

31762

511718

513069

54124

683459

90335
08242021
1ITQ-X1X4-LGKV
2147

2147

2147

6363
9886311871
$012533641.001/5012533641....
$012533641.001/5012533641....

07/21/21

Post Date

08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/12/2021
08/12/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/05/2021

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Description (Item)

QUARTERLY ALLOCATION USAGE
STRUTS

STRUTS

TRUE RED COPY PAPER

STAPLES PLASTIC STORAGE CLI...
POST IT NOTES

DATAPRODUCTS CALCULATOR R..

NXT TECH AIR DUSTER
CALENDAR DESK

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

502-3601-43770
502-3601-47420
502-3601-47420
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44606

GAS/OIL FISCAL YEAR 21/22 UIT...502-3601-43316
RENTAL OF EQUIP PITNEY BOW... 502-3601-43465
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22 502-3601-43775

Fund 502 - Util Office - Pool Total:

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...
NM RETIREE HEALTH

IT SERVICES JULY 1, 2021 - SEPT...
BASE CHARGE & METER USAGE-..
ENGINEERING SERVICES- OPEN ...
METER RINGS

FORM 1S FAXe W/RF METER

SCRWCP MET M12-1.75X30- BO...

CLEAR TUBE

1/2" 12 POINT DEEP SOCKET 3/...
1/2" 12 POINT DEEP SOCKET 9/...
MARKING PAINT

POWER SERVICES- OPEN PO FY ...
EMAIL SERVICE OPEN PO FY21/...
SaaS MONTHLY FLAT FEE

FLAT REPAIR

JEANS- CRISPIN BUSH

JEANS- TODD MANNON

PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
12" GREEN BALL, TINTED XL ETL..
GAS/DIESEL FUEL PURCHASES- ...

MIMS CITY LIGHTS- OPEN PO FY...
POWER SERVICES- OPEN PO FY-...

BASE DEMAND & BASE ENERGY...
250-600V FUSE PULLER
33+SUPER VINYL TAPE

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
JEANS- WILLIAM MONTOYA
JEANS- CHRIS REES

POWER SERVICES- OPEN PO FY-...

CITY LANDFILL BILLS/OPEN PO F...
CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..

FORM 16S METERS FOR INVEN...

BASE CHARGE & METER USAGE-...

FRANCHISE TAX FY 21/22 OPEN...
NIKON 10X42 BINOCULARS

UNIFORM EMBROIDERY- CRISP...
UNIFORM EMBROIDERY- OTTO ...
UNIFORM EMBROIDERY- TODD...

2ND YEAR TUITION- CRISPIN BU...

PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22
SHIRTS- CRISPIN BUSH
SHIRTS- TOOD MANNON

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...

503-3702-43780
503-3702-41226
503-3702-48598

503-3702-43465

503-3702-48598
503-3702-44607
503-3702-44607
503-3702-47420
503-3702-44607
503-3702-44607
503-3702-44607
503-3702-44607
503-3702-50795
503-3702-43815
503-3702-43770
503-3702-47420
503-3702-42620
503-3702-42620
503-3702-43775

.503-3702-47415

503-3702-43316
503-3702-43780
503-3702-50795
503-3702-50795
503-3702-44607
503-3702-44607
503-3702-41226
503-3702-42620
503-3702-42620
503-3702-50795
503-3702-43780
503-3702-43780
503-3702-44607
503-3702-43465
503-3702-45796
503-3702-44607
503-3702-42620
503-3702-42620
503-3702-42620
503-3702-42720
503-3702-43775
503-3702-42620
503-3702-42620

Fund 503 - Electric Total:

504-3803-43780

Amount

486.00
207.21
207.21
228.90
15.96
16.63
26.32
46.87
3.81
355.97
974.02
193.10
8,010.56

4,962.80
427.80
984.85
101.28

4,970.00

1,270.00

1,840.00

9.60
1.56
6.74
6.85
47.94
27,993.62
183.78
950.00
30.24
209.94
239.64
57.81
129.00

1,649.72

560.74

273,812.99
48,929.37
121.74
896.00
427.80
203.70
167.70
38,519.86
133.60
194.25
701.92
33.81

5,076.65

547.80
30.00
30.00
30.00

550.00

193.58

364.86

364.86

417,964.40

12,196.04

Page 7 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G...
DPC INDUSTRIES, INC.
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
XEROX CORP.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SILVERSKY, INC.

TAXATION AND REVENUE
BAKER UTILITY SUPPLY CORP.
DPC INDUSTRIES, INC.
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
CITY UTILITIES

B & HOIL CO.

CITY UTILITIES

VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBURG
BANK OF AMERICA

BANK OF AMERICA

VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 505 - Solid Waste

CITY UTILITIES

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
AUTOZONE STORES, LLC
INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G...
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
BORDER INTERNATIONAL TRUC...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
XEROX CORP.

RELIANCE STEEL

RELIANCE STEEL

RELIANCE STEEL

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, iNC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

Payable Number

239085
7215
747001677-21
816854
816854
014027026
1595456
286271
286271
286271
287326
436013-Si
7312021
238986
485100
690186
690186
235484
513069
52464
54124
08242021
121835
121835
9886311871

07/21/21
239085
2529933859
7215

816854
R400018798 01
$509379553.001
$509379553.001
$509379553.001
014027022

121v472285/121v472061
12Iv472285/121v472061
12Iv472285/121v472061

159488/6
159488/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159493/6
159514/6

Post Date

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/12/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021

Description (item)

NM RETIREE HEALTH

IT SERVICES JULY 1, 2021 - SEPT...
CHLORINE CYLINDERS
MAINTENANCE - JULY
MAINTENANCE - JULY

BASE COURSE CHARGE METERE...
UNSTOCKED FIELD SUPPLIES FO...
CABIN AIR FILTER

AIR FILTER

OIL FILTER

SELEDTYPE 3030 SPRGBK (BRAK...
EMAIL SERVICE OPEN PO FY21/...
WATER CONSERVATION FEE FY ...
OPEN PO FY 21/22 FOR UNSTO...
DEMURRAGE

DIESEL FUEL

UNLEADED FUEL

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
CITY LANDFILL BILLS/OPEN PO F...
DIESEL FOR TRANSFER TANK A...
CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..
FRANCHISE TAX FY 21/22 OPEN...
20 V COMPACT RECIP SAW KIT
1/2 IN HIFH TORQUE IMPACT ...
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...
NM RETIREE HEALTH

AUTOZONE DEF EXHAUST FUEL
IT SERVICES JULY 1, 2021 - SEPT...
MAINTENANCE - JULY
DIAGNOSTICS+LABOR TX+SHP F...
HUBBELL WD RCPT, 2PSW

SC KIND 4 SOBXCVR, STL

SC KIND 4 INSQUARE BX, STL
METER USAGE & BASE CHARGE...
HOT ROLLED STEEL SHEET A-56...
RECTANGULAR STEEL TUBE HR...
HOT ROLLED FLAT BAR ASTM-A...
225' 270 2/0 COIL CHAIN
DISCOUNT

518 1/8 6011 WELD ROD

EC 5 GAL PASTEL BASE

7/16" X1" BOLTS

91/16" X1 1/2" NUTS

3/4"X 11/2" NUTS

1/4" COBALT DRILL BIT

3/4"X 1 1/2"BOLTS

91/16" X1 1/2" BOLTS
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT

7/16" X1" WASHERS

91/16" X1 1/2" WASHERS

WA GAL NEUTRAL BASE PAINT
3/4"X 11/2" WASHERS

7/16" X1" NUTS

PRO LEATHER WELING GLOVES
SZ 7-1/2 WELDING CAP

24 OZ ANT BLOCK GRANULE

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

504-3803-41226
504-3803-48598
504-3803-44607
504-3803-43316
504-3803-47420
504-3803-43465
504-3803-44607
504-3803-47420
504-3803-47420
504-3803-47420
504-3803-47420
504-3803-43815
504-3803-43797
504-3803-44607
504-3803-43465
504-3803-43316
504-3803-43316
504-3803-41226
504-3803-43780
504-3803-43316
504-3803-43780
504-3803-45796
504-3803-44607
504-3803-44607
504-3803-43775

Fund 504 - Water Totatl:

505-3904-43780
505-3904-41226
505-3904-43316
505-3904-48598
505-3904-47420
505-3904-47420
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-43465
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44607

Amount

175.20
984.85
1,097.70
17.50
25.00
175.91
115.88
11.43
10.21
8.26
44.69
183.78
1,558.92
5,059.90
60.00
1,022.48
936.64
175.20
30.00
357.42
1,139.98
1,247.72
199.99
269.99
70.11

- 2717280

640.00
487.21
187.60
984.85
495.50
159.11
121.12
9.21
6.77
100.87
1,816.50
81.66
65.62
249.00
-12.45
35.98
418.00
12.99
12.99
13.99
29.96
29.99
32.99
-23.25
-5.10
3.89
7.29
46.99
8.49
7.49
16.99
18.99
17.99

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Page 8 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SUN VALLEY, INC.

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SILVERSKY, INC.

WEX BANK

SIERRA VALLEY CONTRACTORS, ...
SIERRA VALLEY CONTRACTORS, ...
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SAFETY FLARE, INC.

SAFETY FLARE, INC.

SAFETY FLARE, INC.

SAFETY FLARE, INC.

SAFETY FLARE, INC.

SAFETY FLARE, INC.

BORDER TIRE, LLC

BORDER TIRE, LLC

BORDER TIRE, LLC

BORDER TIRE, LLC

BORDER TIRE, LLC

BORDER TIRE, LLC

BORDER TIRE, LLC

BORDER TIRE, LLC

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

QUILL CORPORATION

INLAND TRUCK PARTS COMPANY
XEROX CORP.

RUSTY'S WEIGH SCALES & SERV...
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

CITY UTILITIES

NM DEPT OF AGRICULTURE
BORDER INTERNATIONAL TRUC...
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
PARKHILL SMITH & COOPER
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...

Payable Number

159514/6
159514/6
159514/6
286168
286706
287098
287244
436013-SI
019067
213822
213822
234734
318331
318331
318331
318331
318331
318331
777673
777673
777673
777673
777673
777673
777673
777673
853480
853480
853480
853480
853480
853480
853480
997778
148221
234866
235484
513069
723032
74791
769599
769599
769599
769599
769599
806076
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Post Date

08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021

Description (Item)

CUTTING TIP MED DUTY #00
DISCOUNT

1/2" X 6 PERC DRILL BIT

12V COMMERCIAL BATTERY
AUTODARK WELDING HELMET
147CF ACETYLENE

22" XTRACLEAR WINDSHIELD W...
EMAIL SERVICE OPEN PO FY21/...
WEX DIESEL & GASOLINE OPEN ...
WINCH ONTO TRAILER & HAUL ...
STAND BY LOAD FEE

OXYGEN

6092 AMEAL VALVE STEM ASSY
SERNR- FIRE EXT. NECK RING
RECHARGE DRY CHEMICAL
SERABC ABC DRY POWDER
TAMPER SEAL 9" EACH

SER195 -G195 PRESSURE GAUGE
11R225 SPREAD AXLE (9302202...
11R225 SPREAD AXLE (9302202...
11R225 SPREAD AXLE (9302202...
11R225 SPREAD AXLE (9302202...
11R225 SPREAD AXLE (9302202...
11R225 SPREAD AXLE (9302202...
11R225 SPREAD AXLE (9302202...
11R225 SPREAD AXLE {9302202...
CUSTOM FULL COLOR BUS. CA...
ZEBRA Z GRIP RET. BP PEN MED...
QUILL JUMBO PAPER CLIPS

NXT TECHONLOGIES AIR DUSTER
BIC WHITE OUT EZ CORRECT
QUILL PAPER CLIPS

SHARPIE S-GEL RET.GEL PEN Fl...
YELLOW 5/8 KNOB

METER USAGE & BASE CHARGE...
QUARTERLY SCALE CALIBRATION
NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...
CITY LANDFILL BILLS/OPEN PO F...
WEIGHMASTER LICENSE RENE...
PARTS/ SHOP SUPP/LABOR/LAB...
BYLASONIC STICKY NOTES SET,3...
SHIPPING

ASTROBRIGHTS MEGA COLL, CO...
HON METAL KEYBOARD PLATF...
BINDERTEK 2-RING 3-IN PREM.B..
ENVIRONMENTAL LANDFILL M...
3/4-EMT CONDUIT

CCS0 ICRKON KONKORE 1/2"C...
STR508 AMER FTG 1/2 L/TINS ...
CK75RKON KONKORE 3/4"COM...
1/2-UA/LA GRAY LIQ TITE RCL
THHN 12 GRN SOL CU 500S/R W..
1/2-EMT CONDUIT

GFTWRST20I HUBBELL WD 20A ...
BR120 EATON TYPE BR BREAKER..
521711234ESC KiND 4 INSQUA...
BR240 EATON TYPE BR BREAKER..
VT3204HUNV40 NICOR HIGH O...
CC75 ICRKON KONKORE 3/4" C...
THHN 10 GRN 19STR CU 5005/R...

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-47420
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44607
505-3904-47420
505-3904-43815
505-3904-43316
505-3904-47420
505-3904-47420
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44615
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-47420
505-3904-43465
505-3904-47420
505-3904-41226
505-3904-45601
505-3904-43770
505-3904-47420
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44606
505-3904-48599
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415

Amount

16.49
-2.82
21.98
375.33
150.18
96.00
9.98
183.78
4,427.57
839.25
300.00
34.50
24.68
8.14
89.25
108.00
7.82
3413
150.00
150.00
154.37
150.00
150.00
150.00
150.00
154.37
17.98
13.04
20.14
29.99
8.99
10.06
15.29
31.08
38.62
609.49
487.21
24,864.36
350.00
1,588.11
7.99
8.30
15.99
78.82
26.00
7,652.27
277.58
9.14
9.82
11.49
15.80
113.43
78.47
54.87
25.67
18.05
16.37
898.51
8.03
185.84

Page 9 of 17



Expense Approval Report

Vendor Name

CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...
CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY C...

CNA SURETY
VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBURG

DONA ANA BRANCH COMMUNI...
DONA ANA BRANCH COMMUNI...

VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 506 - WWTP
CITY UTILITIES

HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...
HALL ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYS...

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES G...

DPC INDUSTRIES, INC.

DPC INDUSTRIES, INC.

DPC INDUSTRIES, INC.

DPC INDUSTRIES, tNC.
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
SUN VALLEY, INC.

SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SILVERSKY, INC.

VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBURG
CORBINS ELECTRIC
CORBINS ELECTRIC

Q A BALANCE SERVICES INC
Q A BALANCE SERVICES INC
Q A BALANCE SERVICES INC
Q A BALANCE SERVICES INC
Q A BALANCE SERVICES INC
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...

CITY UTILITIES
B & HOIL CO.
CITY UTILITIES
GRAINGER, INC.

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...

VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 508 - Golf Course
HELENA CHEMICALS
HELENA CHEMICALS
HELENA CHEMICALS

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE

Payable Number

84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
84078
895895
08242021
2021-0004
2021-0004
9886311871

07/21/21

2107063, 2107383, 2107434
2107063, 2107383, 2107434
2107063, 2107383, 2107434
2107063, 2107383, 2107434
2107716

2107716

2107716

239085

7215

747001693-21
747001693-21
747001693-21
747001693-21

816854

816854
1593046,1594266,1594636
286709

286709

436013-SI

7312021

038737

038737

468594

468594

468594

468594

468594

641067

235484

353663

513069

52464

54124

815747498
1INR7-3QQK-KLIX
9886311871

14143692
14143692
14143692
239085

Post Date

08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/06/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/13/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/20/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021
08/27/2021

08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021
08/05/2021

Description (item)

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Account Number

RS 16 CC SC-KIND 4SQ SURF CVR, 505-3904-47415
THHN 12 8LK SOL CU 500S/R W... 505-3904-47415

THHN 12 WHT SOL CU S00S/R ...

CKSORKON KONKORE 1/2"COM...
CS120W HUBBELL WD SWITCH,...
CSES01 AMER -FTG 1/2" STL1H...

THHN 8 BLK 19STR CU RCL

505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47415

CSE751 AMER FTG STEEL STRAPS 505-3904-47415
RS-9 SC-KIND 45Q SURF CVR 5CU 505-3904-47415
52 C-1 SCKIND 4SQ CVR, FLAT B...505-3904-47415

RENEWAL BOND # 62153207 ...

FRANCHISE TAX FY 21/22 OPEN...
COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSE ...
COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSE ...
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

CITY UTILITIES CYCLE C&D/OPE...
EPA METHOD 624 VOCS ACRYL...
EPA 200.8 METALS CADMIUM ...
SEPERATE LINE TO INCLUDE TAX

SM52108 BOD (M52108)

EPA 200.8 METALS CADMIUM ...
EPA METHOD 624 VOCS ACRYL...
SEPERATE LINE TO INCLUDE TAX

NM RETIREE HEALTH

IT SERVICES JULY 1, 2021 - SEPT...

FUEL SURCHARGE
DRUM CLEANING FEE
REFUNDABLE DRUM DEPOSIT

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 12.5%...

MAINTENANCE - JULY
MAINTENANCE - JULY

UNSTOCKED FIELD SUPPLIES FO...

OILFILTER LD
AIR FILTER

EMAIL SERVICE OPEN PO FY21/...
SEWER RECEIPTS FY 21/22 OPEN..

BID ITEM 2
BIDITEM 1

DO METERS
COLORIMETERS
THERMOMETERS
PH METERS
BALANCES
UNLEADED FUEL

NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ...

EUHOMY COMMERCIAL ICE MA...
CITY LANDFILL BILLS/OPEN PO F...
DIESEL FOR TRANSFER TANK HE...
CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..
S PUMP HEAD SERVICEKIT 25 P...
WIRELESS OUTDOOR SECURITY ...
PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22

BATTLESHIP WEED KILLER
BENT GRASS SEED
DYNEAMIC SURFACTENT
NM RETIREE HEALTH

505-3904-43770
505-3904-45796
505-3904-42720
505-3904-42720
505-3904-43775

Fund 505 - Solid Waste Total:

506-4005-43780
506-4005-48598
506-4005-48598
506-4005-48598
506-4005-48598
506-4005-48598
506-4005-48598
506-4005-48598
506-4005-41226
506-4005-48598
506-4005-44605
506-4005-44605
506-4005-44605
506-4005-44605
506-4005-43316
506-4005-47420
506-4005-44607
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47420
506-4005-43815
506-4005-48798
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47420
506-4005-47420
506-4005-43316
506-4005-41226
506-4005-44606
506-4005-43780
506-4005-43316
506-4005-43780
506-4005-44607
506-4005-44613
506-4005-43775

Fund 506 - WWTP Total:

508-4303-44607
508-4303-44607
508-4303-44607
508-4303-41226

Amount

7.57
113.43
113.43

4.08

3.99

1.72
160.55

3.50

1.84

244
100.00

1,419.95
200.00
200.00
140.23

54,081.76

499.49
450.00
175.00
76.62
348.00
70.00
180.00
19.69
264.86
984.85
41.18
25.00
200.00
823.50
15.00
42,50
140.94
4.03
10.21
183.78
4,674.63
1,935.57
2,016.00
102.00
102.00
110.00
91.00
91.00
541.84
269.90
479.99
30.00
40.00
622.20
74.03
399.96
356.71

16,491.48

340.00
275.00
95.00
85.20

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Page 10 of 17



Expense Approval Report

Vendor Name

SUN COUNTRY AMATEUR GOLF...

SUN VALLEY, INC.

NM RETIREE HEALTH CARE
CITY UTILITIES

QUILL CORPORATION
XEROX CORP.

MASEK ROCKY MOUNTAIN GOL...
MASEK ROCKY MOUNTAIN GOL...
MASEK ROCKY MOUNTAIN GOL...
MASEK ROCKY MOUNTAIN GOL...
MASEK ROCKY MOUNTAIN GOL...

BANK OF AMERICA
BANK OF AMERICA

YAMAHA MOTOR FINANCE COR...

1&B CHEMICAL ASSOCIATES
VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 509 - Muni Airport
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
REED'S TIRE CENTER

REED'S TIRE CENTER
WINOSTREAM CORPORATION
XEROX CORP.

PINNACLE PROPANE

SIERRA ELECTRIC CO-OP, INC.
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
BANK OF AMERICA

VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 600 - Internal Serv

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, IN...

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
RELADYNE CONSERVANCY OIL ...
RELADYNE CONSERVANCY OIL ...
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
SIERRA AUTO/CARQUEST
TESTON'S FREEWAY CHEVRON
SOUTHWEST SIGN SERVICE
SOUTHWEST SIGN SERVICE

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Payable Number Post Date Description {item) Account Number Amount
1274 08/06/2021 GHIN REGULAR SERVICE 508-4303-43770 25.00
159329/6 08/06/2021 OPEN P.O. JULY 508-4303-44607 23272
235484 08/20/2021 NM RETIREE HEALTHCARE PPE ... 508-4303-41226 85.20
54124 08/20/2021 CITY UTILITIES CYCLE A&B/OPEN..508-4303-43780 1,407.35
60741 08/20/2021 BUSINESS CARDS FOR WES OW... 508-4303-44606 15.29
014128742 08/27/2021 BASE CHARGES METER USAGE F...508-4303-43465 164.71
02-69392 08/27/2021 CLEAR HINGED WINDSHIELD 508-4303-44607 186.65
02-69392 08/27/2021 PAD SILENCER 508-4303-47420 3.96
02-69392 08/27/2021 PAD SILENCERS 508-4303-47420 3.75
02-69392 08/27/2021 PAD SILENCER 508-4303-47420 9.33
02-69392 08/27/2021 LOWER COVER 508-4303-47420 196.41
16N6917589 08/27/2021 NM ALCOHOL SERVER ONLINE ... 508-4303-43770 3255
3812235820 08/27/2021 ONLINE REGISTRATION FOR Fl... 508-4303-43770 88.00
750119 08/27/2021 OPEN PO FOR FY 21/22 YAMAH... 508-4303-43465 903.51
980378 08/27/2021 POND ALGEE SOLUTION 508-4303-44607 996.97
9886311871 08/27/2021 PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22 508-4303-43775 80.74
Fund 508 - Golf Course Total: 5,227.34

816854 08/05/2021 MAINTENANCE - JULY 509-4403-47420 12.00
9604 08/06/2021 NEW TUBE 509-4403-47420 15.00
9604 08/06/2021 FLAT REPAIR 509-4403-47420 15.00
179851 08/20/2021 PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22 509-4403-43775 32417
413424 08/20/2021 XEROX PRINTER OPEN PO FY 21... 509-4403-43465 3497
74458 08/20/2021 OPEN PO FY 21/22 FOR AIRPOR... 509-4403-43780 132.97
975174 08/20/2021 OPEN PO FY21/22 SIERRA ELEC... 509-4403-43780 1,216.83
3646 08/25/2021 OPEN PO FY 21-22 TESTONS FR... 509-4403-43316 109.34
805378 08/27/2021 FUEL SERVICE TECHNICIAN 509-4403-47420 481.20
9886311871 08/27/2021 PHONE BILLS/OPEN PO FY 21/22 509-4403-43775 107.33
Fund 509 - Muni Airport Total: 2,448.81

1CTK-GYQQ-1MHF 08/05/2021 22 TON HEAVY DUTY HYDRAULI... 600-7003-44613 519.80
1T794-CQIN-FHXX 08/05/2021 CAUTION FREQUENT STOPS STI... 600-7003-44607 24.99
816854 08/05/2021 MAINTENANCE - JULY 600-7003-43316 15.00
816854 08/05/2021 MAINTENANCE - JULY 600-7003-47420 114.75
0047909-IN 08/06/2021 HYDRAULIC Oit 600-7003-43316 527.40
0047909-IN 08/06/2021 15W-40 OIL 600-7003-43316 699.60
286273 08/06/2021 A/C EVAPORATOR 600-7003-44607 105.13
286273 08/06/2021 A/C ORIFICE TUBE 600-7003-44607 2.52
286273 08/06/2021 AIR FILTER 600-7003-44607 21.55
286357 08/06/2021 AIR FILTER 600-7003-34376 15.08
286357 08/06/2021 TRANSMISSION FILTER 600-7003-34376 28.73
286357 08/06/2021 BRAKE PADS 600-7003-34376 52.11
286357 08/06/2021 OIL FILTER LD 600-7003-47420 4.56
286359 08/06/2021 COUPLER 1/2" FEMALE 600-7003-44607 18.75
286359 08/06/2021 1/2" FEMALE PLUG 600-7003-44607 5.22
286359 08/06/2021 B M FEMALE 1/4 NP COUPLER  600-7003-44607 6.45
286359 08/06/2021 FEMALE 1/4" COUPLER 600-7003-44607 3.30
286893 08/06/2021 SPARK PLUG IRIDIUM 600-7003-47420 44.55
286893 08/06/2021 BRAKE SHOE SET 600-7003-47420 28.71
286895 08/06/2021 BRAKE DRUM 600-7003-47420 114.26
287104 08/06/2021 20 LB CO2 600-7003-44607 26.00
287104 08/06/2021 CYUNDER PRESSURE 600-7003-44607 45.00
287104 08/06/2021 .030 2 WIRE MILD 600-7003-44607 21.42
287104 08/06/2021 CO2 ADAPTER 600-7003-44607 26.99
6016-287242 08/06/2021 DRUM KIT AXLE 600-7003-44607 8.77
6016-287242 08/06/2021 DRUM ADJUSTM ENT KIT WHEEL 600-7003-44607 10.87
172163 08/13/2021 FUEL PURCHASES /OPEN PO FY ... 600-7003-43316 110.24
691059 08/13/2021 3" BLUE VINYL DEPARTMENT ST...600-7003-44607 N 17.00
691059 08/13/2021 3" BLUE VINYL NUMBER 600-7003-44607 15.96

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Page 11 of 17



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

XEROX CORP.

Payable Number
248348

Post Date
08/20/2021

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Description (Item) Account Number Amount
XEROX RENTAL / OPEN PO 21/22 600-7003-43465 120.48
Fund 600 - Internal Serv Total: 2,755.19

Grand Total: 737,769.43

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Page 12 of 17



Expense Approval Report

Fund Summary

Fund

101 - General

201 - Corrections
209 - Fire

214 - Lodgers Tax
216 - Muni Street
294 - State Library
295 - Muni Pool
296 - PD GRT

298 - PD Donations
303 - Vet Wall

312 - R&R Airport
403 - Pledge State
501 - Cemetary
502 - Util Office - Pool

503 - Electric
504 - water

505 - Solid Waste
506 - WWTP

508 - Golf Course

509 - Muni Airport
600 - Internal Serv

Account Number
101-1000-43597
101-1000-44606
101-1000-45607
101-1001-41226
101-1001-43465
101-1001-43740
101-1001-43770
101-1001-43775
101-1001-44606
101-1001-47410
101-1002-41226
101-1002-42720
101-1002-43775
101-1003-41226
101-1003-43316
101-1003-43465
101-1003-43775
101-1003-44606
101-1003-44613
101-1004-41226
101-1004-43465
101-1004-43740
101-1004-43775
101-1004-44606
101-1004-48599
101-1006-41226
101-1006-43775
101-1006-44606
101-1006-44607
101-1006-48598
101-1006-48599
101-1007-41226

Grand Total:

Account Summary

Account Name

ATTORNEY FEES-GOVERN...
OFFICE SUPPLIES-GOVERN..
CLAIMS, JUDGEMENTS, A...

RETIREE INSURANCE
RENT OF EQUIPMENT
PRINTING/PUBLISHING
SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE CONTRAC...

RETIREE INSURANCE
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-M...
TELEPHONE

RETIREE INSURANCE
GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES
NON-CAPITAL ITEMS
RETIREE INSURANCE
RENT OF EQUIPMENT
PRINTING/PUBLISHING
TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...

RETIREE INSURANCE
TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...

RETIREE INSURANCE

Payment Amount
110,444.22
3,469.00
4,291.48
9,233.28
21,543.13
298.34
4,557.61
295.36
643.20
143.73
29,388.56
18,834.93
472.25
8,010.56
417,964.40
27,174.80
54,081.76
16,491.48
5,227.34
2,448.81
2,755.19
737,769.43

Payment Amount
5,059.34
57.09
6,669.06
302.18
354.78
584.67
2,388.00
279.24
593.31
450.00
87.74
217.88
172.92
482.20
93.01
357.30
432.43
191.44
540.48
438.94
562.11
360.24
251.60
181.68
472.00
193.44
110.12
15.29
957.75
770.85
911.70
1,467.14

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Report Summary

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Page 13 of 17



Expense Approval Report

Account Number
101-1007-42620
101-1007-43316
101-1007-43465
101-1007-43770
101-1007-43775
101-1007-43815
101-1007-44606
101-1007-47420
101-1008-41226
101-1008-42720
101-1008-43316
101-1008-43775
101-1008-47420
101-1009-41226
101-1009-42720
101-1009-43316
101-1009-43465
101-1009-43775
101-1009-44606
101-1009-44607
101-1009-47415
101-1009-47420
101-1010-41226
101-1010-43775
101-1010-44606
101-1010-48555
101-1010-48598
101-1011-41226
101-1011-43775
101-1012-41226
101-1012-43775
101-1013-43316
101-1014-41226
101-1014-43316
101-1014-43403
101-1014-43775
101-1014-44607
101-1014-44613
101-1014-47410
101-1014-47420
101-1014-80810
101-1016-41226
101-1016-44606
101-1018-43780
101-1018-43815
101-1018-48598
101-1040-43465
101-1099-34348
201-1903-44805
201-1903-48710
209-1603-43316
209-1603-43465
209-1603-43775
209-1603-43780
209-1603-43815
209-1603-47415
214-2503-47597
214-2503-48599

Account Summary

Account Name
UNIFORM/LINEN-POLICE ...
GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
TELEPHONE

SOFTWARE

OFFICE SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE VEHICLE/...
RETIREE INSURANCE
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-CO...
GAS & OIL

TELEPHONE
MAINTENANCE VEH/EQUI...
RETIREE INSURANCE
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-M...
GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES-MUNI RE...
MAINTENANCE--REPAIRS ...
MAINTENANCE VEHICLE/...
RETIREE INSURANCE
TELEPHONE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

CLEAN UP & DEMOLITION...
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
RETIREE INSURANCE
TELEPHONE

RETIREE INSURANCE
TELEPHONE

GAS & OlL

RETIREE INSURANCE

GAS & OIL

REGULAR BUILDING MAL...
TELEPHONE

FIELD SUPPLIES-FACILITY ...
NON-CAPITAL ITEMS
MAINTENANCE CONTRAC...
MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...
OTHER CAPITAL EQUIPM...
RETIREE INSURANCE
OFFICE SUPPLIES

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE LIC/SOFTWAR...
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
RENT OF EQUIPMENT
RENT OF PUBLIC FACILITIES
AUTO/LAB/DWI/JUD ED
CARE OF PRISONERS-COR...
GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE LIC/SOFTWAR...
MAINTENANCE--REPAIRS ...
9% ADVERTISING/MARKET..
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...

Payment Amount
163.60
45.00
267.66
150.00
1,401.55
113.00
713.43
3,418.30
272.16
395.00
4,173.27
220.45
20.00
428.06
200.00
957.20
227.28
146.06
15.29
275.71
900.00
386.11
129.60
93.88
15.29
290.25
5,000.00
560.68
142.80
225.60
86.46
67.32
324.00
468.61
2,043.58
115.42
1,693.51
629.99
53.94
57.25
43,202.00
361.46
15.29
12,403.32
183.76
984.84
350.31
50.00
144.00
3,325.00
192.02
344.85
308.50
553.08
2,497.00
396.03
7,398.82
956.04

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Page 14 of 17



Expense Approval Report

Account Number
214-2503-60596
216-4503-43316
216-4503-43550
216-4503-44607
216-4503-47420
294-5003-43465
294-5003-43775
294-5003-60834
295-4803-34355
295-4803-41226
295-4803-42620
295-4803-42720
295-4803-43465
295-4803-43775
295-4803-43780
295-4803-44606
295-4803-44613
295-4803-44615
296-2403-44615
298-2103-45607
303-4703-43775
312-7006-80805
403-1203-12918
403-1203-12919
403-1203-12967
501-1803-43780
502-3601-37380
502-3601-41226
502-3601-43316
502-3601-43465
502-3601-43740
502-3601-43770
502-3601-43775
502-3601-43780
502-3601-44606
502-3601-44607
502-3601-47420
503-3702-41226
503-3702-42620
503-3702-42720
503-3702-43316
503-3702-43465
503-3702-43770
503-3702-43775
503-3702-43780
503-3702-43815
503-3702-44607
503-3702-45796
503-3702-47415
503-3702-47420
503-3702-48598
503-3702-50795
504-3803-41226
504-3803-43316
504-3803-43465
504-3803-43775
504-3803-43780
504-3803-43797

Account Summary

Account Name

STATE ADVERTISING GRA...
GAS & OIL

ROADWAY MAINTENANCE
FIELD SUPPLIES-STREETS
MAINT.VEHICLE/FURN/E...
RENT OF EQUIPMENT
TELEPHONE

STATE LIBRARY GRANT-ST...

POOL DEPOSIT/RENTAL
RETIREE INSURANCE
UNIFORMS-LIFEGUARDS
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-M...
RENT OF EQUIPMENT
TELEPHONE
UTILITIES-MUNI POOL

OFFICE SUPPLIES-MUNI P...

NON-CAPITAL ITEMS
SAFETY EQUIPMENT
SAFETY EQUIPMENT
MISC. EXPENSES
TELEPHONE

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES
CWPA TORC 18 OPERATI...
CWPA TORC 19 OPERATI...
PPRF-4967 OPERATING
UTILITIES

Miscellaneous Revenue
RETIREE INSURANCE

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
PRINTING/PUBLISHING
SUBSCRIPTIONS & DUES
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...

RETIREE INSURANCE

UNIFORM/LINEN-ELECTRI...
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-ELE...

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE LIC/SOFTWAR...

FIELD SUPPLIES

FRANCHISE TAX-ELECTRIC...
MAINTENANCE--REPAIRS ...
MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
WHOLESALE POWER COS...
RETIREE INSURANCE

GAS & OlL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

WATER CONSERVATION-...

Payment Amount
878.42
2,430.30
17,647.17
80.96
1,384.70
23.75
168.64
105.95
100.00
80.20
570.75
34.50
35.37
28.82
2,206.01
173.07
524.00
804.89
295.36
643.20
143.73
29,388.56
690.58
7,598.76
10,545.59
472.25
1,571.52
504.86
355.97
1,657.04
1,404.25
486.00
193.10
392.83
758.30
163.32
523.37
855.60
1,640.70
550.00
1,649.72
135.09
950.00
251.39
5,851.39
183.78
5,440.55
5,076.65
129.00
39.84
5,954.85
389,255.84
350.40
2,334.04
235.91
70.11
13,366.02
1,558.92

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Page 15 of 17



Expense Approval Report

Account Number
504-3803-43815
504-3803-44607
504-3803-45796
504-3803-47420
504-3803-48598
505-3904-41226
505-3904-42720
505-3904-43316
505-3904-43465
505-3904-43770
505-3904-43775
505-3904-43780
505-3904-43815
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44607
505-3904-44615
505-3904-45601
505-3904-45796
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47420
505-3904-48598
505-3904-48599
506-4005-41226
506-4005-43316
506-4005-43775
506-4005-43780
506-4005-43815
506-4005-44605
506-4005-44606
506-4005-44607
506-4005-44613
506-4005-47420
506-4005-48598
506-4005-48798
508-4303-41226
508-4303-43465
508-4303-43770
508-4303-43775
508-4303-43780
508-4303-44606
508-4303-44607
508-4303-47420
509-4403-43316
509-4403-43465
509-4403-43775
509-4403-43780
509-4403-47420
600-7003-34376
600-7003-43316
600-7003-43465
600-7003-44607
600-7003-44613
600-7003-47420

Project Account Key

**None**

Account Summary

Account Name

SOFTWARE LIC/SOFTWAR...
FIELD SUPPLIES-WATER D...
FRANCHISE TAX-WATER D...
MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
RETIREE INSURANCE

EMPLOYEE TRAINING-SOL...

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE LIC/SOFTWAR...

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES-SOLID WA...

SAFETY EQUIPMENT
WASTE DISPOSAL
FRANCHISE TAX

MAINTENANCE--REPAIRS ...
MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SE...

RETIREE INSURANCE
GAS & OIL
TELEPHONE
UTILITIES

SOFTWARE LIC/SOFTWAR...
CHEMICALS/LABORATORY...

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES-WASTEW...

NON-CAPITAL ITEMS

MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBU...

RETIREE INSURANCE
RENT OF EQUIPMENT
SUBSCRIPTION & DUES
TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES
FIELD SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE VEHICLE/ ...

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
TELEPHONE
UTILITIES

MAINTENANCE VEH/EQUI...
FUEL & PARTS SALES-INTE...

GAS & OIL

RENT OF EQUIPMENT
FIELD SUPPLIES
NON-CAPITAL ITEMS

MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/...

Grand Total:

Project Account Summary

Payment Amount
183.78
6,743.46
1,247.72
99.59
984.85
974.42
400.00
4,615.17
139.49
450.00
140.23
640.00
183.78
252.59
4,225.90
458.18
24,864.36
1,419.95
2,272.72
4,407.85
984.85
7,652.27
534.76
596.84
356.71
1,151.69
183.78
1,089.68
479.99
214.97
399.96
4,504.31
2,304.16
4,674.63
170.40
1,068.22
145.55
80.74
1,407.35
15.29
2,126.34
213.45
109.34
34.97
431.50
1,349.80
523.20
95.92
1,352.24
120.48
359.92
519.80
306.83
737,769.43

Payment Amount
737,769.43

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM

Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Page 16 of 17



Expense Approval Report Payable Dates: 8/1/2021 - 8/31/2021

Project Account Summary

Project Account Key Payment Amount
**None**

Grand Total: 737,769.43

9/9/2021 5:49:26 PM Page 17 of 17



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: F.1

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 22 21/22 Budget Adjustment Request
DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

DATE SUBMITTED: September 15, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance Director

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Carol Kirkpatrick, Finance Director

Summary/Background: Reconciling Budget Adjustments Requests (based on Chapter 6, Article 6 NM Statute)
needed for budget adjustments, increases, and decreases per attached.

Recommendation:

Approval Resolution No. 22 21/22 Budget Adjustment Requests for Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Attachments:
Resolution -22 21/22
e Schedule of Budget Adjustments, Supporting Documentation

Fiscal Impact (Finance): Yes

Changes in funding as presented on the Department of Finance and Administration Schedule of Budget
Adjustments

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

Approved For Submittal By: X Department Director
Reviewed by: City Clerk [X Finance [ Legal [ Other: Click here to enter text
Final Approval: City Manager

—

===

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. Ciick here to enter text Ordinance No. .
Continued To: . Referred To: .

L] Approved [ Denied [1Other: .

File Name: CC Agenda 9-22-2021




RESOLUTION NO. 22 21/22

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS IN THE REVENUE
AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022.

WHEREAS, the final budget for was approved by the City Commission of the City of Truth or
Consequences, New Mexico, pursuant to Chapter 6, Article 76 NMSA 1978; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission in and for the City of Truth or Consequences, State of New
Mexico needs to adjust the current approved budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022; and

WHEREAS, said budget was adjusted on the basis of need and through cooperation with all user
departments, elected officials and other department supervisors; and

WHEREAS, the official meeting for the review of said documents was duly advertised in
compliance with the State Open Meetings act; and

WHEREAS, it is the majority opinion of this Board that the adjusted budget meets the
requirements as currently determined.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Commission of the City of Truth or
Consequences, State of New Mexico hereby adopts the budget adjustment hereinabove described
and attached and respectfully requests approval from the Local Government Division of the
Department of Finance and Administration.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 22" day of September, 2021.

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer



Department of Finance and Administration
Local Government Division
Financial Management Bureau

SCHEDULE OF BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

For Local Government Division use only:

ENTITY NAME: City of Truth or Consequences
FISCAL YEAR: 2021-2022
DFA Resolution Number: 22 21/22
BAR NUMBER 4
REVENUE, ADJUSTMENT | ADJUSTMENT
] ; EXPENDITURE, or | APPROVED | /INCREASE | / DECREASE ADJUSTED
DOCUMENT FUND ACCOUNT STRING ACCOUNT NAME IRANSFER (TO or FROIﬂ BUDGET BUDGET PURPOSE
NUMBER -
Increase budget to purchase trash truck. The price has increased
1 Sanitation 505-3904-80810 Vehicles Expenditure $ 219841 § 20,000( $ - 239,841 |significantly between when the purchase order was approved and a]
time of ordering. Will use beginning cash balance.
2 Lodger's Tax 214-2503-48591 Mainstreet Contract Expenditure $ 350000 %  10000| $ ; 45,000 g’;yo%':)d"eted $35.000 during budget process. Actual award was
3 State Fire 209-1603-32388 State Fire Allotment Revenue $ 326428 $  (17.609) 308,824 E:g;e:;"g budget to refiect award. From Budget of $326.428 to
3 State Fire 209-1603-36373 Interest Income Revenue $ 1,000 $ (500) 500 [Decreasing budget due to lower cash balance.
3 State Fire 209-1603-43999 Operating Costs Expenditure $ 296,700 $ 272,625 569,325 Increasing budget to account for ending cash balance.
$ -1 s -8 - -
$ -8 - -
ATTEST:
Angela Torres, Clerk-Treasut (Date) Sandra Whitehead, Mayor

{Date)




DOCUMENT #1



Fund: 505 - Solid Waste

505-3904-40110
505-3904-40125
505-3304-41205
505-3904-41210
505-3904-41215
505-3904-41225
505-3904-41226
505-3904-41235
505-3904-41240
505-3904-41785
503-3304-42620
505-3904-42720
505-3904-43316
505-3904-43403
505-3904-43465
505-3904-43735
505-3904-43740
505-3904-43770
505-3904-43775
505-3904-43780
505-3904-43815
503-3904-43999
505-3904-44606
505-3904-44607
505-3804-44613
505-3904-44615
505-3904-45601
505-3904-45796
505-3904-46731
505-3904-46732
505-3904-46733
505-3904-46794
505-3904-47415
505-3904-47420
505-3904-48596

Truth or Consequences

FULL TIME WAGES-SOLID WASTE DIVI
OVERTIME WAGES-SOLID WASTE DIV
FICA-REGULAR-SOLID WASTE DIVISION
FICA-MEDICARE-SOLID WASTE DIVISION
PERA-SOLID WASTE DIVISION

HEALTH INSURANCE-SOLID WASTE DIV
RETIREE INSURANCE

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE-SOLID WASTE
WORKER'S COMP ASSESSMENT
WORKER'S COMP. PREMIUMS
UNIFORM/LINEN-SOLID WASTE DIVISION
EMPLOYEE TRAINING-SOLID WASTE DIV
GAS & OiL

REGULAR BUILDING MAINT

RENT OF EQUIPMENT

POSTAGE & MAIL SERVICES
PRINTING/PUBLISHING

SUBSCRIPTION & DUES

TELEPHONE

UTILITIES

SOFTWARE LIC/SOFTWARE UPDATE
OPERATING COSTS

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FIELD SUPPLIES-SOLID WASTE DIVISION
NON-CAPITAL ITEMS

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

WASTE DISPOSAL

FRANCHISE TAX

PROPERTY INSURANCE-SOLID WASTE DIV
GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
VEHICLE INSURANCE

GOVT GROSS RECEIPTS TAX

MAINTENANCE--REPAIRS GROUNDS -ROADWAYS

MAINTENANCE-VEHICLE/EQUIP-SOLID WAS
AUDIT CONTRACT

Original
Total Budget

424,320.00
4,500.00
26,587.00
6,218.00
41,583.00
97,481.00
12,730.00
648.00
120.00
10,000.00
5$,000.00
5,625.00
5$5,000.00
38,000.00
4,000.00
50.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
4,000.00
25,000.00
15,000.00
2,500.00
3,000.00
69,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00
800,000.00
5,000.00
11,130.00
25,305.00
39,811.00
74,836.00
69,900.00
75,000.00
10,000.00

Current
Total Budget

424,320.00
4,500.00
26,587.00
6,218.00
41,583.00
97,481.00
12,730.00
648.00
120.00
10,000.00
5,000.00
5,625.00
55,000.00
38,000.00
4,000.00
50.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
4,000.00
25,000.00
15,000.00
2,500.00
3,000.00
69,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00
800,000.00
5,000.00
11,130.00
25,305.00
39,811.00
74,836.00
53,670.00
75,000.00
10,000.00

Period
Activity

16,320.02
0.00
954.85
223.32
1,591.52
3,708.78
487.20
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
24.52
2,966.50
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
1,353.32
208.07
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
-2,272.72
1,036.07
0.00

Fiscal
Activity

82,206.06
78.08
4,816.68
1,126.52
7,957.60
18,543.90
2,436.02
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
400.00
8,701.00
2,966.50
30233
0.00

0.00
550.00
278.10
3,937.61
594.54
554.03
252.59
4,567.90
0.00
458.18
132,202.48
1,419.95
0.00

0.00

0.00
14,650.86
0.00
10,709.69
0.00

My Budget Report

Account Summary
For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 09/30/2021

Encumbrances

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
9,634.00
404.52
0.00
41,727.44
1,381.50
2,697.67
0.00

0.00

0.00
1,921.90
11,962.39
13,197.10
0.00

0.00
721.29
1,535.14
0.00
667,797.44
3,580.05
9,600.73
6,585.61
18,486.53
0.00
211.58
20,756.43
9,708.80

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

342,113.94
4,421.92
21,770.32
5,091.48
33,625.40
78,937.10
10,293.98
648.00
120.00
366.00
4,595.48
5,225.00
4,571.56
33,652.00
1,000.00
50.00
1,000.00
450.00
1,800.00
9,100.00
1,208.36
1,945.97
2,747.41
63,710.81
3,464.86
4,541.82
0.08

0.00
1,529.27
18,719.39
21,324.47
60,185.14
53,458.42
43,533.88
291.20

Percent
Remaining

80.63 %
98.26 %
81.88 %
81.88%
80.86 %
80.98 %
80.86 %
100.00 %
100.00 %
3.66%
91.91%
92.89 %
831%
88.56 %
25.00 %
100.00 %
100.00 %
45.00%
45.00 %
36.40 %
8.06 %
77.84%
91.58 %
92.33%
69.30 %
90.84 %
0.00 %
0.00 %
13.74%
73.98 %
53.56 %
80.42%
99.61%
58.05 %
291%

9/13/2021 6:24:14 PM

Page 1 of 4



My Budget Report

For Fiscal: 2021-2022 Period Ending: 09/30/2021

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable  Percent
Total Budget Tota! Budget Activity Activity Encumbrances {Unfavorable) Remaining
505-3904-48598 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00 2,984.00 0.00 1,969.70 1,014.04 0.26 0.01%
505-3904-48599 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 50,000.00 47,016.00 0.00 13,602.54 17,347.73 -

505-3904-80810 OTHER CAPITAL EQUIPMENT-VEHICLES 217,000.00 219,841.00 0.00 0.00 239,841. -20,000.00 -9.10%

505-3904-80845 OTHER CAPITAL PURCHASES 124,077.00 137,466.00 0.00 0.00 137,466.00 T 060
Fund: 505 - Solid Waste Total: 2,364,421.00 2,364,421.00 26,601.45 315,282.86 1,217,578.89 831,559.25 35.17%
Report Total: 2,364,421.00 2,364,421.00 26,601.45 315,282.86 1,217,578.89 831,559.25 35.17%

9/13/2021 6:24:14 PM

Page 2 of 4



DOCUMENT #2



\

21-22 Budget Request/Justification

On each cefl, you will choose a number from the drop down list.

Please Refer to the Uniform Chart of Accounts for more detall

.\ hY\L% %\»[\g%

Department Name

Department Head or Supervisor

21400 Lodger's Tax

Ploase do not change this form in any way

520121 KS

——

21400 Lodgers’ Tax 21400 2002 General 2002 57130 Rent of EquipmentMachinery 57130 0000 B 11.500 {Lease payment JD GRMW/Farway John Deere Credit 950.73 x 12
Administration
21400 Lodgers' Tax 21400 2002 General 2002 57090 Pristing/Publishing/Advertising "§7090 0000 s 46,000
Administration
21400 Lodgers' Tax 21400 2002 General 2002 57090 Printing/ vy tising 57090 0000 [ 110,000 | Lindmark Outdoor $10, 140, Griffin and Associated Grant Manag $40,000, Lindmark
Administration Outdoor, etc.
21400 Lodgers’ Tax 21400 2002 General 2002 57999 Other Operating Costs 57999 0000 3 15.000 |Administraive Fecs
Administration /______\
] —~—
21400 Lodgers® Tax 21400 Az:‘:z hkc'::‘hln 2002 §5999 Coutract - Other Services 55999 0000 3 lOSQi M am Street Contract $35,000, ffin And Assoc $15,000,
of Elephant Butte $1,000, Lodger's Tax $7,000, State
Advertising Grant $27,805, $20,000 COGrant (old coa: 214-2503-
48599)
21400 Lodgers’ Tax 21400 2002 General 2002 57999 Other Operating Costs 57999 0000 3 2,000 frobie ars Project
Administration
TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST 000 s ‘290,308 |
20-21 Budget  § 281,305
s 9,000
L —— ]

LODGER'S TAX



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

2021/2022 SUBRECIPIENT GRANT AWARDS
DEADLINE: 03/05/21 APPLICATIONS REQUIRE CURRENT PROOF OF NONPROFIT STATUS WITH IRS & SOS.
2\ O OR 8 2\ O 018 Q 0 Q > 0 019 0 020 020 FY2021/22
0 0 REQ D APPROVED REQ D APPROVED REQ D APPROVED ”PRO_VED
Companion Animal Action Team (CAAT) _$1,500.00 | $1;500.00 $3,000.00 | $2,500.00 | $2;500.00 | $2,500.00 | $1,500.00
Domestic Abuse Intervention Center (DAIC) | $2,500.00 | $2,500.00 '$5,000.00 | $2,500.00 | $2,500.00 | $2,500.00 | $2,500.00
Matthew 25 Food Pantry " $7,200.00 | $7,200.00 | $8,000.00 | $7,200.00 | $7,860.00 | 1$7,860.00 | $5,000.00
Sierra Joint Office on Aging (SIOA) * $46,814.00 | $46,814.00 | $47,000.00 | $46,814.00 | $50,000.00 | $50,000.00 | $47,000.00
The Club of Sierra County _$10,00000 | $10,000.00 | $20,000.00 | $10,000.00 | $20,000.00 | $20,000.00 | $10,000.00
TOTALS | §76,514.00_| $69,014.00 | $83,000.00 | $69,014.00 | $82,860.00 | $82,860.00 | $66,000.00
Budget Balance
* SIOA receives $6,000-$7,000 in paid utilities annually. 101-1000-60725 -$69,014.00
[ = _____ADDITIONAL FUNDING REQUESTS : 5
LI.ODGERS TAX: FUND /O8N
Friends of Elephant Butte State Park '$2,000.00_ s:,ooo '$1,000.00 | ;:ii.’ooo"oo‘ | $1,000.00 L $0.00. $0.00
Geronimo Springs Museum '$4,600.00. | $4,600: $5,000.00 | | $5,000.00 $S,00000 $7,500.00
Geronimo Trail Scenic Byway, Inc. .$5,000.00_ | $S, | $5,00000 | $5000.00 | $5,000.00
MainStreet Truth or Consequences $35,000.00 | $35,000.00 | $35,000.00 _Lsssooooo $45,000.00 | $45,000. .00
LODGERS TAX TOTALS 24660000 $45,600.00  $46,000.00 $45,600.00 $56,000.00  $55,000! 497:500:00

GRAND TOTALS $123.114.00 $114,614.00

$129,000.00  shnssimunnsy $138,860.00 $137,860.00

$123,500.00

~8udgete

,000

X



DOCUMENT #3



Budget Adjustment for 209 Fire Fund

Estmated grant for 2021-22 was $326,428. Final award came in at $308,824 for a difference of {$17,604)
Interest income also needs to be reduced because of a lower cash balance.

Beginning
Budget

After BAR

Actual Estimated
Beginning Ending
Fund Cash Cash & Estimated Cash Cash Estimated Cash
No. Fund Balance + Investments = Investments + Revenues + Transfers In | - Transfers Out| - Expenditures = Balance
209 | Fire Protection Fund $ 374,001 374,001 | $ 327,428 | $ - $ - $ (410,700)] $ 290,729
Reduce grant amount for original estimate of $326,428 S (17,604)
Reduce Interest revenue because of lower cash balance $ {500)
Increase expenses to match ending cash balance and change in revenue S (272,625)
209 | Fire Protection Fund $ 374,001 374001 5 309,324 S (683,325)| S -




FIRST SAVINGS

5800 S WESTERN AVE
SD 57108

SIOUX FALLS,

TELEPHONE:575

CITYOF T OR C

BANK
ACCOUNT:

-894-7148

PAGE:

1

G 06/30/2021

FIRE PROTECTION 30-0
505 SIMS ST 1
T OR C NM 87901 0
www. firstsavingsbanks.com
N.O.W. ACCOUNT 30088795
DESCRIPTION DEBITS CREDITS DATE BALANCE
BALANCE LAST STATEMENT .. ...civtuinunnenennnnnsennnnn. 05/28/21 1163,333.03
DEPOSIT 34.60 06/02/21 1163,367.63
AP TRANSFER FUNDS 73.82 06/04/21 1163,293.81
AP TRANSFER FUNDS 6,321.26 06/11/21 1156,972.55
AP TRANSFER FUNDS 780,490.06 06/18/21 376,482.49
AP TRANSFER FUNDS 2,557.83 06/25/21 373,924.66
INTEREST 76.90 06/30/21 374,001.56
BALANCE THIS STATEMENT ........cotiiinrmmnsnnennnnnnnn. 06/30/21 374,001.56
TOTAL CREDITS (2) 111.50 MINIMUM BALANCE 373,924.66
TOTAL DEBITS (4) 789,442.97 AVG AVAILABLE BALANCE 851,541.13
INTEREST THIS STATEMENT 76.90

- END OF STATEMENT -



CITY FY 2022 FIRE PROTECTION FUND TOTAL DISTRIBUTION ALLOTMENT

ADMIN  MAIN SUB ADMIN TOTAL NMFA TOTAL
DEPARTMENT MS SS BIDGS STATION  STATION TOTAL  DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT  TO DEPT

Alamogordo 6 1 0 $620,448 $38,966 $0 $659,414 $0 $659,414
Albuquerque 21 4 1 $2,529,009 $178,508 $120,429 $2,827.946 $277,916 $2,550,030
Angel Fire 3 0 1 $269,754 $0 $89,918 $359,672 $0 $359,672
Artesia 2 0 0 $224,802 $0 $0 $224,802 $0 $224,802
Aztec 2 1 0 $188,830 $35,967 $0 $224,797 $0 $224,797
Bayard 1 0 0 $89.918 $0 $0 $89,918 $0 $89,918
Belen 2 1 1 $188,830 $35,967 $94,415 $319,212 $0 $319,212
Bloomfield 2 1 1 $224,802 $41,964 $112,401 $379,167 $80,259 $298,908
Bosque Farms 1 0 0 $103,408 $0 $0 $103,408 $0 $103,408
Capitan 2 0 0 $170,844 $0 $0 $170,844 $0 $170,844
Carisbad 4 2 1 $413,632 $77.932 $103,408 $594,972 $0 $594,972
Carrizozo 2 0 0 $179,836 $0 $0 $179,836 $25,895 $153,941
Causey 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $23,194 $66,724
Chama 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $0 $89,918
Cimarron 1 0 0 $94 415 $0 $0 $94,415 $21,305 $73,110
Clayton 3 0 1 $269,754 $0 $89,918 $358,672 $0 $359.672
Cloudcroft 3 0 0 $310,224 $0 $0 $310,224 $50,980 $259,244
Clovis 6 1 0 $674,406 $41,964 $0 $716,370 $0 $716,370
Cochiti Lake 1 1 0 $103.408 $38,966 $0 $142,374 $37,793 $104,581
Columbus 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $28,662 $61,256
Corona 1 0 0 $94,415 $0 $0 $94,415 $12,177 $82,238
Corrales 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $0 $283,245
Cuba 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94.415 $283,245 $20,044 $263,201
Deming 1 1 1 $94 415 $35,967 $94,415 $224,797 $60,878 $163,919
Des Moines 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $25,501 $64,417
Dexter 2 0 1 $179,836 $0 $89,918 $269,754 $64,113 $205,641
Dora 2 0 0 $170,844 $0 $0 $170,844 $0 $170,844
Eagle Nest 1 1 0 $94,415 $35,967 $0 $130,382 $15,000 $115,382

Monday, July 12, 2021 Page | of 4



DEPARTMENT MS sS grRes STATION STATION TOTAL DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT TO DEPT,
Elephant Butte 2 1 1 $179,836 $32,971 $89,918 $302,725 $25,586 $277,139
Elida 2 0 0 $170,844 $0 $0 $170,844 $35,431 $135413
Encino 1 0 0 $89,918 $o $0 $89,918 $18,867 $71,051
Espanola 2 1 1 $179,836 $32,971 $89,918 $302,725 $0 $302,725
Estancia 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $0 $89,918
Eunice 1 0 0 $94,415 $0 $0 $94,415 $0 $94,415
Farmington 5 1 1 $562,005 $41,964 $112,401 $716,370 $55,187 $661,183
Floyd 2 0 0 $170,844 $0 $0 $170,844 $52,844 $118,000
Folsom 2 0 0 $179,836 $0 $0 $179,836 $12,546 $167.290
Fort Sumner 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $o $89,918 $29,155 $60,763
Gallup 4 2 1 $413,632 $77,932 $103,408 $594,972 $143,316 $451,656
Grady 1 0 ] $85,422 $0 $0 $85,422 $0 $85,422
Grants 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $47 462 $235,783
Hagerman 2 0 1 $170,844 $0 $85,422 $256,266 $25,992 $230,274
Hatch 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $23,544 $66,374
Hobbs 4 0 1 $449,604 $0 $112,401 $562,005 $0 $562,005
Hope 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $0 $89,918
House 1 0 0 $80,927 $0 $0 $80,927 $0 $80,927
Hurley 1 0 ] $85,422 30 $0 $85,422 $0 $85,422
Jal 2 0 0 $179,836 $0 $0 $179,836 $55,153 $124,683
Jemez Springs 1 0 0 $85,422 $0 $0 $85,422 $10,892 $74,530
Lake Arthur 1 1 0 $56,951 $22,491 $0 $79,442 $20,255 $59,187
Las Cruces 8 0 1 $963,432 $0 $120,429 $1,083,861 $0 $1,083,861
Las Vegas 2 1 1 $179,836 $32,971 $89,918 $302,725 $33,521 $269,204
Logan 3 o] 0 $269,754 $0 $0 $269,754 $62,106 $207,648
Lordsburg 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $22,338 $67,580
Los Lunas 3 0 0 $283,245 $0 $0 $283,245 $40,785 $242.460
Los Ranchos De Albuquerque 1 1 0 $103,408 $38,966 $0 $142,374 $0 $142,374
Loving 1 0 0 $85,422 $0 $0 $85,422 $0 $85.422
Lovington 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $0 $283,245
Magdalena 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $17,321 $72,597

Monday, July 12, 2021

Page 2 of 4



DEPARTMENT ADMIN MAIN SUB ADMIN TOTAL NMFA TOTAL

MS SS BLDGS STATION STATION TOTAL DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT TO DEPT.

W‘_Wm
Melrose 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $47,666 $235,579
Mesilla 1 1 1 $94.415 $35,967 $94,415 $224,797 $24,572 $200,225
Milan 2 0 0 $188,830 $0 $0 $188,830 $63,086 $125,744
Moriarty 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94.415 $283,245 $56.149 $227,096
Mosquero 1 0 0 $80,927 $0 $0 $80,927 $25,747 $55,180
Mountainair 1 0 0 $85,422 $0 $0 $85.422 $0 $85,422
Pecos 1 1 0 $85,422 $29,971 $0 $115,393 $0 $115,393
Peralta 1 0 0 $94,415 $0 $0 $94,415 $25,332 $69,083
Portales 3 1 0 $283,245 $35,967 $0 $319,212 $99,281 $219,931
Questa 1 1 0 $89,918 $32,971 $0 $122,889 $36,607 $86,282
Raton 3 2 0 $337,203 $83,928 $0 $421,131 $0 $421,131
Red River 1 0 0 $94,415 $0 $0 $94,415 $10,029 $84,386
Reserve 3 0 0 $283,245 $0 $0 $283,245 $41,069 $242,176
Rio Grande Estates 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $55,537 $227,708
Rio Rancho 6 1 1 $674,406 $41,964 $112,401 $828,771 $53,025 $775,746
Roswell 7 0 1 $786,807 $0 $112,401 $899,208 $0 $899,208
Roy 1 0 0 $80,927 $0 $0 $80,927 $0 $80,927
Ruidoso 3 2 0 $337,203 $83,928 $0 $421,131 $90,044 $331,087
Ruidoso Downs 1 0 0 $85,422 $0 $0 $85,422 $0 $85,422
San Jon 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $15,001 $74,917
Santa Clara 1 0 0 $85,422 $0 $0 $85,422 $0 $85,422
Santa Fe 8 1 1 $899,208 $41,964 $112,401 $1,053,573 $123,040 $930,533
Santa Rosa 2 1 0 $179,836 $32,971 $0 $212,807 $30,111 $182,696
Silver City 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $86,629 $196,616
Socorro 2 1 0 $188,830 $35,967 $0 $224,797 $58,201 $166,596
Springer 1 0 0 $85,422 $0 $0 $85,422 $24,781 $60,641
Sunland Park 3 0 1 $283,245 $0 $94,415 $377,660 $90,413 $287,247
Taos 2 2 1 $188,830 $71,934 $94,415 $355,179 $0 $355,179

Taos Ski Valley

-
=%
-

$89,918 $32,971 $89,918 $212,807 $0 $212,807

Monday, July 12, 2021 Page 3 of 4



ADMIN

MAIN SUB ADMIN TOTAL NMFA TOTAL
DEPARTMENT MS S5 BLDGS STATION  STATION  TOTAL  DISTRIBUTION At TO DEPT.
Tatum 1 0 0 $89,918 $0 $0 $89,918 $0 $89,918
Texico 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $12,785 $270,460
Tijeras 1 0 0 $94,415 $0 $0 $94,415 $0 $94,415
Town of Bemalillo 2 0 1 $179,836 $0 $89,918 $269,754 $47,901 $221,853
Truth or Consequences 2 0 1 $224,802 $0 $112,401 $337,203 $28,379 $308.824
Tucumcari 2 0 1 $188,830 $0 $94,415 $283,245 $0 $283,245
Tularosa 2 0 0 $188,830 $o $0 $188,830 $59,748 $129,082
Vaughn 1 0 0 $85,422 $0 $0 $85,422 $23,567 $61,855
Virden 1 0 0 $85.422 $0 $0 $85,422 $0 $85,422
Wagon Mound 1 1 0 $94,415 $35,967 $0 $130,382 $25,693 $104,689
COUNT OF MUNICIPAL ADMIN TOTAL TOTAL SUB TOTAL TOTAL NMFA TOTAL TO
DEPARTMENTS MS | SS BLDGS MAIN STATION ADMIN DISTRIBUTION TOTAL DEPARTMENTS
99 220 | 38 35 $22,099.749 $1.438.904 $3.455472 $26.994.125 $2.750.044 $24.244,081
Fire Support Service BC
Randy Varela: /s/ Randy Varela Date: 7-12-21
State Fire Marshal
John Kondratick: /s/John Kondratick Date: 7/12/21

Monday, July 12, 2021

ASB Chief gl oy higtvoser SO
Sarah Peterson: 2arah J. Peterson et 3
Cabinet Secretary gianca Ortiz Wertheim Sos s ma S
Bianca Ortiz-Wertheim e o7 T

Page 4 of 4




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: T.2

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021

SUBJECT: Discussion Action — Repeal Resolution 40 18/19 Establishing Fees for Fuel Charges at the Airport
DEPARTMENT: Assistant City Manager

DATE SUBMITTED: September 13, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Traci Alvarez

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Traci Alvarez

Summary/Background:
Resolution does not meet the current needs of the airport

Recommendation:

Repeal Resolution 40 18/19

Attachments:
e Resolution 40 18/19

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

Approved For Submittal By: (] Department Director
Reviewed by: X City Clerk [JFinance [ Legal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: [ City Manager

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No.-  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

] Approved (] Denied [IOother: -
File Name: CC Agenda 9-22-2021




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

RESOLUTION NO. 40 18/19

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES FOR FUEL CHARGES AT THE
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

WHEREAS, the City of Truth or Consequences owns and operates the
Truth or Consequences Municipal Airport and is responsible for establishing fuel
fees and other charges; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission determined that the following fees are
reasonable; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the
City of Truth or Consequences:

1. The following fuel charges for the City of Truth or Consequences
Municipal Airport are hereby established:

The City’s cost of the fuel plus 10¢ per gallon for self-service.

The City’s cost of the fuel plus 30¢ per gallon for full-service.

Other fuel supplies shall be the City’s cost plus 10%.

All other charges shall be determined by the Airport Manager and City
Manager.

onw»>

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this Z day of May, 2019.

-

v e, Py ——
»" .,

- SANDRA WHITEHEAD - Mayor

/AZLW? (D

RENEE CANTIN —€ity Clerk




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021

Agenda Item #: T.3

SUBJECT: Personnel Policy

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: September 15, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Tammy Gardner

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Bruce Swingle, City Manager

Summary/Background:

Review/Approve Personnel Policy.

Recommendation:

Approve

Attachments:

e Personnel Policy
e C(lick here to enter text.

Fiscal Impact (Finance): Choose anitem.

Click here to enter text.

Legal Review (City Attorney): Choose an item.

Click here to enter text

Approved For Submittal By: X Department Director

Reviewed by: [ City Clerk [ Finance [ Legal [ Other: Click here to enter text.

Final Approval: X City Manager

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. Click here to enter text.  Ordinance No. Click here to enter text.
Continued To: Click here to enter a date. Referred To: Click here to enter text.

L] Approved [J Denied OOther: Click here to enter text.
File Name: CC Agenda 9-22-2021




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS
ORDINANCE Ne 719

An Ordinance Relating to Administration, Adopting a Personnel Policy; Setting forth
Personnel Rules and Regulations Establishing Consistent, Basic Policies and Practices, and
Professionalism Expectations Concerning Relations between the City and its Employees

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 provides that municipalities, have the power
to “protect generally the property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve peace
and order”; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-17-1 provides that cities may adopt ordinances, not
inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on cities, to discharge those
powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the
prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the city and its
inhabitants; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-13-4 (1965) allows municipalities to establish a
personnel merit system for the hiring, promotion, discharge and general regulation of municipal
employees; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Truth or Consequences has a right and responsibility to the
taxpayers to set reasonable professional, ethical, performance, and behavioral expectations for
employees, supervisors and managers to ensure tax dollars are used in an appropriate and
efficient manner; and,

WHEREAS, City of Truth or Consequences employees have an expectation and a right

to be treated fairly, consistently and professionally while employed with the City of Truth or
Consequences.

Pagei



Table of Contents

Contents
PREAMBLE ..ottt e ettt e e ettt et se e et et e e esesensansnenas i
Table Of CONENLS.......c.ccoiuiiriiieiieeei ettt e ettt ee e e e sa et s se st eseseesesenee ii
SECTION L: DEFINITIONS ..ottt ettt e ste et se et ee e eene e s sens 1
SECTION II: EMPLOYMENT STATUS ..ottt et rere et ee e enene 5
2.1 PoSition SPECIfiCatiOnS.......cccovivriereeiereiiteeeteeeeecreeeetete ettt s et eaeete e e e essaessesesesasens 5
SECTION III: GENERAL PROVISIONS ......ccoitiiitiietieretceecet et eesteeeeeess s s eneeans 6
FUT PUIPOSE ...ttt sttt st sttt e e e s e es e eneeee et eae e sseenesens 6
3.2 SCO0PE....vctitiniii sttt ettt ettt ettt s ane e e se e e eeeneneenan 6
3.3 Amendment of Rules & RegUIAtIONS.............coveuieviivtieiieeieeeeeee et eev e e ere e e e eesaeens 6
3.4 Employee Knowledge & Information of Rules & Regulations.............ccocevveeeveeeeeeeeeresrnnnn, 6
3.5 Equal Employment Opportunity Rules & Regulations ................ccoueeeeveeeeeceeeeeseerssesenann, 6
3.6 Administration by City Manager. ..........cccecveveieeirereiereriieeeseeiseseesereeeetsneeeseeeseeeeeeesesesesesnens 6
3.7 Duties of All EMPIOYEES......c.ovueueieriiierrerineiieeteeeeceieeteseete ettt s e seeeneesseseseesssessanas 6
3.8 Chain of Command & Conflict RESOIUION ...........coovvveuiriieiiiieieeeee et ee e esene s 7
3.9 Conflict with Collective Bargaining Agreements.............c.o.ooveeeevevererreeeereneeereesseseessesesessssns 7
3.10 Code Of EthiCS.....ccceueeeieieinieiiieeseetetet ettt ettt st eeese e e e s e es e s seeseasanans 7
SECTION IV: RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION ......c.ccooiiievieieecceerereeeeeeeereee e e eeeeneeeaes 10
A1 PUIPOSE. ..ottt ettt ettt n bbb s s as ettt st s seneeseesnesseeneanasanann 10
4.2 Recruitment Of APPLICANES ........coueviiirieiireietitee ettt e et e e et e s 10
4.3 Temporarily Filling Vacant POSItioNS...........c.ccceeieviieeeeiieiceeieeeeeeeeeeee e esv e e eeeenees 10
4.4 Best Qualified & Best-Suited Applicant Determination ................cccoveveeveeereeeeeereesernns 10
4.5 SEIECHION ...ttt s et st s et e e e enese e anene e s e saren 10
4.6 Pre-Selection Prohibited .........ccovvveiieieeiiiiieeiceeeet ettt 10
4.7 Ineligibility for Hire and REhire ..........ccooeueueieriiieietiieececeeee e e s 10
B8 TESHNE .....cueiveriiieieeeeertee e r ettt st sttt e e s seeseseese e seaeaeeseeseseaseseannsens 11
4.9 Background InVestigation. ..........c..vueiniiii i 11
4.10 Commencement Of WOTK..........ccoiviriiiininniieeetcce ettt e e e e e e vesees 11
SECTION V: CHANGES IN EMPLOYMENT STATUS ...cooouiieitiiee ettt evevsnenanas 12
5.1 PIOMOION ..ottt ettt st s e ae e e e s eneeeeenesnean 12
5.2 Evaluation PEriOd..........c.coiiniiiiiiiecceceeee ettt e e sae e enaen s 12
5.3 DEIMOMION ....cviiiiieieteirtee ettt et et ettt estete s e seesseseseeeenteseneeseessnsessssssensesens 12
SAATIANSTETS ...ttt ettt se et e e e eane e e e e s aeaes 12
5.5 RESIGNALION ...c.evriiieiiiieiiieeetirs ettt st st see et eeseene e e e eeeeasseseeaeas 12
5.6 LAYOST PIOCEAUIE .......cccovemiiiriieieieictctiee ettt ettt ten e e enne e s e e 13
5.7 Layoff Return PrivIlEges........ccviiiinirieriiteetetececteecteee ettt eeeeese e s s e e s e 13
5.8 Medical Disability DiSIMISSal........cccovivoirierieeniereriieecerececc ettt eeeeeee s s e 13
5.9 REINSIALEIMENL ........ceoveneeveiieiriieeste ettt ettt s et sttt et e e teeesese e et eneannssessans 13



SECTION VI: CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT ........ccoviiiiieiitecrceeeeereveeeee e 14

6.1 Probationary Period for NeW Hires ........cccocueieieieieieicecieeccece ettt 14
6.2 Temporary Employee Hired to a Regular Position...........c.ccccccvvvevrieiiineiciceecee e 14
6.3 Former City Employees Hired to @ POSItiON.........c.ccoeieivrieiiicicieecce e 14
6.4 Permitted Political ACHVILIES ........covvvueirrrieecieeeece ettt e eae 14
6.5 Prohibited PolitiCal ACHIVILIES.......ccueerieierieieiereeeieeee st s et st st 15
6.6 Public/POlitical OffiCe ........cccveeivieirriiirteieeeeereeetee ettt st ne e 15
0.7 NEPOLISIIL.....c.oviniriiiiiiiirteeeet ettt te b et et es s be s s b e s et ebe e sessebe s ebe e sesnsesesessasetssssneneseonons 15
6.8 CoNFlICt BaAN.....c.ooiiiiiiiieeiectccee ettt ettt et e nene 16
6.9 Outside EMPIOYIMENL ......coovvvuieiiieiieeieiricceeee ettt eres et tese st e st e e neneenenee 16
6.10 Workplace & Sexual Harassment. .........cccceceeueeeireeieeieecriececeeecesteeesnese e s en s 16
6.11 Performance Evaluations/Goals.............c.coooiiiiiiiiiii e 18
6.12 Fitness for DULY.......coouiiiiiinii i e 20
6.13 Anti-Fraternization............oooiiiiiiii e 22
SECTION VII: BASIS FOR EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE..........coeoivtiicieeeetceteesee s 22
T 1 DISCIPINE ...ttt sttt et b e bbbt et eene e eeene 22
7.2 Definition Of JUSt CAUSE.......cccoviriririreiriesieteteeeet ettt ess e se st e e s e e neene 23
7.3 DISCIPHNATY ACHON. .....ccririerieirierieieestetesteteeetee bt eseerese s sesssesestesseseseesaesseseeeseseeseeneeees 23
7.4 Consultation With City AHOINEY ........ccecvviviiriiieiiereieieiee ettt rese e e ne e seas 23
7.5 Progressive DISCIPINE ........ccueueiririeiiiciininirencests ettt 23
7.6 Verbal REprimand..........ccccovciviiiiiinieinieeeicieectee ettt s sttt sen s s eenes 23
7.7 Written Reprimand ...........cccoccuiiniiiniriiiecineree ettt se st st e sene 24
7.8 SUSPEIISION .....vurivmiiiiiuieeieieieteteiet ettt te e st et s be s se s bbb eseatere st ssensetensssasenessneneseeneanene 24
7.9 DEIMOTION ...ttt te et et asse et e e st essessbeseesesessesbestestonssassessnsensesesessnerenens 25
T.10 DISMUSSAL......eniiiiiiieeie sttt ettt ettt be et et nr e st sat oo n e e ne e eee 25
7.11 Examples NOt INCIUSIVE .........ocuviieiricietieteicectee ettt st 26
7.12 Pre-Determination (Loudermill) HEAring ...........c.ocveeveveievrieiceecieieeee e eeeeeeeeeevenes 26
713 WIEEN NOLICE ...ttt ettt bttt sens e sttt ene et enenene 26
7.14 Immediate Suspension With Pay ..........ccccoceeviviiiiiiiieiiiiiecceccecsee e 26
7.15 Pre-Determination Hearing Procedure ...........ccooueveevieicieicicecricicceceseicceeeee e 27
7.16 Pre-Determination Hearing DeCiSION .........c.ccveveeveiieniiiieieciieceetee ettt 27
7.17 NOtICE Of GIIEVANCE ........cceeuireieieeeriieisietete ettt ete s st besessssaesaeseesessesessenseseneen 27
SECTION VIII: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES .........coooiiiietiececeeesetcereeveteeeet et 27
8.1 Conditions or Actions NOt GrieVable ...........cccceveeierierereiniericctc ettt 27
8.2 Employees Not Eligible for Grievance Procedure................coooevieieriieeneereneeeeeeeeeeeeen 28
8.3 Grievance ProCedUIE...........cccouvuiririeririeci ettt ettt e st senene 28
8.4 Appointment of Personnel Hearing Officer...........coooiviriuinieriiecieicccceee e, 28
8.5 Hearing Officer QUalifications ............ccccouvririieneeseceecee et 28
8.6 Grievance Hearing SChedule .............cooiiiieeioiiieeeeececc s 28
8.7 Grievance Hearing Procedures - Rules of Procedure ..............cccceivveveereceeeeeee e 28
8.8 Conduct Of HEAIING........ccevieiriiiieeeeetceeeete ettt st se s eeas 29
8.9 Order Of PreSENTALION ..........ccevtrieirieiriirtrseeee ettt s et ee s s e ee 29
8.10 Communication of Hearing Officer’s DeCISION.........cc.cuveueiieiriiiiireeceeeeeseeeee e 29
8.11 Appeal of Hearing Officer’s DeCISION.........cccccvvireririeverinreeetereecree et 30
SECTION IX: COMPENSATION & BENEFITS ..ottt 30
DT PUIPOSE ..ttt ettt ettt n ettt et ene st ene 30

Page iii



0.2 HOUES OF WOTK ....viiieeeeeei ettt ee e e e e eteeeeaeeeeeseeeeneseseseneeesseenes s et e e e e e 30

9.3 OVEITIME PAY ..ottt st sttt s se et e e ea e e s e e e e 30
9.4 Consistency with Fair Labor Standards AcCt .............ccceeveieviieiieiceiiieeeeeeeeeee e 31
9.5 Emergency Call-Out Pay..........coooiuiniiiiiiiii e 31
9.6 Stand-By Pay.........oiuiiiiiii 31
9.7 P ER.A. BENELIS ..ottt n e 31
9.8 INSUIanCe BENETILS .....c.couevuiriiiniiiiiicreeecte ettt st aes 31
9.9 FIINGE BENELIts........cceruieiiiiiiiieeetetieeteee ettt ettt et e e st e e e eteseeneesenes 31
9.10 Compensatory TIME.........ccceeiirirrireeieeeieeeete e esee e b st sesssese st seseeseeseeeeeeeeeeaes 31
91T FIEX TIHME ...ttt ettt ettt et s et e et e e e e e senna 32
SECTION X: LEAVE AND HOLIDAYS ...ttt estss st ese st ese s e s eeanenan 32
LO.T HOBAAYS ..ttt ettt ettt st s ae st et sa et et e eeeseneens 32
10.2 Personal Holiday LEAVE.........ccccuiierireeieeieietececeetectetetee ettt et e et e eveeseeneeesenanans 33
10.3 Annual Leave With Pay ..ottt ste e e e s e s se s 33
10.4 Accrual LIMItAtion..........cccovueiriiniiinenietieee ettt s sttt eeee e saene 34
10.5 Separation from Service or Change in Service Pay............ccooevvueivieieeeeereeeeseeereeeesreeennns 34
10.6 Leave Donation POLICY .......cccoeeeieiieiiiiniiieecteeteeeeees ettt et ee e aens 34
10.7 Sick Leave With Pay .........ccccoviiiiiieieecee ettt ere e e 34
10.8 Sick Leave AUhOTIZAtION .......c.coeeiivieriniririecsectereee ettt e e e eseneea 35
10.9 Use of Sick Leave During Probationary Period ............coooeveivievicieneeeieeeneseeseeeeeeseeaneens 35
10.10 Certification of IlIness for Sick Leave.........ccccovveveriuiereiiiiieceeictcceee e 35
10.11 Bereavement LEAVE. ........cc.eceriiriririeietiiieeecieeceteeet ettt sttt ene e e e eeeeeeseneas 35
10.12 Family Medical Leave ..........cccoviieieiinieceieieteeeeeeereec ettt se e e e aenas 35
10.13 AdmiNIStrative LEAVE........ccueieerieietiiiieceeeeectctsteeces ettt st s e s e e e e e v eseens 36
10.14 Workers” Compensation Program .............ccoeeueeeieieiereeeeecnineeeececcet st ees 36
10.15 On-The-JOob INJUIY LEAVE .......ccoeiiririeiiietceetceeeeeee ettt st een e ee e 37
JO.16 VOUNG LEAVE ...ttt ettt st ese st eeeeeeee e ssens 37
10.17 Court Service Leave With Pay ...........ccccoieiiviiiriniiiciceeeecceee et e s s 37
10.18 Leave WithOUt Pay ........c.cooviioiiiiiieceeceee ettt 37
10.19 Life Threatening Illnesses in the Workplace ..........cccovueueiriereveiiiccceniseeeee e 38
10.20 InClement WEAther ..........ccuvuiiiieueiieieteeeectctectc ettt st eeae e et ee et se e s e e enens 38
10.21 Leave For Unforeseen CIrCUMSLANCES ..........ccecevvrvererereirrerieresieeeeeeeeiesessseeeseeseeseesensens 38
10.22 MILIAIY LEAVE. ....eeeiiiiiieicetreete ettt ettt sttt e e st e e e e eaeeeseas 38
10.23 Light Duty Return-To-WOrK..........ccocviiiieiiieiericeeceeeeeteesee et e s ae e 40
10.24 Change in FLSA StAtUS ......coccvvieieeeieriieecreeeete ettt et et eaeeve e s e eeeseeaene 41
SECTION XI: SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY ....cceiietiiieteeeeeteeeeeeeeteciv et se e 42
LTLO PUIPOSE ..ottt ettt ettt ov e sttt st et e e e eeeaens 42
11.1 Safety Sensitive EMPIOYEES......c.cocvuiirieiriiiriececrceceterr ettt ee s 42
TL2Z POLICY .ottt ettt ettt bt sene et sa st enenesesaseseasaners 42
11.3 Prohibited SUDSIANCES........cccveiriiiiieecteetee ettt e st ee e eeeeeaa 43
11.4 Prohibited COondUCE ..........coeviiireiiiieeeeeee ettt ettt n et e e e e s e anans 43
11.5 Testing Which Results In a Diluted Specimen ..........cc.ooovevevereviieiiicenicececcc e 434
11.6 Treatment REQUITEMENLS..........c.coevivivinirieininiiieees ettt ene e eene s 45
11.7 Proper Application 0f the POLICY ......cccceovirimiiieeiieeeeeeeee et 45
11.8 Testing PrOCEAUIES......c.ccveiriririiirieite ettt ettt ese s e e e eseeseas 45
11.9 Pre-Employment Drug & Alcohol Screening..............c.oveeeeveveiereeieeenireeeeeeeeeeeeeeseneenns 46
11.10 Employee Requested TESNG ........cceoceirivrinieinieeeeeee ettt et es e 46



11.11 Reasonable Suspicion TeStING. ......c.ccceviveirininrieeeeee et 46

11.12 Post-Accident TESHING........cccoueceeuirieirrirerineesiseie ettt be st seseeen e 46
11.13 Random TeStING.......ccoereiieriieieirieireesecteietere et re et er et e et saeanane 47
11.14 Return-To-Duty TESHNE ......cccevririirieiiireieieeceseeeer et sae et s n e e seeenes 47
11.15 FOIIOW-UP TESHNEG.....c.ccirieriririiinreirieitseceeaereteteee st vt reses sttt saeneeseneseseesesennsaens 48
11.16 Employment ASSESSINENL..........cocecteueririrerinrensieesieessereeeseseseeseseseseesessessssssessesessssssesenens 48
11.17 Departmental Rule for Positive Drug/Alcohol Test .........ccovveverevieierivriiiceiecececceenene 48
11.18 Re-ENtry CONIIACES ......cocvviiiiiiierieiiieteiieteciete ettt st st e s ettt e e e e seeenen 49
1119 DIEIECHION .. .c.uivereriiicieieiecetsietesr et e st ettt bbb st ese st esestassessenn et seseseessaesesseneenen 49
11.20 Voluntary Request for ASSIStancCe. .........c.cceveveeiereveerinreeeeetetiecreeesievetesesess e s esnen 49
T1.21 DEfINItIONS ...c.veiniiiiienieiientrete sttt v bt sesee e e seseseneseneaeas 49
TL22 RECOTAS ...ttt sttt ettt et st s e et e b et se et st seeneen e nene 50
11.23 Confidentially .....c..ccccoeriiniiririeieeniteceeeeeee ettt re st st st sae st s e e e 50
SECTION XII: COMPUTER, EMAIL, INTERNET, SOCIAL MEDIA, & CELL USE............. 50
12,0 ACCESS vttt ettt ettt e b et bt be et ebe st sa et et et seo b eanateseeeene 50
12.1 PUIPOSE & SCOPE. ....oeiiviiiiiiieiiiieteie ettt sttt et ettt sr et re st s nnenes 50
12.2 ACCEPLADIE USE ...ttt ettt ettt s e st s e st sae e e senes 51
12.3 Inappropriate USE..........cccviereiniiieeririeiininieceieieiteesscstess e esesereses s s s s sre et es et snene 51
12.4 Internet, E-Mail & Cellular Phone Etiquette ..........c.ccoviiveiieeiiieceeeee e 51
12,5 SECUITLY ..ottt b et et er s eb et s st st sbeseeseseereeeseseseenesenene 52
12.6 PENALHIES ...ttt ettt bttt sttt eeene 52
12.7 No EXpectation Of PIIVACY ........cccvviririeienieietiree sttt er et ee e seeeas 52
12.8 USEr COMPIIANCE .......covviiiieiiiiieiieiiieeeeee et ere ettt ssesas et eeseseeesee e seeseeseenen 52
12.9 Protection & Handling of Sensitive Information...............cccoevvieveiviineereeeereereeeee e 52
12.10 Social MEia. ... . cuniiiii it e 52
SECTION XIII: PAY POLICY ..ottt et vttt et et s se st st ens 53
1301 PUIPOSE .ottt ettt ettt ebe st eaeese st e bt e s e nease e sesensee 53
13.2 APPHCADIIILY ...ttt ettt ettt s sttt et e s e s 53
13.3 Pay Compensation Process OVEIVIEW. ........ccccuereeieitiiteceiriceceeesesesvesre st snesenseenes 53
13.4 ENtry LeVEl WAZES .....ccooiiiviiieiieieiicieteieree ettt vt be st eb s eae st st s e e s esee e eaeeen 53
13.5 Position Specifications REQUITEMENLS ..........covvecerreirerierireiiiereeetereev et 53
13.6 Grandfather ClauSE ..........ccccecireiriririieeeee ettt e 53
13.7 Contents of Personnel File...........cccccovviirroiniiiineieniceeeeer ettt 53
13.8 Access to Personnel Files .........c.coeivivniriinniniiineneceeceecee et 54

SECTION XIV: EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY/ AFFIRMATIVE ACTION... ....54

LA T PUIPOSE ....viiiiiiiitcicirisiccste ettt et a ettt ettt b et es et ettt ene st st eassesseneseenne 54
14.2 Statement 0f POIICY .....c.coivviruiriiieeeietieteie ettt ettt e e ee e eeaeees 54
14.3 Management ReSPONSIDILILY ........cccuvirieieereceeinieececteeter et seeeas 54
14.4 Complaint PrOCEAUIES........c.ceiteuiririrretriciecee ettt ettt et s nenene 55
14.5 REMEAIES......ooviniiiiiciteccrcrtc et ettt b ettt sttt eone e seeeene 55
SECTION XV - MISCELLANEOUS ..ottt se e eeeesesnen 55
15.1 Designated WOrK ATEaS ........covcveueeiriniiiiiiiceereeceete ettt st st ettt eeeeeseenenes 55
15.2 Personal BUSINESS .......ccceceeueiieerientiiriniieesiectetetesrere et ere et sesas s e s essone e seesesaneaenes 55
I5.3 SAIELY ...ttt sttt ettt e seeeee 55
15.4 CHtY PTOPEITY .....cueiuiiieieirieiecsiscetsestente ettt e s eb e st s et st eeeese s enosseeasenens 56



15.6 Personal APPEATaANCE ..........c.covvecueriririnieeeteeeteseteesete s ee st e e eeseeesses e e seses s seeeas 56
15.7 Confidential Information & Unauthorized Recording................ccooovueieiieiininnin, 57
15.8 Searches & SUIVEIIANCE ...........ooveuiuiueiiceieee et ve e s s 57
15.9 WOTKPIace VIOIENCE .......ccooueuiiiiieiiicticeeeeee et s et en e 57
15.10 Final PayCheck ........c.ccoiiiiiiiiiee et ne e s e es e s e 58
LS. 1T UNIFOIIIS ..ottt ettt et s e s s e s e es et eesee s 58
15.12 Return of Uniforms, Equipment & City PrOPerty .........cocoeeeeeeeeeeecererererereeeseeeseseeron. 59
15.13 Gifts, Gratuities or KiCKDaCKS. ... ....oueneiet e 59
15.14 Normal WOrk HOUTS. .......oovvueiriieiieietererererceteeteeeete et e e e e 59
15.15 Reduced WOrk HOUTS ........couvieieieiiierieeetcrcceeee e e oo 59
15.16 Separation from Service with the City...........covviiiieee e, 59
SECTION XVI: AUTHORITY ..ottt et e e s s 60
LO.1 RUIES ...ttt ettt et ee e et s s e s oo es et eee s 60
16.2 SAVINGS CIAUSE.......ocuemiiriieiiiieie ettt et n s erese e ese e s s es e eesees 60
SECTION XVII: REPEAL OF FORMER PERSONNEL POLICY ...ouevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoees 60
EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM .........cccocovieiiieieeeeeeeeereeeee oo 61

Page vi



SECTION I: DEFINITIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE WITH PAY: Leave with pay granted at the City
Manager’s discretion after considering the department director and Human Resource
Manager’s recommendation. Bereavement Leave is Administrative Leave with pay. See
Section 10.13.

ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE WITHOUT PAY: Leave without pay granted at the
City Manager’s discretion after considering the department director and Human Resource
Manager’s recommendation.

ANNIVERSARY DATE:  Anniversary date means the date of appointment or
reemployment and changes as of the date of promotion, demotion, reduction, or change to
a different technical occupation group, group role, or manager category in the same pay
band or pay opportunity.

ANNUAL LEAVE: Leave with pay granted to an employee, after accrual at a specific
rate, with approval of the employee’s supervisor.

APPEAL: Written request that a decision of a formal grievance be reconsidered at a
further stage in the grievance procedure.

APPLICANT: A person who made formal application on an official City
personnel application form for a position with the City.

“AT WILL” EMPLOYEE: See definition of “Unclassified Employee”.
BOARD: Board means the Board of City Commissioners.

CASUAL EMPLOYEE: An employee hired to fill a position paid by the hour that
may be called on short notice and/or on an occasional basis. Casual employee may also
work less than twenty (20) hours a week. A casual employee is paid only for hours
worked and does not receive any employment benefits. A casual employee does not have
the right to grieve employment decisions.

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE: An employee that serves the prescribed probationary period
and is eligible for the rights and privileges provided for under these Rules.

CONTINUOUS LENGTH OF CITY SERVICE:  Continuous length of City service
means the length of time for which there have been no breaks in employment as an
employee spanning from the employee’s Date of Hire, other than annual leave, sick
leave, military leave authorized pursuant to Section 10.24 below, or authorized leave
without pay for less than six (6) months.

CONTRACT EMPLOYEE: Contract employees are unclassified FLSA exempt and
have a contract approved by the Board modifying the conditions of the City’s personnel
policy. Contract employees serve at the will and pleasure of the Board. Contract
employees are not entitled to grievance procedures, employee benefits or holiday
premium pay.

Page 1



1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

CITY BUSINESS:  The performance of official duties of a City employee at an
employee’s normal work site or at a location authorized by the City.

CITY MANAGER: An individual appointed by the Board to conduct the business of
the City and to act as the chief executive officer for the Board, aiding and assisting the
Board in the exercise of their duties and responsibilities. In the event there is no City
Manager, the duties and responsibilities specified in these Rules shall be carried out by an
appointed Acting or Interim City Manager.

DATE OF HIRE: Date of Hire is the date indicated as such on the employee’s
Personnel Action Form indicating New Hire as a regular employee, from which there is
continuous length of City service. Alternatively, the Date of Hire may be from the date
of Reinstatement if reinstatement occurs after a lapse of continuous length of City
service.

DEMOTION: An employee may be demoted to a position for which the employee is
qualified when the employee would otherwise be terminated. The demotion may be a
result of funding shortages. An employee who does not possess the necessary ability to
render satisfactory performance in the position presently held may be demoted.
Employees may voluntarily request such a demotion. Demoted employees may receive a
reduction in pay, per City Manager approval and department head recommendation.
Only a regular employee demoted due to disciplinary action is entitled to grievance
procedures under Section VIII, Grievance Procedures.

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: An employee hired to fill a position with the
responsibility of supervising and administrating a department of City government as
determined and designated by the Board.

DISMISSAL: Dismissal means the involuntary separation or dismissal from employment
for disciplinary reasons.

DOMESTIC PARTNER: An individual who has an exclusive and committed
relationship with a City employee and the relationship is the same as, or similar to, a
marriage relationship in this state. For purposes of these Rules: 1) domestic partners must
have shared a common, primary residence, 2) must jointly be responsible for each other’s
common welfare and share financial obligations, 3) neither can be married or a member
of another domestic partnership, 4) both must be at least 18 years of age, and 5) are not
related by blood to a degree of closeness that would prevent them from being married to
each other in this state.

DUE PROCESS: The right granted to a regular employee to pre- and post-
disciplinary hearings for actions of suspension, demotion or dismissal.

EMERGENCY CALL-OUT PAY: Compensation paid to an employee who has been
called to return to work after hours, including weekends. Employees will receive a
minimum of two hours overtime for emergency call-outs.

Page 2



1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

1.28

1.29

1.30

1.31

1.32

EXEMPT EMPLOYEES:  All executive, administrative and professional employees
as defined in the federal Department of Labor regulations relating to the Fair Labor
Standards Act, whose compensation is based on a fixed salary.

GRANT FUNDED EMPLOYEE: A full or part-time employee hired to fill a position
that exists only upon receipt of grant funds. This position is terminable-at-will if funding
is not received or upon expiration of a grant agreement.

GRIEVANCE HEARING: A formal hearing conducted at the request of an employee
grieving a promotion, suspension, demotion, involuntary transfer, or dismissal as set forth
in these Personnel Rules and Regulations.

GRIEVANCE: A formal complaint by an employee concerning actions taken by
management, which result in loss of pay and/or privileges to the employee including
suspension, demotion, involuntary transfer or dismissal.

HEARING OFFICER: The individual charged with the responsibility of hearing
and deciding allegations of improper promotion, or post-disciplinary action matters of
demotion, suspension, involuntary transfer, and dismissal.

IMMEDIATE FAMILY: Spouses, domestic partners, children, parents, siblings,
grandparents, grandchildren, like in-laws, like step-relationships, and persons with legal
custodial relationships.

LAYOFF: The involuntary separation of an employee from City service without fault
on the part of the employee, due to the abolition of a position, reorganization, lack of
work, lack of funds, or as otherwise determined in the best interest of the City.

MEDICAL DISABILITY DISMISSAL: The dismissal of an employee from City
employment when the employee is unable to perform the essential functions of the
position with reasonable accommodation(s) that do not impose undue hardship upon the
City, due to a medical condition, when there is corroborating documentation of this
condition from a licensed health-care professional. Although Medical Disability
Dismissal is not disciplinary in nature, employees are nonetheless entitled to participate
in the City's pre-determination and grievance procedures if they are subject to dismissal.

NONEXEMPT EMPLOYEES: Employees that are not exempt employees as
defined in the federal Department of Labor regulations relating to the Fair Labor
Standards Act.

PART-TIME EMPLOYEE: An employee who works twenty (20) hours or more and
less than forty (40) hours per week. Employees working twenty (20) hours or more on a
consecutive basis are eligible for fringe benefits.

PRE-DISCIPLINARY HEARING: A hearing conducted by the City Manager or his/her
designee before the imposition of the disciplinary actions of suspension, demotion or
dismissal.

Page 3



1.33

1.34

1.35

1.36

1.37

1.38

1.39

1.40

1.41

PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEE: A full-time or part-time employee hired to fill a
regular position that has not completed a one (1) year probationary period of
employment, during which time the employee is terminable-at-will. During this
probationary period, the supervisor is required to evaluate the employee at least every
three (3) months.

PROMOTION: A promotion is the change of an employee from a position in one
classification usually to a position in a classification with a higher salary range.

REGULAR EMPLOYEE:  Full-time: An employee who has successfully completed
probation with a work schedule of at least forty (40) hours per week. Part-time: An
employee who has successfully completed probation with a work schedule of twenty
(20) or more hours, but less than forty (40) hours per week.

RESIGNATION: Resignation means the voluntary separation of an employee from
City service.

SAFETY- or SECURITY-SENSITIVE POSITION (SSP): A position approved as such
by the department director and City Manager, which an individual has a key and direct
role in an activity where impaired performance by drug or alcohol use could result in a
serious injury, or an improper or inadequate response to a potentially serious incident.
SSP include a supervisory or managerial position in which impairment by drug or alcohol
use would constitute an immediate and direct threat to public health or safety and
includes, but is not limited to, law enforcement officers, employees who are required to
regularly carry a firearm, drivers/operators required to have a CDL license, have access
to confidential information and/or receive calls for public service and employees who
regularly transport other people as their principal job or otherwise designated so by the
City Manager.

SICK LEAVE: Leave with pay granted to employees when personal illness, injury,
pre-arranged medical or dental examination, quarantine, therapy, counseling or other
necessary treatment that keeps the employee from performing the duties of the position or
when a member of the immediate family is ill, injured or requires treatment for the
described reasons.

STAND-BY PAY:  Compensation paid to employees, though off duty, is required to be
available and able to respond to inquiries by telephone or radio, after regular working
hours, including weekends.

SUSPENSION: An involuntary leave of absence, with or without pay, for
disciplinary reasons, or pending investigation of allegations made against an employee,
or for pending determination of a grievance procedure.

TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE: An employee hired to fill a position that will
temporarily fill a position that is vacant due to the absence of an employee or for some
other requirement. Temporary employment will not exceed a six (6) months. All
temporary employees are terminable-at-will, do not accrue leave, and do not receive
employee benefits.

Page 4



1.42

1.43

TRANSFER: The voluntary or involuntary movement of an employee, from one
department or office to another department or office in the City service.

UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE (or At-Will Employee):  An employee that can be
dismissed at any time, with or without cause. The terminable-at-will employees in the
City shall be probationary employees, temporary employees, contract employees, and
others designated by the Commission. Terminable-at-will employees are not entitled to
the grievance procedures provided for in these Rules.

SECTION II: EMPLOYMENT STATUS

2.1 Position Specification: The City shall establish position specifications for all positions.
Position specifications shall include title, tasks, duties, responsibilities and minimum
qualifications. They will also specify knowledge, skills, education, and abilities required of
applicants. See Definitions for description of employee position. An employee may qualify for
one or more of the following position descriptions:

A.

Probationary Employee: A full-time or part-time employee hired to fill a regular
position that has not yet completed the one (1) year probationary period of employment,
or (twelve (12) months for police officers) during which time the employee is terminable-
at-will. During this probationary period, the supervisor is required to evaluate the
employee every three (3) months.

Temporary Employee: A temporarily employee, hired to fill a vacancy due to the
absence of an employee or for some other requirement. Temporary employment will not
exceed a six (6) month period. All temporary employees are terminable-at-will, do not
accrue leave, and do not receive employee benefits.

Regular Employee:  Full-time: An employee who has successfully completed
probation with a work schedule of at least forty (40) hours per week. Part-time: An
employee who has successfully completed probation with a work schedule of twenty
(20) hours or more, but less than forty (40) hours per week. Employees working twenty
(20) hours or more on a consecutive basis are eligible for fringe benefits.

Grant Funded Employee: A full or part-time employee hired to fill a position that
exists only upon receipt of grant funds. This position is terminable-at-will if funding is
not received or upon expiration of the grant agreement.

Casual Employee: ~ An employee hired to fill a position paid by the hour that may be
called on short notice and/or on an occasional basis. Casual employee may also work
less than twenty (20) hours a week. A casual employee is paid only for hours worked and
does not receive any employment benefits. A casual employee does not have the right to
grieve employment decisions.

Unclassified Employee: An employee who can be dismissed at any time, with or
without cause. The terminable-at-will employees in the City shall be probationary
employees, temporary employees, casual employees, contract employees, and others
designated by the Board. Terminable-at-will employees are not entitled to the grievance
procedures provided for in these Rules.

Classified Employee: An employee that serves the prescribed probationary period and is
eligible for the rights and privileges provided for under these Rules.

Contract Employee: Contract employees are unclassified, FLSA exempt and have a
contract approved by the Board modifying the conditions of the City’s personnel policy.

Page 5



Contract employees serve at the will and pleasure of the Board. Contract employees are
not entitled to grievance procedures or holiday premium pay.

I. Temporary Agency Employee: An individual who performs work for the City
through a contract with an independent third-party, such as a temporary placement or
employment agency. These individuals are not City employees and therefore not entitled
to any benefits or rights detailed in this policy.

SECTION Ill:  GENERAL PROVISIONS

3.1 Purpose: The purpose of these Personnel Rules and Regulations (Rules) is to establish
consistent, basic policies and practices concerning relations between the City and its employees.
These Rules further establish the formal grievance procedure available to regular employees to
hear their grievances with respect to promotions, demotions, suspensions, involuntary transfers
and dismissal, and provide the method by which a personnel hearing officer is chosen to hear
formal grievances. Independent contractors are not subject to the provisions of the Rules.

3.2 Scope:  Definite rules and regulations cannot be readily formulated for every possible
problem and situation. These Rules serve as an employment contract, general basis and guide for
the proper, efficient, and effective management and administration of City personnel matters.
The Rules contained herein replace and supersede all previously issued personnel rules
regulations and ordinances applicable to City employees.

3.3 Amendment of Rules & Regulations: There shall be no resolution or other action of the
Board or other City official, which is inconsistent with these Rules, except by amendment of
these Rules. The Board reserves the right to amend these Rules at its discretion. The City
Manager may issue interpretative memoranda or Administrative Instructions, consistent with
these Rules, which further detail the interpretation of these Rules.

3.4 Employee Knowledge & Information of Rules & Regulations: Department Directors
or Human Resources Manager shall provide a copy of these Rules to present employees and to
all new employees with instructions to read and be familiar with all provisions of these Rules.
Employees shall sign for a copy upon receipt.

3.5 Equal Employment Opportunity Rules & Regulations: Individuals will not be
discriminated against on the grounds of race, age, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex,
marital status, physical or mental handicap, medical condition, sexual orientation or gender
identity, in consideration for employment, promotions, transfers, duration of employment,
compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment by the City.

3.6 Administration by City Manager: The City Manager or designee shall administer and
interpret the personnel system and the terms of these Rules and its amendments, and all future
approved operating procedures. The City Manager shall recommend to the Board any necessary
amendments or revisions to the Rules.

3.7 Duties of All Employees: All employees shall adhere to the provisions of these

Rules. Department Directors, Human Resources Manager and the City Manager further shall be
responsible for seeing to the adherence and enforcement of these Rules.

Page 6



3.8 Chain of Command & Conflict Resolution: In order to maintain open communication
between the City and its employees and to ensure that employees’ general working concerns and
conflicts are addressed quickly and efficiently, the City will utilize the chain of command
protocol. Employees have the right to present or make known their complaints through the chain
of command, free from interference, restraint, discrimination, coercion, or reprisal. This
provision does not apply to serious complaints such as harassment, dangerous working
conditions, workplace violence and discrimination, which are otherwise addressed by the policy.
It is required that an employee discusses his/her concerns first with his/her immediate supervisor.
Departments should utilize dispute resolution techniques, wherever appropriate to resolve
conflicts in the workplace and encourage positive working relationships between employees and
management.

If the concern cannot be handled at this level, the employee may request a meeting with the next
level supervisor, up to the department director of his/her department. If it becomes necessary to
pursue the issue beyond the department director level, or if the concern cannot be handled or
remedied within the department due to supervisory conflict, it may be addressed with the City
Manager within ten (10) calendar days of the department’s final decision. The City Manager’s
decision on the complaint shall be final and binding.

3.9 Conflict with Collective Bargaining Agreements:  If any provision of this Resolution is
in conflict with a written Employee Agreement duly adopted by the Board pursuant to the Public
Employee Bargaining Act [NMSA 1978, §§10-7E-1 to 10-7E-26], the terms of the Collective
Bargaining Agreement shall control.

3.10 Code of Ethics:

A. City of Truth or Consequences employees and volunteers shall treat their government or
quasi-government position as a public trust, requiring adherence to and respect for the
Constitution and laws of the United States of America, the Constitution and laws of the State
of New Mexico, and the ordinances, resolutions, and policies of the City. Employees and
volunteers shall use the powers and resources of public office to advance the public interest
rather than as an opportunity to obtain personal benefits or pursue private interests
incompatible or competing with the public interest. City Government cannot function
efficiently without the confidence of the public. The public's Confidence in the
effectiveness, equity, and honesty of City Employees is directly related to the ethical
conduct of City Employees and Officials.

B. The citizens of the City of Truth or Consequences have entrusted the Elected
Officials and employees of the City with the responsibility of ensuring that tax
dollars, which fund City services, are spent wisely and efficiently. As City
employees, the public is our employer. Our work and conduct are always subject to
public scrutiny and approval. Our contact with citizens and performance results will
often be the basis upon which City government is judged.

C. Elected Officials and Employees of the City shall maintain their conduct at the highest
personal and professional standards in order to promote public confidence and trust in
the City's public institutions; and, in a manner, that merits the respect and cooperation
of fellow employees.

D. The City's level of professionalism is demonstrated by each City Official and
employee's actions or in some cases inactions; therefore, the City expects employees to
conduct themselves professionally during every interaction and every task.

Page 7



E. The City has established reasonable professionalism expectations; expectations
every employer would require of their staff. Elected officials and employees are
expected to:

e Build trust, confidence, and professional relationships with the public,
coworkers, and others contacted in performance of duties; and
e Promote the City and its employees.

Note: Talking behind an employee’s back, toxic talk, misrepresenting the truth, and
failing to provide reasonable customer service are examples of a lack of
professionalism.

F. General Conduct standards are set forth or restated as follows:

1. The City of Truth or Consequences requires all employees to familiarize themselves
with all rules and regulations (general policies and those pertaining to their duties
and positions), and that employees abide by these rules and regulations. The City’s
rules of conduct and performance standards are applicable to all City employees,
during normal working hours, at work related or City-sponsored or City-endorsed
functions, and while traveling on work related business.

2. Each employee shall make an immediate report to his or her immediate supervisor
of any violation of the law or the rules and regulations of the City of which he/she
has knowledge. Such report may be required in writing at the discretion of the
receiving supervisor and the Human Resources Manager.

3. Each employee shall make a written report within three (3) working days to the
Department Director of any criminal charge filed against him/her or arrest for any
violation of any law or ordinance except minor traffic violations. (DUI is not a
minor traffic offense.)

4. Each employee shall perform his/her duties fairly and impartially, and otherwise
conduct him/herself both on-duty and off-duty to command the respect of fellow
employees and the public. Each employee's conduct shall be at all times consistent
with the goals and mission of the City.

5. No employee shall refuse to truthfully answer questions specifically relating to the
performance of his/her official duties or refuse to participate with investigations.

6. No employee shall report for duty while under the influence of any drug prescribed
or not prescribed, including but not limited to a narcotic, barbiturate,
hallucinogenic drug, central nervous system stimulant, alcohol, or an intoxicant. In
the event any of the foregoing drugs is prescribed and administered to an employee,
the employee shall report this to the supervisor and Human Resources Manager.
The supervisor and the Human Resources Manager shall then make a determination
whether the employee can perform their duties without detrimental effect. An
employee may be asked to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test when the supervisor
has reason to suspect that the employee is under the influence of illegal drugs or
alcohol.

7. No employee shall be insubordinate, neglectful, or unwilling to follow orders or
perform officially designated duties.

8. No employee shall falsify reports or records or knowingly submit inaccurate or
untruthful information for or on any City record, report or document.

9. No employee shall sleep on duty.

Page 8



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Violence, fighting, profanity or insulting behavior, non-sexual harassment,
horseplay, bullying, mobbing, and threatening or interfering with visitors or other
employees at any time on City premises or at any other place, while on duty, will
not be tolerated. The City strictly prohibits sexual harassment or other forms of
discrimination.

Gambling of any kind on City premises or at any other place, while on duty will not
be tolerated.

Employees shall not reveal confidential information to unauthorized persons.
Employees shall not be tardy, absent, or depart from work early without the
permission of their supervisors and shall observe time limitations on break and meal
periods. Each employee shall notify his/her immediate supervisor or designated
representative prior to his/her scheduled work shift in the event he or she expects to
be absent from duty due to illness or other reason.

No employee shall solicit funds or distribute petitions or literature for any political
purpose other than official business on City property or at any other place while on
duty.

Every employee will comply with safety rules/regulations and shall report promptly
to the appropriate supervisor any injury or illness.

Employees shall not use City property, materials or facilities for non-City business.
No employee shall occupy, use or operate any City property or facility without prior
authorization.

Every employee has the responsibility to protect and safeguard City property and
the person and property of others. No employee shall be in unauthorized possession
of any City property or others regardless of value, or attempt to remove such
property from City premises.

. The ethical City employee shall:

NhWON -

N o

10.

11.

Properly administer the affairs of the City.

Promote decisions, which only benefit the public interest.

Actively promote public confidence in City government.

Keep safe all funds and other properties of the City.

Conduct and perform the duties of the office diligently and promptly dispose of the
business of the City.

Maintain a positive image to pass constant public scrutiny.

Evaluate all decisions so that the best service or product is obtained at a minimal cost
without sacrificing quality and fiscal responsibility.

Inject the prestige of the office into everyday dealings with the public, employees and
associates.

Maintain a respectful attitude toward employees, other public officials, colleagues
and associates.

Effectively and efficiently, work with governmental agencies, political subdivisions
and other organizations in order to further the interest of the City.

Faithfully comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the City and impartially
apply them to everyone.

Page 9



SECTIONIV: RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION

4.1 Purpose: It is the policy of the City to select and recruit the best qualified and the best-
suited person for all positions in an open and competitive manner, and to ensure that no
discrimination occurs in the process and ensure equal employment opportunities for all
applicants and employees. The City will comply with all applicable federal and state laws and
regulations.

4.2 Recruitment of Applicants: Department directors shall notify the City Manager and the
Human Resources Manager of a vacant position. In an effort to present current employees a
viable career path within the organization, internal employees are encouraged to apply for vacant
or newly created positions, if they meet minimum qualifications. The Human Resources
Manager shall simultaneously issue job announcements internally and externally through such
media deemed appropriate to ensure open and competitive recruitment of individuals with
sufficient time to ensure reasonable opportunity for persons to apply. The Human Resources
Manager shall submit announcements and receive all applications through their Office. All
publications for job announcements shall include reference to the City as “An Equal Opportunity
Employer”.

4.3 Temporarily Filling Vacant Positions: Vacant positions may be filled without public
announcement by temporary employees on a temporary basis to replace regular employees on
leave and pending the selection of a regular employee for a position or otherwise for a period not
to exceed six months. Temporary employees may not be made regular employees in their
position without completion of an open application and selection process.

4.4 Best Qualified & Best-Suited Applicant Determination: The best-qualified and best-
suited applicant is determined by the department director, in conjunction with the Human
Resources Manager, based on minimum qualifications of education, experience, abilities, skills
and past work experience, as specified in written position specifications for each position.
Personal interviews shall be conducted with at least three (3) applicants, or if less than three
applications are received, all applicants shall be interviewed. All internal applicants meeting
minimum job requirements for a position shall receive an interview.

4.5 Selection: The department director or designated representative shall review all applications
for positions in their department, in conjunction with the Human Resources Manager, and make
their recommendation to the City Manager. Final appointment shall be made by the City
Manager based on the best qualified and the best-suited applicant for the position and the status
of the City’s budget. The Human Resources Manager is responsible for notifying the
prospective employee and extending job offers.

4.6 Pre-Selection Prohibited: To ensure the integrity and fairness of the selection process,
posted and advertised positions shall not be promised to any person prior to recruitment and
selection.

4.7 Ineligibility for Hire and Rehire: Applicants shall be considered ineligible for hire or
rehire by the City if the applicant has:

A. Knowingly made any false statement or omission on the employment application or City
record;

Page 10



B. Not met the requirements of the position;

C. Failed to complete pre-employment drug and alcohol screening or physical examinations

or other requirements as directed by the City, except that an applicant not meeting drug

and alcohol screening testing may reapply after a one-year period. An applicant who
failed a physical exam due to a pre-existing correctable medical condition may reapply at
any time after the condition is corrected;

Not met the criteria for insurance or bonding as required by City or state law;

Been dismissed from City service as a disciplinary measure in five (5) years prior to the

date of application;

F. Not been certified by a physician that the applicant can perform the physical
requirements or the essential requirements of the position;

G. Been convicted for driving while under the influence of alcohol or drugs within the past
three years of the date of the application, if a valid New Mexico driver’s license and class
is required for the position; or

H. Been convicted of a felony as described in NMSA 1978, §28-2-1, et seq. or convicted of
a felony or infamous crime as defined in NMSA 1978, §10-1-3 and by its nature conflicts
with the duties and responsibilities of the position;

. Not met the requirements of state or federal funding agreements;

Resigned with pending employment charges pursuant to section 7 and 8 within five (5)
years prior to the date of application;

K. Resigned from City employment without giving two weeks’ notice, unless unique
circumstances exist;

L. Previously engaged in destruction of City property, including deleting public (business
related) records or emails; and

M. The above list is not necessarily exhaustive and may not include all of the reasons that
would make an applicant ineligible for hire or rehire.

m o

4.8 Testing: To determine employment eligibility, the City may require an applicant to submit
to testing for certain bona fide occupational qualifications. This may include, without limitation
pre-employment physical, drug, and alcohol screening examinations, and/or proficiency, skills or
general aptitude testing. For law enforcement officers, psychological examinations and/or
extensive medical examinations may be required as a condition of employment.

4.9 Background Investigation; Driver’s License (DL) Check: The City and/or
designed contractor(s) shall conduct background investigations on all applicants considered for
employment and DL record checks on all perspective and current employees required to drive a
vehicle for City business. All applicants shall sign a background investigation wavier and DL
check release during the employment application phase or they will be excluded from
consideration. DL checks shall be conducted at hiring, and quarterly thereafter, on employees
required to drive, as a condition of employment. DL checks will not be conducted on
perspective or current employees not having driving responsibilities as a condition of
employment. However, if at any time an employee is required to drive a vehicle as a condition
of employment, DL checks will be performed at that time and continue on a quarterly basis.

4.10 Commencement of Work: No applicant for employment shall commence work or be
considered employed by the City until an approval of the selection is made in writing by the City
Manager and Human Resources Manager on a Personnel Action Form (PAF) and all pre-
employment testing and relevant background checks have been completed. Payroll shall not
enter the applicant into the City’s system prior to receipt of a completed and signed PAF.

Page 11



SECTION V: CHANGES IN EMPLOYMENT STATUS

5.1 Promotion: The City encourages professional growth of its employees and rewards the
initiative, creativity, effort, commitment, and diligence of its employees through the promotional
process. City employees are encouraged to take advantage of promotional opportunities and
apply for higher paying positions for which they qualify.

5.2 Evaluation Period: Regular employees either promoted or voluntarily transferred to a
vacant or newly created position will be placed in an evaluation status period for ninety (90)
days. This is a period of evaluation and training of the employee in the new position. If
performance during the evaluation period is deemed unsatisfactory and documented, the
employee may be returned to his/her previous position, if available, placed in another vacant
position for which the employee is qualified, if available and in the best interest of the City, or
dismissed at the discretion of the City Manager. Employees transferred back to previous
positions receive the same pay received before their promotion or transfer.

5.3 Demotion: An employee may be demoted to a position for which the employee is
qualified when: 1) the employee would otherwise be dismissed because the employee’s position
is being abolished due to lack of funds or lack of work and there are no vacancies at the same
level for which the employee is qualified; 2) the employee’s job is being reclassified; 3) the
employee does not present satisfactory performance in the position presently held; 4) the
employee voluntarily requests such a demotion, provided a position is available; or 5) employees
being demoted for disciplinary reasons.

5.4 Transfers: Employees transferred from one position to another, in most cases, should
meet all requirements of the new position.

A. General Transfer. Employees may be moved from one position to another of the same
grade and pay range either voluntarily or involuntarily. An employee may be transferred
if it is in the best interest of the City. Voluntary transfers are not grievable. Fluctuating
organizational needs may require temporary or permanent transfer of an employee from
one geographic location to another within the City. If a transfer involves a probationary
employee, time served in the former position shall be credited toward achievement of
regular full-time status and salary increases, accumulated annual leave and sick leave
shall be retained. The City Manager must approve all transfers.

B. Voluntary Transfers between Departments. An employee who voluntarily transfers from
one department to a vacant position in another department may be required to accept the
new position at its entry-level salary depending on their experience and qualifications
required for the new position. The transferred employee will be subject to an evaluation
period of ninety (90) days, as specified in Section 5.2.

C. Medical Transfer. An employee who has been certified by a licensed physician as being
physically unable to perform the duties of the employee’s current position may be
transferred as a reasonable accommodation to an available position in which the
physician certifies the employee is able to work, and for which the employee is qualified
to perform. If no such position is available, the employee is subject to the leave without
pay provisions of these Rules.

5.5 Resignation: An employee voluntarily resigning shall submit in writing to the
department director and the Human Resources Manager, a two-week minimum notice of

Page 12



resignation.  Unless unique circumstances exist, failure to provide timely written notice may be
grounds for refusal of future employment with the City. Unauthorized absence from work for
three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled working days shall be considered a voluntary
resignation. Once a Department Director accepts an employee’s resignation, the notice of
resignation is deemed “accepted”; the employee may no longer rescind the resignation unless
approved by the City Manager.

5.6  Layoff Procedure: Upon directive of the Board, the City Manager shall make the
determination for layoffs after consulting with appropriate department directors and the Human
Resource Manager. When layoffs of more than one employee are required, layoffs shall be
determined using the following criteria:

A. Position in order of priority:

Temporary employees,
Probationary employees,
Casual employees,
Part-time employees.

PN

w

Performance of the employee compared to other employees being laid off in the same or
similar positions;

Value of the employee’s position to the critical operation of the City or department, such
as safety-sensitive or enterprise positions;

Length of continuous service with the City; and

Funding source.

mo 0

5.7 Layoff Return Privileges: Any full-time or part-time regular employee laid off and
returns within six (6) months of layoff shall not have to serve a probationary period if the
employee returns to their previous position and the probationary period had been served. A laid
off-returning employee will be credited for all unused sick leave remaining and not compensated
for at the time of layoff, if the employee returns within the six (6) month period. Layoff
privileges end:

A. Six (6) months after the effective layoff date;

B. After an employee refused employment in a position for which the employee is qualified
and/or for which the pay rate is the same or higher than the position previously held; or

C. When a laid off employee accepts another position with the City. A laid off employee
accepting another position with the City shall serve the required evaluation period.

5.8 Medical Disability Dismissal: Employees shall be involuntarily terminated upon
completion of the twelve (12) week family/medical leave if the employee is physically unable to
perform the essential duties of the employee’s position with reasonable accommodation(s) that
do not impose undue hardship upon the City, as certified by a qualified, licensed physician. The
provisions of this subsection are subject to the provisions regarding Workers’ Compensation
laws and “On the Job Injury Leave” found in Sections 10.14 and 10.15 of these Rules.

5.9 Reinstatement: Individuals that are reinstated, as regular employees to the same or like
position are not entitled to any previous benefits such as sick leave, which had been accrued
during previous employment with the City, except as, provided in Section 5.7.

Page 13



SECTIONVI: CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

6.1 Probationary Period for New Hires: An employee hired to fill a position shall serve a
probationary period of one (1) year, beginning on the first day of work, during which time the
employee is terminable-at-will.

A.

Law enforcement officers in the police Department shall serve a one (1) year
probationary period, beginning on the first day of work, during which time the employees
are terminable-at-will. If a law enforcement officer is not certified prior to hiring, the law
enforcement officer must obtain law enforcement certification within one year of
employment. Uncertified law enforcement officers shall be terminated on the one-year
anniversary of hire if they are not accepted or enrolled in a basic police officer training
program certified by the Law Enforcement Academy Board.

The probationary period is an integral part of the evaluation process and is for observing
the employee’s performance and obtaining the most effective adjustment of a new
employee to the position. Employees will be evaluated at least every 3 months during the
probationary period. The employee must achieve a satisfactory performance or better by
the end of the probationary period before the employee can become a regular employee
entitled to all of the rights and benefits of that status.

If an employee satisfactorily completes the probationary period, the employee will
become a regular employee. If the employee does not satisfactorily complete the
probationary period, the employee may be dismissed, or upon the recommendation of the
department director and with final approval of the City Manager, the probationary period
may be extended for ninety (90) days.

In the event a probationary employee is on extended leave for any reason, the
probationary period will be extended in an amount equal to that leave period.
Probationary employee provisions. A probationary employee:

Can be dismissed, without cause, at any point during the probationary period;

Is not eligible for personal holiday leave;

Cannot grieve disciplinary actions;

Is allowed to accrue and use sick and annual leave as soon as it is accrued with

approval of supervisor;

5. Employees terminated during their probationary period are only entitled to payment
of unused annual leave; and

6. Is eligible for health insurance and other optional benefits, as provided in Section 9.7.

B

6.2 Temporary Employee Hired to a Regular Position: An employee who fills a temporary
position and is subsequently hired to fill a regular position shall serve the required probationary
period. The beginning date of the probationary period is the date the employee formally
transitions to regular status.

6.3 Former City Employees Hired to a Position: A former City employee re-hired in the
same or like position, or re-hired at any time to fill a new position, shall serve the required
probationary period.

6.4 Permitted Political Activities: All employees:

A.

May engage in political activity on their own time;

Page 14



0w

m o

F.

Are encouraged to register to vote and to exercise their right to vote;

Have a right to express their opinion on all political subjects and candidates on their own
time;

May serve as convention delegates;

May sign nominating petitions and make voluntary contributions to political
organizations and candidates on their own time; and

May serve as an election or poll official.

6.5 Prohibited Political Activities: All employees are prohibited from:

A.

B.

m o

Using official authority or influence for the purpose of interfering with or affecting the
result of an election or a nomination for office, or for any other political purpose;

Directly or indirectly coercing, attempting to coerce, commanding or advising an official
or employee to pay, lend, or contribute anything of value to a party, committee or
organization, agency, or person for a political purpose;

Threatening to deny promotions to or retaliating against an employee who does not vote
for or support certain candidate(s), requiring employees to contribute to a political fund
or candidate, influencing employees to buy tickets to political fund-raisers and similar
events, advising employees to take part in political activity and matters of a similar
nature;

Engaging in political activity while on duty; and

Using any City-owned equipment, supplies, vehicles, space, property, or work time for
political purposes.

6.6 Public/Political Office:

A.

Employees covered by the provisions of the Hatch Act [5 U.S.C. Sections 1501 to 1508]
may not be candidates for partisan political office elections. (A local school board
member or a member of any post-secondary educational institution’s governing body
shall not be construed as holding political office)

Employees may not hold a City political office and be a regular full-time or at-will
employee of the City.

6.7 Nepotism: To eliminate the appearance of nepotism, relatives within the third
degree shall not work in the same department when there is a supervisory relationship
between them.

A.

Relative, as used in this ordinance, includes father/mother and spouse, son/daughter
and spouse, grandparents, grandchildren and spouse, uncle/aunt and spouse,
nephew/niece and spouse, brother/sister and spouse, great grandparents, and great
grandchild; including unrelated persons sharing a spousal/domestic partner
relationship, adopted step-relatives.

When there is a change in assignment or relationship among City employees, which
leads to supervision of or by a relative, the relative supervisor must immediately
inform the department director of the relationship in writing. The department
director, subject to the approval of the City Manager, shall take appropriate action to
eliminate the conflict. Options include eliminating supervisory responsibility for a
specific employee, voluntarily/involuntary transfer of the employee or supervisor to

Page 15



another position, demotion of the supervisor, or termination of the employee or
supervisor, whichever if most feasible for the employee, supervisor and City.

6.8 Conflict Ban:  No employee shall engage in any business, transaction, accept private
employment or other public employment which is incompatible with the proper discharge of the
employee’s responsibilities or which gives the appearance of impropriety, or is prohibited by
federal, state or City law or City policy.

6.9 Outside Employment: Employees may not, directly or indirectly, engage in any outside
employment or financial interest which may conflict, in the City’s opinion, with the best interests
of the City or interfere with the employee’s ability to perform his/her assigned City job.
Examples include, but are not limited to outside employment which:

A. Prevents the employee from being available for work beyond normal working hours, such
as emergencies or peak work periods, when such availability is a regular part of the
employee’s job;

Is conducted during the employee’s work hours;

Utilizes City facilities, equipment, resources or time;

Constitutes employment, contractual commitment or self-employment which conflicts
with Section 15.14, below; or

May be reasonably perceived as a conflict of interest, gives the appearance of impropriety
or otherwise discredits public service.

cow

e

An employee who chooses to have an additional job, contractual commitment or self-
employment, may do so provided he/she provides prior notification on the prescribed form and
obtains prior approval from his/her department director and the City Manager. Any outside
employment that could potentially interfere with emergency call-out situations must be reported
to the employee’s department director. If, after accepting outside employment, situations arise
which could interfere with the employee’s job, the employee must immediately report these
situations to his/her department director.

6.10 Workplace & Sexual Harassment: The City will not tolerate harassment or sexual
harassment.

A. The City is committed to taking reasonable steps to provide a professional working
environment free from all forms of harassment, whether based on sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, race, color, religion, national origin, age, disability or any other protected
classification. Although this policy focuses on sexual harassment, it applies equally to all
forms of harassment based on a protected classification. The procedures described in this
policy shall be followed for all such harassment. This policy also applies when an
employee is subject to harassment in the workplace by a non-City employee.

B. Employees have a right to be free from workplace harassment. Employees are forbidden
from engaging in harassing conduct on- or off- duty that creates a hostile work
environment. Any act of harassment based upon a protected classification is a severe
violation of City policy and will be addressed in a firm manner.

C. Harassment Definition: verbal, non-verbal or physical conduct by any employee that,
bullies, torments, persecutes, disrupts, or interferes with another employee’s work
performance or member of the public or that creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile
environment.

Page 16



D. Sexual Harassment Definition: is any unwelcome sexually oriented behavior, demand,
comment or physical contact initiated by any individual at the work place when:

1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly, a term or condition
of an individual’s employment;

2. Submission to, or rejection of, such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for
employment decisions/opportunities affecting such individual; or

3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an
individual’s work performance, or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive
working environment.

E. Harassment can occur in a variety of forms. Examples include, but are not limited to:
Teasing an employee(s) about their race, religion, sexual orientation etc. Telling a joke at
the expense of or with the intent of embarrassing a protected class.

Sexual harassment also occurs in a variety of forms. Harassing conduct based on gender
often is sexual in nature. This policy forbids harassment based on gender regardless of
whether the offensive conduct is sexual in nature. Sexual harassment is unacceptable in
the workplace or in other work-related settings such as business trips and business-related
events. The following are some common examples of behaviors or situations that
constitute sexual harassment:

Oral or written sexual statements, comments, jokes, questions or innuendoes;

Display of sexually oriented visual items such as calendars, cartoons, photos or

posters;

3. Assault, molestation or unwelcome physical contact such as kissing, touching,
patting, pinching, brushing against or hugging;

4. Requests, demands or subtle pressure for sexual activity;

5. Threats or retaliation against an employee who refuses unwelcome sexual attention or
sexual behavior;

6. Overt promises or practices that imply preferential treatment for any employee in
exchange for dates, sexual attention or sexual behavior;

7. Sexual insults and suggestions including, but not limited to, lewd remarks, obscene
gestures and sexually suggestive materials;

8. Any conduct that ridicules, or is malicious or abusive to, an individual because of the
individual’s gender;

9. Pressuring an employee to go out on a date;

10. Consensual "romantic" or sexual relationships between a supervisor/director and an
employee in the same department; or

11. Asking questions of a sexual nature.

DY

F. Responsibility to Report Harassment. Any employee, who believes they are a victim of
harassment because of their protected classification, should first confront the person or
persons responsible for the offensive behavior and indicate that it is unwelcome and
should be stopped. The employee also has an obligation to promptly report the matter to
the Human Resources Manager, City Attorney or City Manager. These individuals are
authorized by this policy to receive and act upon complaints of harassment or
discrimination on behalf of the City. All employees who observe, or become aware of
harassment, also have an obligation to bring the matter to the attention of the Human

Page 17



Resources Manager, City Attorney or City Manager, even if they are not the victim of
harassment.

G. Investigation of Complaints. It is the City’s intent to provide a fair process for
investigating and resolving complaints of harassment. The City will investigate all reports
of alleged harassment. Information associated with the investigation will be kept
confidential, to the extent possible, and consistent with the City’s obligation to
investigate promptly and thoroughly. All employees are required to cooperate with any
investigation by the City in response to an allegation of harassment. Refusal to cooperate
in an investigation may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

H. Appeal. Any affected employee dissatisfied with the conclusion or results of an
investigation, or with any corrective measures taken, may appeal the decision to the City
Manager. Any such appeal should be in writing and must include the nature of the
employee’s dissatisfaction with the conclusions or results of the investigation. Any
qualifying disciplinary appeal must follow the grievance process.

. Protection against Retaliation. The City will not retaliate against any employee who
reports sexual harassment in good faith and such retaliation in and of itself is grounds for
disciplinary action, up to and including termination without prior progressive discipline.
Retaliation is a serious violation of this policy and should be immediately reported.

J. Discipline. Anyone violating section 6.10 will be subject to corrective or disciplinary
action up to, and including dismissal.

K. Unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment, of employees, or members of the
public, may be cause for dismissal. If the City determines that harassment has occurred
or that counseling, training, disciplinary measures or termination are appropriate, it will
respond appropriately to correct the problem following City disciplinary procedures.
Serious cases of harassment constitute cause for termination without prior progressive
discipline. Employees who knowingly make false allegations of sexual harassment may
be subject to disciplinary action.

L. Mandatory Training. Periodic mandatory training for all employees will be provided by
the City to increase knowledge of the workplace harassment policy, state and federal laws
and the process for enforcing the policy.

M. Vendors and Customers: Employees should report harassment, including sexual
harassment from vendors, customers, other City employees and the general public
utilizing this Policy.

6.11 Performance Evaluations and Performance Goals:
A. Performance Evaluations (Probationary Employees only)

1. Probationary employees shall be evaluated at least every three (3) months or when a
department director or immediate supervisor wishes to make the performance of an
employee a matter of record.

2. Contents of Evaluation: A performance evaluation shall contain an overall appraisal
of the employee’s performance while on probation. Approved forms are available in
Human Resources. All evaluations shall be signed by the employee and supervisor,
and forwarded to the City Manager.

3. Unsatisfactory Evaluation: The probationary period is a time to grow and
develop new employees and ensure a proper fit for the organization; however, if an
employee receives an overall evaluation rating of unsatisfactory performance, the
employee shall be warned that the failure to meet reasonable performance standards

Page 18



within a set period shall result in dismissal. In some circumstances of unsatisfactory
performance or unacceptable behavior, a probationary employee may not be given a
warning and will be terminated as terminable-at-will.

C. Performance Goals (Non-Probationary Employees)

1.

Supervisors will develop SMART goals (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant,
and Time-based) annually for each employee, other than probationary employees who
shall follow the traditional performance evaluation process. SMART goal setting is
important for employee motivation, keeps employees looking forward to new
accomplishments, intended to grow employee knowledge and skill sets, designed to
meet organizational strategic outcomes, and enhances organizational effectiveness.

Supervisors are expected to supervise and manage staff on a daily basis, and thus,
provide either positive reinforcement or constructive corrective feedback as
appropriate; performance evaluations and goal setting should not be mistaken for

daily supervisory responsibilities.

Goal types include:

a. Essence of job (EOJ): EOJ goals clearly describe tasks required for the job. Goals
can include productivity, efficiency, detail, accuracy, safety, ability to problem-
solve or work as a team player, professionalism, customer service, etc. EOJ goals
can relate to the speed of work or number of units completed, and product
accuracy and quality, etc.

b. Specific project(s):  Projects are activities that an employee will pursue with a
beginning and ending, and are generally beyond the employee’s routine duties.
Project goals can relate to improving systems, developing new policy or
procedures, developing programs, completing purposed research, etc.

c. Professional development: These goals specify what an employee will learn in
the coming year. These goals grow an employee by developing new skills or
knowledge. Goals shall be linked to a realistic organizational need.

d. Performance improvement: These goals are used when an employee’s behavior
is unsatisfactory or their performance is below reasonable expectations.
Performance improvement goals should have a limited but reasonable end
timeline. They shall document reasonable behavior or performance expectations
in a clear and measurable way.

Goal Setting: Supervisors, in collaboration with the employee, shall develop
SMART goals for each employee annually. Align goals with the department’s
overall strategies, priorities and most important needs.

Goal Tracking:  Supervisors shall review goal progress with each employee at least
quarterly. A supervisor may amend a goal, either increasing or decreasing
responsibilities, if circumstances change during the period.

Employee Rebuttal: The employee may submit a written rebuttal statement to
the performance goal evaluation and it will become a part of the performance goal
report. The rebuttal must be submitted within ten (10) days of the evaluation or it
will be denied.

Page 19



6. Unsatisfactory Goal Evaluation: In the event an employee fails to meet established
goal(s), when in the judgment of the supervisor, should have, the employee shall be
warned that failure to meet reasonable expectations could result in disciplinary action
and/or may be placed on a performance improvement plan.

6.12  Fitness for Duty:

The City endeavors to provide a safe and productive work environment for the benefit of its
employees and the public they serve. Employees are expected to manage their health in
such a way that they can safely and effectively perform their essential job functions and to
discuss with their supervisor any circumstance that my impact their ability to do so. The
City may require professional evaluation of an employee’s physical or mental capabilities to
determine his or her ability to perform essential job functions. Such evaluations are
conducted by an independent third party, licensed health/mental health care professional and
are undertaken only after careful review by Human Resources. To the extent possible, the
City will protect the confidentiality of the evaluation and results.

This evaluation process is for only those situations where reliable observation indicates that
the employee may not be physically or mentally able to perform the essential functions of
his or her position due to a physical or mental condition. It is not intended to be a substitute
for sick or medical leave requests, workers’ compensation claims, allegations of violence in
the workplace, situations where there is an immediate threat of harm, or a performance
management disciplinary process.

A. Procedures: If, by observation of an employee’s behavior or by receipt of reliable
information, the City has reason to believe that an employee may lack the ability to
perform the essential functions of his or her position due to a physical or mental
condition, the following steps will be taken:

1. The department head will providle Human Resources with detailed information
regarding the reason for and circumstances leading up to the fitness-for-duty referral,
including information on essential job functions, evidence of the employee’s inability
to perform those functions effectively, and any attempts at resolving the matter.

2. The Human Resourced Manager will review the information provided in the referral,
along with a current job description of the essential functions of the employee’s
position. If it is determined that a fitness-for-duty evaluation is necessary, upon
confirmation from the City Manager, the Human Resources Manager, will notify the
employee in writing.

3. Human Recourses will determine the independent, third party, licensed health/mental
health professional that will perform the evaluation, send a written request for an
evaluation to him or her, and will schedule the evaluation at the earliest opportunity. .

4. Failure on the employee’s part to comply with a scheduled fitness-for-duty evaluation
constitutes insubordination and will be cause for disciplinary action, including
termination.

5. The City will pay all costs of the services performed by the health/mental health
professional as part of the evaluation.

6. If the City Manager deems it necessary, the employee may be placed on temporary,
paid administration leave until the evaluation is completed.

Page 20



7. The employee will be requested to sign a voluntary written authorization allowing the
health/mental health professional to provide certain information obtained through the
evaluation to the City. If no authorization is executed, the City may nevertheless
obtain a description of the functional limitations of the employee that may limit the
employee’s ability to perform the essential function of his or her job, but no statement
of medical cause may be disclosed.

8. Insofar as feasible, the results of the evaluation will be treated as confidential, kept in
a separate file within Human Recourses, and the minimum necessary information will
be shared only with those who need to know the results for legitimate City business
purposes.

9. If it is determined that the employee is not able to perform the essential functions of
his or her position, Human Resources will attempt to determine if there is a
reasonable accommodation that will allow the employee to continue working. If an
appropriate accommodation cannot be made, other options will be identified and
communicated to the employee as available.

10. If it appears that any functional limitations on the employee’s ability to perform the
essential functions of his or her position are the result of a work-related injury, the
matter will be referred to Workers Compensation for the procession of a workers’
compensation claim.

11. All actions taken to carry out this policy will comply with state and federal laws, as
well as City policies and procedures and applicable contractual provisions.

. Evaluation and Results: The fitness-for-duty evaluation will not be conducted for
the purpose of diagnosis or treatment, but rather for the purposes of determining an
employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of the job. Human Resources will
provide the evaluator with a description of the essential function of the employee’s
position prior to the evaluation. The evaluator will be asked by Human Resources to
release only that information as permitted under this policy or otherwise permitted by
law. The evaluator will be asked to complete a written report containing only the
following information.

1. A conclusion regarding the determination of fitness for duty;

2. A description of the nature and extent of any functional limitation on the employee’s

ability to perform his or her job;

A description of the expected duration of each such functional limitation; and

4. An opinion as to whether or not the functional limitation may be the result of a work-
related injury as related by the employee; further medical examination or
investigation may be necessary to determine if the functional limitation arises out of,
or has been caused by, the employee’s occupation.

W

. Insofar as feasible, the results of the evaluation will be treated as confidential, and will be
shared only with those who need to know the results for legitimate City business
purposes. However, where the employee has placed at issue his or her medical history,
mental or physical condition, or treatment, the relevant information may be used and
disclosed by the City in connection with such proceedings.

. The City Manager will make a decision regarding the employee’s status, including but
not limited to the employee’s return to duty or removal of the employee from any duties
pending treatment and re-evaluation, depending on the results of the evaluation and the

Page 21



recommendation of the evaluator. In certain circumstances, the employee may be subject
to medical disability termination pursuant to Section 5.8 of this Ordinance.

6.13 Anti-Fraternization:

A. The City encourages employees to develop friendships and share a spirit of teamwork
and camaraderie both in the workplace and outside of work. In instituting this dating or
fraternization policy, it is not the City's goal to interfere with the development of co-
worker friendships and relationships.

B. City employees may date; develop friendships and relationships both inside and outside
of the workplace as long as the relationships do not negatively affect work. Any
relationship that interferes with the City's culture of teamwork, the harmonious work
environment or the productivity of employees will be addressed by applying the
progressive discipline policy as outlined in this Ordinance. Adverse workplace behavior
or behavior that affects the workplace that arises because of personal relationships will
not be tolerated.

C. The exception to this policy relates to Managers, directors and supervisors. Anyone
employed in a managerial or supervisory role shall not have an intimate relationship
with employees who report to them. From an employee perspective, these
relationships may be perceived as favoritism, misuse of authority, or potentially,
sexual harassment. Even if no improper conduct occurs, the relationship would likely
cause gossip, hard feelings, dissatisfaction, and distraction among other employees in
the workplace. The relationship may appear to other employees as an inappropriate
use of position power. The fraternization prohibited by this policy includes dating,
romantic involvement, and sexual relations.

D. Notify your supervisor and the Human Resources Manager if a coworker relationship is
a concern and might be from the City's standpoint of job performance and workplace
disruption. Appropriate actions will be determined and taken as per the City's personnel
policy. In the discretion of the City Manager, the parties to a relationship that become a
concern can be required NOT to work together; and, must keep the City informed on the
relationship. Any disruption in the workplace is subject to discipline or adjustment in
shift status if available.

E. Sexual misconduct refers to a wide range of inappropriate behaviors associated with the
exercise of “power” or “authority” over certain people in the work environment.
Therefore, some work relationships are prohibited by State statute. Law enforcement,
probation personnel, and counselors are legally prohibited from engaging in
relationships with offenders, inmates or clients, as these employees have a position of
authority over these individuals. In these relationships, either the Legislature or courts
have determined that these individuals are not capable of “consenting” to sex with staff,
just as individuals with diminished mental capacity and juveniles are deemed unable to
consent.

SECTION Vil: BASIS FOR EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

7.1 Discipline: Disciplinary actions are based on just cause, in order to promote the
efficiency of the services rendered by the City and the operation of its respective departments
and offices. Disciplinary actions will be consistent with governing laws and regulations and will
be taken without regard to race, age, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual

Page 22



orientation, gender identity, physical or mental handicap, or medical condition. No employee
will be disciplined for refusing to perform an unlawful act.

7.2 Definition of Just Cause: Just cause is defined as any conduct, action or inaction
arising from or directly connected with the employee’s work or behavior, which is inconsistent
with the employee’s obligation to the City and reflects the employee’s disregard of the City’s
interest. Just cause includes, but is not limited to, inefficiency, incompetence, misconduct,
negligence, insubordination, or performance which continues to be inadequate after reasonable
efforts have been made to correct the performance problems, or conviction of a felony or
misdemeanor involving moral turpitude and the misdemeanor conviction directly relates to the
employee's particular job, trade, or profession.

7.3 Disciplinary Action: The City Manager, department directors and supervisors have the
authority to discipline an employee under their supervision. However, only the City Manager
has the final authority to demote, suspend or terminate an employee for disciplinary reasons.
Copies of any written disciplinary action must be furnished to Human Resources for placement
in the employee’s file, with evidence of the employee’s receipt of the action.

7.4 Consultation with City Attorney: Dismissal, demotion, and suspension require
consultation with the City Attorney before taking disciplinary action. Whenever such
consultation is not practical because of urgency, necessary action may be taken and the
situations/circumstances reviewed with the City Attorney as soon as practical.

7.5 Progressive Discipline: An employee shall be progressively disciplined whenever
warranted. All actions involving substandard work performance, leading up to and including
dismissal, require documented progressive discipline. The step of corrective action used depends
on the severity of the infraction, the employee’s previous work record, years of employment, and
the employees’ status within the organization, e.g., supervisors are expected to conduct
themselves at a higher standard. Because of the serious nature of some infractions, the first
disciplinary action may be suspension or dismissal.

7.6 Verbal Reprimand: A verbal reprimand is used for minor infractions to inform the
employee that his/her actions, behavior or conduct needs to change. Supervisors will keep
written notations of verbal reprimands, and will place the written notation of the verbal
reprimand in the employee’s personnel file. The placement of a verbal reprimand in an
employee’s file is not grievable. Causes for verbal reprimands include, but are not limited to:

Substandard or unsatisfactory work performance;

Unprofessional behavior;

Malicious gossip and toxic talk;

Repeated absence or tardiness;

Misconduct on the job;

Failure to follow safety rules or procedures, including preventable accidents;

Failure to meet and/or maintain job requirements as set forth in the job description;
Violation of any personnel Rules, other City rules, policies, regulations or supplemental
rules;

Violation of a professional code of ethics accepted by those in the same profession as an
employee and as stated in this policy;

mOmEmONwp

L]

Page 23



J.  Non-cooperation by an employee with fellow employees or other personal conduct which
interferes with the performance of his/her or another employee’s work;

K. Failure to adhere to an established work schedule;

L. Excessive personal phone usage; and

M. Failure to obtain authorization for overtime or compensation time.

7.7 Written Reprimand:  An employee shall receive a written reprimand because the
deficiency or infraction is of a greater degree than that for which a verbal reprimand may be
used, or if a verbal reprimand was not effective. Causes for written reprimands include, but are
not limited to:

All causes listed for verbal reprimands;
Excessive absence or tardiness;
Sleeping on the job;
Unprofessional behavior;
Negligence in the performance of duty including negligence in the operation of City
vehicles or equipment, including preventable accidents;
Negligence or failure to adhere to established safety rules or regulations as well as willful
unsafe conduct;
Insubordination and failure to comply with the lawful orders of a supervisor including the
refusal to accept after hours assignments;
Refusal to perform tasks or duties assigned or detailed in an employee’s job description;
Unauthorized absence from work;
Failure to report duty injuries, accidents or vehicle collisions;
Failure to follow the chain of command within a department;
Unauthorized use or abuse of City property (e.g. phones, cell phones, computers,
vehicles, equipment, etc.).
. Being untruthful when asked about any work related activities by a supervisor;
Abuse of sick leave, including use of sick leave on a day for which vacation or other
leave has been denied;
Failure to follow a departmental SOP; and
Violation of the Code of Ethics (Section 3.10).

SESEoR-S

e

CREmE

7o zZX

Written reprimands for an employee’s work performance or conduct shall be placed in the
employee’s personnel file after providing the employee with a copy of the statement. The
employee will be asked to acknowledge having read the comments by signing the statement. If
the employee refuses to sign, said refusal, that information shall be noted on the document by the
employee’s department director. The department director’s signature or employee’s signature
indicates that the employee received the statement, but does not necessarily indicate concurrence
with its content. In addition, the department director may read the letter of reprimand to the
employee. The employee may respond with a written rebuttal within ten (10) days after the
document was entered into the personnel file, which shall also be placed in the employee’s
personnel file. The placement of a written reprimand in an employee’s file is not grievable.

7.8 Suspension: An employee may be suspended without pay for a single serious offense,
for misconduct, or for continued inadequate job performance after previous attempt(s) to correct
the performance have failed. Such suspension will not exceed two-hundred forty (240) hours.
Suspension of an employee is subject to the formal grievance procedures. Causes for suspension
include but are not limited to:

Page 24



A. All causes listed for verbal and written reprimands;

B. Continuous documented instances of poor performance;

C. Negligent damage to property and/or person(s), including preventable accidents;

D. Physical or mental unfitness for duty;

E. Consumption or possession of alcohol or controlled substances on-duty or on City
property or in City vehicles;

F. Fighting while on-duty or on City property;

G. Harassment;

H. Sexual harassment;

I. Violation of the Code of Ethics (Section 3.10).

J.  Failure to report confiscation or loss of driver’s license when required as condition of
employment;

K. Operation of a City vehicle or a private vehicle while on City business without a valid
driver’s license; and

L. Unlawful carrying or possession of a firearm unless authorized by state law or City
policy.

M. Being under the influence of alcohol or controlled substance including illegal drugs as

well as abuse of prescription drugs. See Section 11.
N. Knowingly making any false statement or omission to a supervisor regarding work-
related activities.

7.9 Demotion: An employee may be demoted for continued inadequate job performance
after previous attempt(s) to correct the performance deficiency have failed, if a lower job
position exists, the employee is capable of performing such a job, and it is in the best interest of
the City to demote the employee. The demotion of an eligible employee is subject to formal
grievance procedures. A demotion may require a decrease in salary, with approval of the City
Manager. Employees engaged in misconduct or ethical infractions will not be considered for
demotion.

7.10 Dismissal: Dismissal is the final consequence when progressive discipline has failed
to change unacceptable behavior or performance, or when the employee has engaged in other
behavior that is of a serious nature that is unacceptable for City employees. The dismissal of an
employee is subject to the formal grievance procedures. Causes for dismissal include, but are not
limited to:

A. All causes listed for the previous disciplinary actions or if an employee’s performance

failed to improve after attempts or correction have failed;

Acceptance of a bribe, gratuity, gift, or kick-back;

Abuse of official position or authority for personal profit or advantage;

Theft, abuse or intentional destruction of City property, including electronic media or

data;

Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information from City records or documents, or

discussions as set forth by applicable state law; falsification, destruction or unauthorized

use of City records, reports, or other City data, including electronic media or data;

F. Being convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude and the criminal
conviction directly relates to the particular job, trade, or profession;

G. Being convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude and the criminal
conviction does not directly relate to the particular job, trade, or profession, if the City

oSow

e

Page 25



determines after investigation that the person so convicted has not been sufficiently
rehabilitated to warrant the public trust.

H. Falsification of City records, including employment application, health history forms or
any other document used in the employment process;

L. Serious acts of negligence causing damage to City property, public or private property or
injury to an employee or member of the public;

J. Intentional acts causing damage to City property, public or private property or injuring an

employee or member of the public;

Conduct unbecoming an employee of the City;

Engaging in conduct prohibited under the City’s Drug-Free Workplace Policy as
provided in Section 11.4, below;

. Insubordination or refusal to carry out reasonable directives;

Failure to meet standards of substance abuse rehabilitation programs;

Loss of license or certification necessary to legally perform the duties of the employee’s
position.

Determination of Hatch Act violation by Office of Special Counsel;

Behavior that demonstrates deliberate violations of policy, wrongful intent, evil design,
or so as to reveal intentional and substantial disregard of the City 's interests, or of
employee's duties and obligations to the City;

R. Willful falsification of, or misrepresentation on, any work records; falsifying data or
information requested by the City; forgery or inappropriate alteration of City records or
other City documents (including written or audio or audio-visual media); and

S. Action or inaction that subjects the City to civil liability.

ozz R

o

7.11 Examples Not Inclusive: The above examples are typical of the types of infractions
sometimes encountered but are not inclusive of all situations that may arise. The City reserves
the right to exercise judgment and render disciplinary action or dismissal as deemed appropriate
based on the circumstances of each case.

7.12 Pre-Determination (Loudermill) Hearing: Regular employees shall receive a pre-
determination hearing prior to possible disciplinary action for cause or other action that may
result in suspension without pay, demotion, and loss of pay, involuntary transfer, or dismissal.
Prior to delivery of the written notice to the employee, the City Human Resources Manager shall
review the cause for such action and may require the proposed level of discipline be increased or
decreased based on policy and past action. The City Manager or his/her designee shall hold the
hearing for employees of each respective department.

7.13 Written Notice: The employee’s supervisor or department director shall present the
employee with written notification of their intent to conduct a pre-determination hearing at least
five (5) working days in advance of the hearing date. The written notification shall explain the
reasons for the hearing, the proposed discipline, the employee’s right to attend the pre-
determination hearing, a list of all evidence and/or witnesses to be introduced by the Department
supporting the Department’s position, the time, place and date of the pre-determination hearing
and the employee’s right to respond to the proposed action. The time, place and date of the pre-
determination hearing can be revised upon the written agreement of the parties.

7.14 Immediate Suspension with Pay: In cases where City property, other employees or
citizens, or their property are at risk because of the employee’s actions, or when in the best
interest of the City, the City Manager or in his/her absence, an appointed designee shall put the

Page 26



employee on administrative leave with pay until the pre-determination hearing is held and a
decision is rendered. Any employee, who is placed on administrative leave pending disciplinary
action, will be required to be away from their place of employment and will not be allowed to
perform any job related duties or retain any City property during that time, but is subject to recall
by the City during normal business hours. Administrative leave pending disciplinary action shall
not exceed thirty (30) calendar days, unless the City Manager approves an extension of time. The
department director, subject to the approval of the City Manager whenever circumstances
warrant such leave, may also grant administrative leave with pay.

7.15 Pre-Determination Hearing Procedure: The City Manager or his/her designee shall
meet with the appropriate department director and the employee if he or she chooses to
participate, at the appointed time. The City Attorney may be present to assist the Hearing
Officer/City Manager but shall not advocate on behalf a City Department. Legal counsel for the
employee and the department, if any, may also be present. At this hearing, the employee will
have an opportunity to respond to the reasons for the proposed action. Witnesses are permitted as
determined relevant to the case by the City Manager or his/her designee. If an employee does
not attend the pre-determination hearing and no good cause is shown for his/her absence, the
hearing shall proceed as scheduled and a determination may be made.

7.16 Pre-Determination Hearing Decision: The City Manager or his/her designee will
issue a decision in writing within ten (10) working days of the hearing. The decision will include
the time, date and location of the meeting, persons present, and the determination. The written
decision shall either be delivered to the employee by a supervisor or department director with the
employee’s, signature of receipt of the decision) or be sent to the employee by certified mail,
return receipt requested.

7.17 Notice of Grievance: ~ Within five (5) working days of receipt of the written decision, the
employee must notify the Human Resources Manager or his/her designee in writing of his/her
intent to pursue a grievance hearing before a Personnel Appeals Hearing Officer.

SECTION Vill: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

The formal grievance procedure is applicable for promotion, suspension, demotion, involuntary
transfer or dismissal. A grievance shall not stay the implementation of the pre-determination
hearing decision.

8.1 Conditions or Actions Not Grievable: The following matters are not grievable:

A. Disputes as to whether or not an established City practice or Rules are valid;

B. Matters in which a method of review is mandated by law;

C. Matters where the City is without authority to act or does not have the ability to provide a
remedy;

D. Dismissal of temporary, casual or contract employees dismissed at any point during their

employment with the City;

Preferences for employment, promotions, voluntary transfers, temporary assignments,

and removal from temporary assignments, and layoffs;

Dismissal of a probationary employee prior to the expiration of the probationary period;

Letters of complaint when the employee’s department director determines the letters are

Justified and appropriate to be placed in the employee’s personnel file, so long as the

2

o=

Page 27



procedure for written reprimands are followed including the employee’s right to submit a
rebuttal;
H. Verbal and written reprimands in the employee’s file, although within ten (10) days the
employee is allowed a rebuttal of the information contained in the reprimand which will
be attached to the reprimand;
Denial of permission for outside employment;
Performance evaluations/goals;
. Suspension from employment for three days or less.
Denial of educational rewards or tuition reimbursement funding.

CR="

8.2 Employees Not Eligible for Grievance Procedure:  Unclassified, temporary, casual,
probationary, or contract employees are not eligible to request a grievance hearing. Additionally
the City Manager is not entitled to the grievance procedure.

8.3 Grievance Procedure: A regular employee may request, in writing, a hearing before a
Personnel Hearing Officer within five (§) working days of receiving the City Manager’s decision
resulting from the pre-disciplinary process or from other action as may be grievable under this
Policy. The request will state with specificity the reason for the grievance and the remedy
requested.

8.4 Appointment of Personnel Hearing Officer: After receiving the grievant’s notification of
intent to pursue a disciplinary hearing, the City Manager will provide the grievant with the name
of the Hearing Officer.

8.5 Hearing Officer Qualifications: Hearing Officers shall be personnel professionals,
be familiar with public or private personnel systems, or have pertinent experience in the field of
management, education or law. The Hearing Officer shall be disinterested in the subject matter
of the hearing. The City Manager shall verify the qualifications of the hearing officer. The
hearing officer is not required to reside in the City.

8.6 Grievance Hearing Schedule: The City Manager or Hearing Officer will schedule a
hearing to be held as soon as practicable after receiving the notification that the employee wants
to pursue a grievance hearing. At a hearing, the grievant and City shall have an opportunity to
present witnesses and physical evidence and cross-examine the witnesses before a neutral
hearing officer. The City shall be represented by its attorney and the grievant may have an
attorney or representative of their choice.

8.7 Grievance Hearing Procedures - Rules of Procedure:

A. The hearing will not be open to the public, unless the grievant requests a public hearing.
B. The formal Rules of Evidence shall not apply to the hearing.
C. The hearing officer shall:

1. Make rulings on procedural and substantial issues of the hearing;

2. Determine the admissibility of evidence and testimony, all of which must have a
direct bearing on the issue before the hearing officer; and

3. Issue a written ruling, including findings of fact, which form the basis of the hearing
officer’s conclusions of law.

Page 28



D. The grievant, the grievant’s legal representative, if any, and the City Attorney are
required to be present at the hearing unless otherwise excused by the hearing officer or by
agreement of the parties.

E. The hearing officer shall determine reasonable timelines that the parties or their
representatives shall prepare and provide copies of all exhibits and evidence, confidential
statements identifying the issues to be heard, a witness list, and a complete list of
documents to be admitted as evidence for the hearing officer as well as the opposing
party. The hearing officer shall exclude from consideration exhibits and evidence,
statements, witness lists, and other documents if not supplied in the manner detailed
above.

F. Each party will be responsible for ensuring that their witnesses are present for the
hearing.

G. Witnesses in grievance hearings are not permitted in the hearing room until called upon
to testify, unless the witness is a party (i.e., the grievant, the grievant’ s department
director and/or supervisor, the City Manager, Human Resources Manager, or City
Attorney).

H. An audio, audio-video record or transcript of all grievance hearings will be made.

8.8 Conduct of Hearing: = The Grievant shall present an opening statement of issues involved
in the case, followed by the City. Opening statements are limited to the pertinent issues of fact
and law and shall not exceed ten minutes without the permission of the hearing officer.

8.9 Order of Presentation:

A. The City will present first. Witnesses for the City may be called and questioned
concerning their involvement in or knowledge of the case. Following each witness’s
testimony, the Grievant will have the opportunity to cross-examine the witness. The
hearing officer will then have an opportunity to question the witness. The hearing officer
shall restrict all questions to those necessary to clarify the testimony previously given.
Follow up or redirect questioning will be allowed at the discretion of the hearing officer.

B. Witnesses for the Grievant may be called and questioned concerning their involvement in
or knowledge of the case. Following each witness’s testimony, the City will have the
opportunity to cross-examine the witness. The hearing officer will then have an
opportunity to question the witness. The hearing officer shall restrict all questions to
those necessary to clarify the testimony previously given. Follow up or redirect
questioning will be allowed at the discretion of the hearing officer.

C. Following the presentation of the City’s and the Grievant’s positions, rebuttals may be
offered. Such testimony shall be brief and shall address only the issues brought forth in
the City or Grievant’s presentation.

D. The City’s closing statement shall be presented followed by the Grievant’s closing
statement. These statements shall not exceed ten (10) minutes without the permission of
the hearing officer and shall contain a request for the desired outcome.

8.10 Communication of Hearing Officer’s Decision: The hearing officer’s decision will
be issued as timely as possible following the hearing and will be signed by the hearing officer,
and transmitted to the grievant, the City Manager and department director. The hearing officer
may uphold, modify or reverse the decision of the City Manager or designee, and may reinstate
the employee and award back pay and benefits. No attorney’s fees, costs or other damages may
be awarded. The standard of proof in a grievance hearing is a preponderance of the evidence.

Page 29



The record of the proceedings will be retained by the City Human Resource’s office for a period
of not less than five (5) years from the hearing date, along with all of the physical evidence
admitted by the hearing officer. The verbal record may be transcribed only in the case of appeal
to the District Court by one of the parties. The party requesting the transcription shall pay for the
transcription.

8.11 Appeal of Hearing Officer’s Decision: Either party may appeal the hearing officer’s
decision to the District Court by filing with the District Court and the Human Resources
Manager a Notice of Appeal within thirty (30) calendar days of the hearing officer’s decision. A
party may cross-appeal within thirty (30) days of the date another party files a Notice of Appeal.
Both parties shall be forever estopped from appealing the hearing officer’s decision after thirty
(30) calendar days from the hearing officer’s decision if no Notice of Appeal is timely filed.

A. These Rules, if certified to be complete by the City Clerk, and in effect at the material
times, may be included in the record on appeal at the request of any one of the respective
parties at any time before forwarding the record to the District Court.

B. The appeal shall be one of review of the record (transcript) along will all the exhibits as
admitted. No trial de novo will be accorded.

SECTION IX: COMPENSATION & BENEFITS

9.1 Purpose: The purpose of the compensation plan is to establish equitable compensation for
all positions in the City. Such a plan may establish a salary schedule containing a minimum and
maximum wage or salary for each position. Pay ranges are intended to furnish administrative
flexibility. However, all wages and salaries are approved by the Board during the budget process
or otherwise. The Board has sole authority to budget and authorize wage and salary increases.
The Board acknowledges all changes in compensation and may set pay schedules and Rules
regarding any raises and promotional increases for the entire fiscal year for all City employees.

9.2 Hours of Work: Employees will work their scheduled hours pursuant to work schedules
established by their department director and approved by the City Manager. Full-time
employees will work a minimum of forty (40) hours per week. Actual work periods may
fluctuate at the discretion of the department director, with approval of the City Manager. Part-
time employees are scheduled to work pursuant to scheduling set forth by their department
director. Law Enforcement Personnel may work an alternative schedule in accordance with
FLSA regulations in excess of eighty-six (86) hours per pay period permitted by 29 U.S.C.
Section 207(k).

9.3 Overtime Pay: Only FLSA non-exempt employees shall be compensated for all time
actually worked, whether or not the time is authorized. Failure to obtain authorization for
overtime shall result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. The rate shall be one
and one-half (1'2) times regular pay for each hour of overtime. Only actual time worked will be
used to calculate overtime; holiday, annual, sick and other leave hours shall not be considered
actual working hours.

A. Regular employees: such payment shall be made only in cases when an FLSA non-
exempt employee works over forty (40) “actual hours” in a normal workweek.

Page 30



B. Law Enforcement Personnel: An FLSA non-exempt, law enforcement employee shall
be paid overtime according to FLSA regulations in excess of eighty-six (86) hours per
pay period permitted by 29 U.S.C. Section 207(k).

9.4 Consistency with Fair Labor Standards Act: The provisions of Section 9.3 are subject to
change or revision by the Fair Labor Standards Act and any federal regulation or revision
thereof.

9.5 Emergency Call-out Pay: An employee called out will be paid for the greater of two
(2) hours at one and one-half (1.5) times his/her regular rate or for actual hours worked at one
and one-half (1.5) times his/her regular rate. Police officers are exempt from call-out pay
eligibility, except as defined in Section 9.3 B.

9.6 Stand-by Pay:  An employee on stand-by will be compensated at his/her regular rate for
eight (8) hours during any regular seven-day workweek.

A. No employee may be placed on stand-by for more than one week (seven consecutive
days) at a time, except by special arrangement with the department director.

9.7 P.E.R.A. Benefits: All City employees, with the exception of those employees, who
are subject to exclusion under P.E.R.A. rules, are required to join the Public Employees
Retirement Association of New Mexico (P.E.R.A.).

9.8 Insurance Benefits: The City offers group insurance benefits to all employees as long
as the employee is regularly scheduled to work at least 20 hours per week and whose term of
employment when hired is for six or more months. Independent contractors and causal
employees are not eligible under the City benefit plan. Insurance plans may be changed at the
discretion of the Board or the insurance carrier.

9.9 Fringe Benefits: The City will follow the Internal Revenue Service’s rules with regard to
fringe benefits. Taxable fringe benefits will be included on the employee’s W-2 form. (Examples
of fringe benefits may include uniforms, uniform allowances, vehicle usage, City cell phones,
etc.) If an employee has a question regarding fringe benefits and how that may affect them, the
employee should contact the Human Resources Manager. Vehicles assigned as take-home
vehicles must be properly identified with a logo as City of Truth or Consequences vehicles, with
the exception of law enforcement undercover vehicles.

9.10 Compensatory Time: Compensatory time in lieu of cash compensation may be given if
there is no remaining overtime in the Department’s budget and shall be authorized only under
rare circumstances, which call for immediate action or in special situations required by the nature
of the operation or the status of the activity.

A. Compensatory time in lieu of cash compensation may be given only if there is an
agreement entered into voluntarily between the employee and department director.

B. The employee must have entered into this agreement before compensatory overtime
work is performed.

C. Compensatory time off for FLSA non-exempt employees shall be at a rate equal to
one and one-half (1.5) hours for each hour of employment for which overtime
compensation is required. However, if the additional hours worked would not qualify

Page 31



as overtime (i.e. leave was taken during the workweek), but the employee takes time
off in lieu of payment such compensatory time would be accrued at the straight time
rate.

D. A maximum of 40 hours of compensatory time may be accrued before the employee
will be required to exhaust the leave.

E. The FLSA-covered employee who has accrued compensatory time off, and who has
requested the use of compensatory time, shall be permitted to use the time within a
reasonable period after making the request, if the use of compensatory time does not
unduly disrupt the operations of the City, as determined by the employee’s
supervisor.

F. After accrual of 40 hours of compensatory time, any overtime worked must be paid.
If compensation is paid to an employee for accrued compensatory time, such
compensation shall be paid at the regular rate earned by the employee at the time the
employee receives such a payment.

G. A department head shall make every reasonable effort to schedule time off, for an
employee to use accrued compensatory time immediately after accrual.

H. No employee whose position is designated as exempt shall be paid in any way for
hours worked in excess of 40 in a workweek. It is the practice of the City to allow
professional flexibility in work schedules for exempt employees to balance their
professional and personal commitments. It is, however, generally expected that
exempt employees are present and available during daily “core times”.

9.11 Flex Time: Excess time accrued by a non-exempt employee above the employee’s
regularly scheduled daily work hours in, which the employee requests for department director
approval to use the accrued hours as alternate leave on a day and time within the same pay

period.

A.

Directors may, at their discretion, permit non-exempt employees who are requesting to
use accrued flex time on a case-by-case basis, where the employee was engaged in
approved work-related assignments that required the employee to work extended hours
outside of their normal work day. Flex hours must be used within the same city pay
period in which they were accrued and the employee must properly reflect the correct
number of hours worked per day on their timesheet entry.

SECTION X: LEAVE AND HOLIDAYS

10.1 Holidays:

A.

B.

The Board shall approve holidays at their discretion, for the calendar year. All
employees, except temporary and casual employees, are eligible for holiday pay.
An employee that works on a holiday will receive holiday pay plus their choice of:

1. One hour of time off for each hour worked on the holiday, or
2. Pay for actual time worked at their regular rate.

If a holiday falls on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off, the employee will receive
eight (8) hours straight time.

Page 32



10.2 Personal Holiday Leave: All regular employees who have completed the
probationary period will have an eight (8) hour and part-time employees eligible for benefits will
receive four (4) hours personal holiday each calendar year in addition to the regular holiday
schedule. The personal holiday may be taken at any time, upon approval by the employee’s
supervisor. The entire eight (8) hours, four (4) hours for part-time employees must be taken
when requesting personal holiday leave. Personal holiday time may not be taken in hourly
increments. Personal holiday leave shall not carry over beyond the current calendar year.

10.3 Annual Leave with Pay: Annual leave may not be used before it is accrued and must
be approved with at least seven (7) days or more notice by the employee’s supervisor prior to
being taken. Employees accrue annual leave with pay in accordance with the following schedule,
based upon continuous length of City service:

l;;lgit:ars of Hours/pay period | Working days/Year
0to5 Years 4.0 hours 13 days/ 104 hours
5to 10 Years 5.0 hours 16.25 days/ 130 hours
10 Years + 6.0 hours 19.5 days/ 156 hours

Employees hired before adoption of this ordinance are grandfathered in at the rate established at
hiring and shall accrual annual leave in accordance with the following schedule:

g:gizzars of Hours/pay period | Working days/Year
0to 3 Years 4.0 hours 13 days/ 104 hours
3to 15 Years 6.0 hours 20 days/ 160 hours
15 Years + 8 hours 26 days/ 208 hours

A. Employees employed in regular part-time status accrue annual leave on a prorated basis.

B. Only completed calendar months of service before and after interruptions or breaks will
be counted. In computing the total number of years of service by which an employee is
allowed to progress from one graduated rate of accrual to another, the following will

apply:

1. Where the employee has been employed with the City without any interruption or
break in continuity of service, the date from which their years of tenure are
counted will be the first day of the first completed calendar month worked.

2. Periods of leave without pay in excess of thirty (30) days will not be counted as
service.

Page 33



C. An eligible employee will progress from one graduated rate of accrual for annual leave to
the next on the first day of the month immediately following completion of the required
total length of service.

D. The amount of accrued annual leave permitted to be carried over from one calendar year
to the next shall not exceed 240 hours, unless exigent circumstanced prevented annual
leave use and is approved by the City Manager.

E. Upon separation of employment, an employee will be compensated for all unused and un-
forfeited annual leave, not to exceed 240 hours.

F. Upon death of an eligible employee, compensation for unused total annual leave, not to
exceed 240 hours, shall be payable to the employee’s estate.

10.4 Accrual Limitation:  Total number of accrued annual leave hours shall not exceed a
maximum of 240 hours. Therefore, any hours exceeding 240 hours, at any time, will be
forfeited, unless approved by the City Manager. Exceptions to this policy must result from a
legitimate business necessity.

10.5 Separation from Service or Change in Service Pay: Employees shall be paid for
all accrued annual leave upon separation from City service, not to exceed two hundred-forty
(240) hours.

10.6 Leave Donation: Employees are permitted to donate or receive annual or sick leave
for City employees with severe or extraordinary illnesses, or to provide care for relatives or
household members with severe or extraordinary illnesses, if the employee has exhausted their
annual and sick leave.

A. An employee may donate as many annual or sick leave hours as desired, as long as the
employee retains an annual and/or sick leave balance of at least 40 hours.

B. Requests to receive donated leave require department director and City Manager
approval. The City reserves the right to approve or deny donated leave requests. The
City Manager will render a decision based on the employee’s length of service,
performance/disciplinary history and review of the employee’s leave usage.

C. A certificate of illness or injury will be required from a physician in order to qualify to
use donated hours.

D. Under no circumstances, including termination, can donated hours be converted into
cash. Unused hours will be returned to the employee(s) making the donation.

E. Upon death of an eligible employee, compensation for unused total annual leave, not to
exceed 240 hours, shall be payable to the employee’s estate.

10.7 Sick Leave with Pay: Employees shall accrue a maximum of four (4) hours of sick leave
with pay per pay period. Part-time employees accrue sick leave at the rate of 2.0 hours per pay-
period. Casual and temporary employees do not accrue sick leave.

A. Sick leave shall be authorized by the employee’s supervisor, when such leave is
requested, when an employee is unable to perform normal job duties due to medical
considerations such as, but not limited to, the following: illness, injury, prearranged
medical or dental examination, quarantine, therapy, counseling, treatment, or when a
member of the employee’s immediate family is ill and requires the personal attention of
the employee.

Page 34



B. The City has no maximum cap on accrued sick leave; all hours are allowed to be carried-
over from one calendar year to the next. Upon separation or retirement of an employee
serving five (5) or more continuous years of service, will be compensated for one third
(1/3) of the first 480 accrued sick leave hours; a maximum of 160 hours. Employees with
less than five (5) continuous years of service will forfeit all accrued sick leave at
separation of employment. Employees are not permitted to donate sick leave at time of
separation.

10.8 Sick Leave Authorization: Sick leave may not be used before it is accrued and must be
authorized or denied according to City policy. Unless otherwise prescribed by separate
department policy, the following procedures shall apply:

A. Reporting Sick Leave. For police officers, sick leave shall be reported as soon as
possible, but no later than two (2) hours prior to the employee’s work shift. All other
employees, sick leave shall be reported as soon as possible, but no later than thirty (30)
minutes following the start of their normal work day.

B. Sick leave shall be requested and entered in the City’s system. If an employee uses any
falsehood to support a request for leave, any leave authorized may be rescinded and the
employee may be subject to disciplinary action. Leave may be granted contingent upon
the employee presenting sufficient justification.

10.9 Use of Sick Leave During Probationary Period:  Probationary employees accrue sick
leave as set forth in 6.1 D and may use sick leave if accrued.

10.10 Certification of Illness for Sick Leave: A physician’s written certification may be
required prior to receipt of sick leave pay at the discretion of the department director.

10.11 Bereavement Leave: In the event of a death in the employee’s immediate family, he or
she will be entitled to bereavement leave. Up to three (3) days may be granted for an employee
to attend the funeral of a member of his/her immediate family in state and up to five (5) days if
the funeral is out-of-state. These days will be classified as Administrative Leave with pay and
require City Manager approval.

10.12 Family Medical Leave:

A. The City provides family medical leave of absence without pay to eligible employees
who wish to take time off from work duties to fulfill family obligations relating directly
to the birth or adoption of a child or the illness of a child, spouse, domestic partner,
parent or the employee themselves. Regular full-time and part-time employees are
eligible to request family leave as described in these Rules.

B. Eligible employees are allowed family/medical leave according to provisions of the
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). As soon as an eligible employee becomes aware of
the need for a family medical leave of absence, the employee shall request leave from
their supervisor. Employees requesting family medical leave related to the illness of a
child, spouse, domestic partner, parent or the employee themselves shall be required to
provide a healthcare provider’s certification of employee/family member’s serious health
condition. Eligible employees who do not request family medical leave in advance of a
qualifying event will automatically be placed on family medical leave as soon as the

Page 35



Human Resources Manager determines that their leave qualifies for protections under
FMLA.

C. The City may require an employee to submit to a fitness for duty return to work exam
when the need for FMLA leave is based on the employee’s own serious health condition
that may affect the essential functions of the employee’s job. The City must notify the
employee of this requirement at the beginning of the leave.

D. Eligible employees are allowed up to twelve (12) weeks of family medical leave or up to
twenty-six (26) weeks of leave, in a single 12-month period, to care for a covered service
member recovering from a serious injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on active
duty. Eligibility for leave will be determined on a twelve (12) month rolling-back
calendar. The employee will be required to take any available annual or sick leave as part
of the approved period of leave. If the family medical leave is unpaid, the employee is
subject to all rules pertaining to leave without pay, section 10.20.

E. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of the applicable plans, the City will
continue to provide health insurance benefits for the full period of the approved
family/medical leave, subject to all rules pertaining to leave without pay, Section 10.20.

F. When family medical leave ends, every reasonable effort will be made to return the
employee to the same position, if it is available, or to a similar available position for
which the employee qualifies.

10.13 Administrative Leave with Pay: Administrative leave with pay may be granted by
the department director, subject to the approval of the City Manager, pending an investigation or
disciplinary action or fitness for duty evaluation, as subject to all rules pertaining to Immediate
Suspension with Pay, Section 7.14.

10.14 Workers’ Compensation Program: [§§52-5-1 et. seq., NMSA 1978]

A. The City provides a comprehensive worker’s compensation insurance program at no cost
to employees. This program covers any injury or anyone suffering from occupational
diseases sustained in the course of employment as approved by the insurance carrier.
Subject to applicable legal requirements, Workers’ Compensation insurance provides
benefits after a short waiting period, or if the employee is hospitalized immediately.

B. Employees who sustain work-related injuries or occupational diseases must inform their
supervisor immediately, who will notify Human Resources. No matter how minor an on-
the-job injury may appear, it is important that it be reported immediately. This will enable
an eligible employee to qualify for coverage as quickly as possible. A “Notice of
Accident” form shall be filed with the Human Resources Manager immediately following
the work-related injury. Employees sustaining an injury /illness NOT requiring medical
care need not seek medical attention; the “Notice of Accident” form will provide
sufficient documentation.

1. The employee and the employee’s supervisor shall sign the report. In addition, the
supervisor’s Accident Investigating Report” will be filed on the following workday.
All accidents shall be reported, however minor.

2. Human Resources will complete an E-1 workers’ compensation report form and
report it to NMML in a timely manner.

3. Supervisors will thoroughly investigate the injury/illness and complete a “Supervisor
Report of Injury” form. In every case, the “corrective Action Taken” section of the
report shall be completed.

Page 36



C. Neither the City nor the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of workers’
compensation benefits for injuries that occur during an employee’s voluntary
participation in any off-duty recreational, social, athletic activity, or similar events off-
duty.

D. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of the applicable plans, the City will
continue to provide health insurance benefits while the employee is receiving worker’s
compensation benefits, subject to the provisions of Section 10.15. Eligible employees
will automatically be placed on family/medical leave as soon as the Human Resources
Manager determines that their leave qualifies for protection under the Act.

10.15 On-The-Job Injury Leave: An employee injured on the job may use accrued sick leave
until exhausted and then the use of annual leave is permissible for each regularly scheduled
working day after the injury occurs for all such days that are not paid by Workers’ Compensation
Insurance. If the employee is on worker’s compensation time for more than four (4) weeks, and
is entitled to compensation for the first seven (7) days and has used accrued leave for the first
seven (7) days of injury, the workers’ compensation payments received for all such days shall be
paid directly to the City by the workers’ compensation carrier. In the event an employee uses
accrued leave, in lieu of workers’ compensation, the leave used shall be re-credited to the
employee upon the City’s receipt of the reimbursement by the Workers’ Compensation carrier
after the expiration of the statutory waiting period.

10.16 Voting Leave: For purposes of national, state or local elections, an employee, registered
to vote, will be granted up to two (2) hours paid leave for voting, between the time of opening
and the time of closing of polls. The employee’s supervisor may specify the hours for the leave.
This leave will not be granted to any employee whose workday begins more than two (2) hours
subsequent to the time of the opening of the polls or ends more than three (3) hours before the
closing of the polls.

10.17 Court Service Leave with Pay: Pay for jury duty shall be authorized only for those
days that the employee is scheduled to work. If excused by the court during a working day, the
employee shall return to work. Employees serving as jurors shall file for jury pay and turn in any
pay received to the City. Any jury duty worked beyond their regular work hours shall be
refunded back to the employee.

A. Procedures for Jury Duty Time:
1. Juror Service Verification form from the Court must be attached to the Leave Request
Form.
2. Reconciliation of time by Payroll will include matching Jury Hours Summary Sheet
received by the Court to time sheet, leave form and Juror Service Verification form.

B. Court Appearance Time. When required by City duties and subpoenaed to appear before
a Court, personnel Hearing Officer, public body or the Board for testifying about City
matters, the employee will be compensated as regular work time.

10.18 Leave Without Pay: The department director with the approval of the City Manager,

may grant an employee leave without pay for a period not to exceed ten (10) days, when the
department director deems that such leave without pay is in the best interest of the City.

Page 37



A. Failure to Report Timely: ~ Failure on the part of the employee to report to work
immediately to the assigned shift following the last day of the request, upon the
expiration of approved leave without pay, shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and
including termination.

10.19 Life Threatening Illnesses in the Workplace: Employees with life-threatening
illnesses, such as cancer and heart disease, often wish to continue their normal pursuits,
including work, to the extent allowed by their condition. The City supports these endeavors as
long as employees are able to meet acceptable performance standards. As in the case of other
disabilities, the City will make reasonable accommodations in accordance with all legal
requirements, to allow qualified employees with life-threatening illnesses to perform the
essential functions of their jobs.

A. Medical information on individual employees is treated confidentially. The City will take
reasonable precautions to protect such information from inappropriate disclosure.
Management, as well as other employees, has a responsibility to respect and maintain the
confidentiality of employee medical information. Anyone inappropriately disclosing such
information is subject to corrective or disciplinary action up to and including dismissal of
employment.

B. The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) require the City to maintain the privacy of protected health
information. A copy of the City’s HIPAA Notice of Privacy Practices can be obtained
from Human Resources.

10.20 Inclement Weather: The City Manager may close offices, authorize late reporting or
early release due to inclement weather, and all employees will be compensated for normal work
hours as administrative leave with pay and shown on a Leave Report Form. Inclement weather
leave with pay will not exceed eight (8) hours in one workday.

10.21 Leave For Unforeseen Circumstances: The City Manager may close individual
offices, authorize late reporting or early release due to unforeseen conditions beyond the City’s
control that prevent the employees from performing their duties as administrative leave with pay
and entered into the City’s system.

10.22 Military Leave:

A. The Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)
protects the job and benefits, for up to five years (or more in some cases), of a service
member who must leave his or her civilian job because of military orders to report for
training or active duty, voluntary or involuntary, in peacetime or wartime.

B. Military Leave for Reserve or National Guard Activities (§ 20-1-1 NMSA 1978).
USERRA requires service members, or a responsible representative of the military unit,
to provide advance written or verbal notice to their employers for all military duty unless
giving notice is impossible, unreasonable, or precluded by military necessity. Paid
Military leave is granted for authorized reserve or National Guard activities for a
maximum of fifteen (15) working days with pay during a one (1) year period based on the
federal government’s fiscal year from October 1 to September 30. Military leave must be
requested twenty (20) working days in advance, unless a national or state emergency
exists and an immediate call-up is initiated in which case notice as soon as possible is

Page 38



required. The employee must furnish proof of duty orders or other documentation prior
to leave being granted unless the leave is for emergency purposes.

C. Extended Unpaid Military Leave. Employees voluntarily or involuntarily serving on
active duty for more than fifteen (15) working days may use accrued annual leave. When
military leave has been exhausted, employees have the option of being placed on leave
without pay (LWOP) or using accrued leave. Employees may use all of their annual leave
on consecutive days or use up to twenty-seven (27) hours per pay period in order to
maintain their group insurance benefits. Employees who exhaust their annual leave shall
then be placed on LWOP for the remainder of time they are on active duty. Employees
shall not receive pay or accrue leave while on LWOP. Employees wanting to maintain
insurance benefits while on military duty will be required to pay the employee’s share of
their premium.

D. Service members are entitled to return to their City job and receive pay raises,
promotions, pension credit and other seniority benefits as if you had been continually
employed, provided certain eligibility criteria be met. Protection under the USERRA
applies if:

1. The job the employee left was for more than a brief, non-recurrent period, with no
reasonable expectation that such employment would continue indefinitely or for a
significant period.

2. The employee left this job for the purpose of entering active duty.

3. The employee is discharged under honorable conditions.

AND
4. The employee applied for reemployment within the applicable time limit.

E. If these criteria are met, the USERRA provides the following protections:

1. The employee is entitled to return to the prior position with the same seniority,
benefits, pay, and, additionally, any promotion or raise which could have been
reasonably expected if the employee had remained continuously on the civilian job.

2. The City is required to offer disabled veterans the "nearest approximation" of the job
the service member could have reasonably expected with continuous employment.

3. Service members are protected from being discharged for the protected period
allotted by USERRA according to the time served on active duty, unless the City
proves misconduct or violation of policies.

4. To be re-employed in the same position, the employee’s return to work must occur
within the following guidelines:

a. For a service period of 1-30 days, the employee must report to work immediately
by the first regularly scheduled work day;

b. For a service period of 31-180 days, the employee must make application for re-
employment within 14 calendar days after he/she is relieved from training or duty;

c. For aservice period of 181 days or more, the employee must make application for
re-employment ninety (90) calendar days after he/she is relieved from training or
duty;

d. An employee, who is released from hospitalization of a service-related injury,
continuing after discharge for a period of not more than one (1) year, must make
application for re-employment ninety (90) calendar days after he/she is relieved
from training or duty.

Page 39



F. Employees may qualify for up to twelve (12) weeks of leave for qualifying exigencies
arising out of a covered military member’s active duty status, or notification of an
impending call or order to active duty status, in support of a contingency operation under
the FMLA.

10.23 Light Duty Return-To-Work: Employees who are on leave due to an on-duty
injury or illness may be eligible to return to work on light duty status after their physician
certifies their fitness to do so. The department director and the Human Resources Manager will
determine if there is a position or duties suitable for an employee to perform light duty work. The
City retains full discretion as to whether or not an employee is eligible for light duty status.

A. Coordination with Attending Physician: An employee on leave due to a work-related
disability can return to work only when the City receives the attending physician's written
medical release auth<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>